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circuit city

At the end of fiscal 2008, we had 22 stores
in our new the city™ format. Virtually all of
our planned store openings for fiscal 2009
will be in the city format. Here's why our
customers and our Associates are excited
about this new concept.

In the city, we treat our guests (customers) to
a personalized shopping experience. We excite
and inspire our guests with our interactive
experience zones and really cool stuff.

At 20,000 square feet, the city prototype

is smaller than most of our stores. And yet, this
format contains four key elements that create
a totally new experience:

The Environment — Not only does the store
look inviting and exciting, it's designed to be
highly interactive with test drive zones that
show complete solutions, like how computers
and TVs come together.

The Merchandising Strategy — In the city, the
merchandise is focused on key categories to
bhest support the guests and their needs.

The Partners (store Associates) — Partners select
their own team members who are equally as pas-
sionate about learning, communicating, teamwork
and serving the guests in their community. The
Partners use enabling technologies like Tablet
PCs to help guests find complete solutions that
meet their specific needs. Partners really make
the city special, and it's something you can feel
the moment you enter the store,

The Community — Partners show support to the
community by working together to come up with
localized ways to help, teach and entertain.

the city concept is not only exciting, it’s inspiring.
When we combine these four key elements and
focus on putting the guests first in a vibrant new
culture, the experience is truly unigue.
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TO OUR SHAREHOLDERS

Fiscal year 2008 marked an important stage in our turn-
around as we fundamentally changed the way we operate
our business while investing in our future growth. We are
nonetheless disappointed in our financial performance,
which was negatively impacted by the disruption created
by our necessary and broad-based initiatives. For the year,
our net sales decreased 5.5 percent to $11.74 billion. The
loss from continuing operations before income taxes was
3.0 percent of consolidated net sales. Despite the difficul-
ties, we made progress on our four strategic pillars and
strengthened our executive management team. By fiscal
year end, we started showing traction on a number of key
operating metrics, and we have focused our fiscal 2009
priorities on delivering improved retail execution and
rebuilding the selling culture in our stores in order to
provide superior customer service.

As we entered the fiscal year, we needed to improve
our business model to compete more effectively. As |
wrote to you last year, the dramatic decline in fiscal 2007
in selling prices of our largest revenue category—flat
panel televisions—resulted in an acceleration of our overall
transformation efforts. To this end, we
e modernized our retail standard operating platform

by relling out new procedures to more than

650 domestic segment Superstores;
¢ modified the management structure in our domestic

segment Superstores and streamlined our store and

store support organizations; and

¢ reduced our expense structure by approximately
$200 million compared with our planned spending
for the fiscal year.

While the amount of change was disruptive in the short
term and contributed significantly to our sales and gross
margin declines from the prior year, we are now in the
position to improve execution and customer service. As a
result, we expect to become a stronger, more effective
company during the current fiscal year primarily through

an intense focus on retail execution.

The company's management team, with suppart of the
board of directors, is implementing the right strategies
with the right talent and processes to lead your company
to a successful turnaround. Our Associates have embraced
the changes, and the entire Circuit City team is committed
to the strategies that are expected to have positive impact

on shareholder value.

REBUILDING CIRCUIT CITY FOR

SUSTAINABLE GROWTH

We continue to see tremendous opportunity for growth
from the four pillars of our strategy to win in home enter-
tainment, grow our services business, leverage the shift to
multi-channel retailing and significantly improve our real
estate position. In fiscal 2008, we made steady progress

in building these four strategic pillars.

Win in Home Entertainment

Home entertainment continues to be a key underpinning of
our strategy. We are capitalizing on the strong growth rates
for farge LCD televisions and video game hardware. Our
opportunity is not only to help our customers upgrade to flat
and digital, but to bring the entire high-definition experience
alive in their homes through digital source, theater-like
audio, and post-sale support including firedog*™ installation
as well as Circuit City Advantage®™ Protection Plans.

firedog Digital Services

Domestic PC services and home theater installation rev-
enues grew 29 percent in fiscal 2008. We believe our serv-
ices growth will improve as we further renew our stores’
selling culture. firedog represents a great opportunity to
build trust, traffic and top-line sales. Qur goal is to make
the complex products we sell easy for our customers to

shop, buy and enjoy.

Multi-Channel
Our fiscal 2008 domestic direct channel sales growth was
a strong 21 percent to $1.35 billion with more than half of

the sales volume picked up in our stores, We continue to
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focus on strategies that provide enhanced shopping capa-
bilities for our online customers and further integrate all of
our shopping channels. One example is our pioneering
citycenter online interactive community, which includes
discussion forums, a blog and customer photo galleries.
Our company is well-positioned to take advantage of the
shift of customer traffic to the Internet,

Real Estate Revitalization

We achieved our goal of opening 61 incremental and relo-
cated Superstores during fiscal 2008. We also remodeled
one store into our new format, the city ™. We believe the
city is a game-changing concept that will dramatically
improve the way our customers interact with our
Associates and our products. We had 22 the city stores at
fiscal year end and continue to be encouraged by cus-
tomer feedback on this format. In fiscal 2009, we will con-
tinue to refine the model as well as develop what we call
"look back” strategies—to take what we're learning from
the city back to our Circuit City Superstores to improve

their customer experience and financial performance.

NEW LEADERSHIP TEAM
In fiscal year 2008, Circuit City added three high-caliber
leaders—Bruce Besanko, John Harlow and Jeff Stone—to
our team and expanded the role of John Keily to serve as
our chief merchant. As seasoned executives with signifi-
cant retail and turnaround experience, | believe these
individuals bring a fresh approach te cur company and
can have a quick and meaningful positive impact. They
are charged with driving the execution of our initiatives;
providing training and leadership development to our
Associates; and holding the teams accountable to deliver
improved results in the next phase of our turnaround.
Bruce Besanko joined our team as executive vice
president and chief financial officer. Bruce brings retail
experience, focus and sound financial discipline coupled
with proactive strategic planning to our financial team.
Previously, he was chief financial officer of Yankee Candle
and held senior finance positions at Best Buy and Sears.
John Harlow joined the company as executive vice

president and chief operating officer overseeing retail,

real estate, information technology and supply chain.

He was most recently a director with Deloitte specializing
in retail. He previously had senior feadership roles in turn-
arounds at A&P and Toys “R" Us.

Jeff Stone joined the company as executive vice presi-
dent—new business development, which for us specifically
refers to firedog services, the city store format and ongo-
ing innovation work. Jeff has proven retail and operational
leadership as the former chief operating officer and chief
executive officer of Tweeter Home Entertainment Group
during its expansion years as well as other high-end

specialty retail experience.

FISCAL 2009

As we look forward to fiscal 2009, our top priority is

to crisply execute our retail recovery plan and rebuild

our selling culture. The expected outcomes include

* improving our gross margin rate through
merchandising, marketing and pricing discipline;

* managing our expenses by maintaining an intense
focus on controlling SG&A expenses;

* driving our close rate and attachments by rebuilding
our customer service and selling culture, which
improves both sales and margin;

* growing sales of our firedog services and our direct
channe! businesses; and

* growing through relocating, remodeling and

selectively opening new stores.

The board of directors and the management team
remain committed to a strategy that leads to improved
sales and financial results for all shareholders. We believe
strongly that fiscal 2009 will represent a year of signifi-
cant accomplishments toward advancing our goals.
| would like to thank our 45,000 Associates and our ven-

dor partners for their continued support and dedication.

Philip J. Schoonover
Chairman, President and Chief Executive Officer
April 29, 2008
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PART 1
Item 1. Business.
General

Circuit City Stores, Inc. is a leading specialty retailer of consumer electronics, home office products,
entertainment software, and related services. Circuit City was incorporated under the laws of the Commonwealth of
Virginia in 1949. Its corporate headquarters are located at 9950 Mayland Drive, Richmond, Virginia. The company
has two reportable segments: its domestic segment and its international segment. For fiscal 2008, net sales were
$11.14 billion for the domestic segment and $600.9 million for the international segment.

The domestic segment is engaged in the business of selling brand-name and private-label consumer
electronics, personal computers, entertainment software, and related services in its stores in the United States and
via the Web at www.circuitcity.com and www.firedog.com. At February 29, 2008, the company’s domestic segment
operated 682 Superstores and 11 other stores in 158 U.S. media markets.

The company is in the midst of a turnaround, with the goal of rebuilding its customer service and selling
culture in its domestic segment Superstores. In fiscal 2008, the company implemented numerous changes that had
a negative financial impact. In fiscal 2009, the company will continue to focus on its growth pillars to win in home
entertainment, grow its services business, leverage the shift to multi-channel retailing and significantly improve its
real estate position.

The international segment, which is comprised of the operations of InterTAN, Inc., is engaged in the
business of selling private-label and brand-name consumer electronics in Canada. At February 29, 2008, the
international segment conducted business through 779 retail stores and dealer outlets, which consisted of 502
company-owned stores and 277 dealer outlets. The international segment re-branded most of its company-owned
stores and dealer outlets to The Source By Circuit City* during fiscal 2006. The international segment operates a
Web site at www.thesource.ca. In February 2007, the board of directors authorized management to explore strategic
alternatives for InterTAN, Inc., which could include the sale of the operation.

Additional discussion of Circuit City’s operating segments is included in Item 7, Management’s Discussion
and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations, and Note 17, Segment Information, of the Notes to
Consolidated Financial Statements included in ltem 8, Financial Statements and Supplementary Data, of this annual
report on Form 10-K.

Multi-channel Operations

Circuit City has a highly integrated multi-channel business model, which allows customers to shop in its
stores, on the Web and via the telephone. Store operations are managed primarily by an executive vice president
and chief operating officer who oversees the company’s domestic segment Circuit City retail stores, real estate,
information technology and supply chain. An executive vice president - new business development oversees the
company’s domestic segment the city™™ retail stores, firedog™™ services and ongoing innovation work. Direct
channel operations, including the Web site, call centers and catalog, are managed by a senior vice president - multi-
channel.

During fiscal 2008, the domestic segment retail operations were divided into eight regions, which are under
the supervision of regional vice presidents. The regions are comprised of 64 districts, which are managed by district
managers who regularly visit stores to monitor store operations and meet with store directors.

During fiscal 2008, the store management model for the company’s domestic segment Superstores changed.
Previously, all domestic segment Superstores had five store management positions: a store director, an operations
manager and three sales managers. Under the current model, stores are led by a store director, an operations
manager and between one and three sales managers, depending on the store’s sales volume. The change better
aligns expenses with store productivity. The company also created a new supervisor position. Each store has five to
seven supervisors who oversee specific areas such as home entertainment, technology, firedog™ home theater
installation and PC services, firedog®™ car electronics services and customer service. The supervisors provide
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additional leadership on the sales floor, and the supervisor position creates a more defined career path for store
Associates.

The company also updated seven key standard operating procedures (SOPs) in domestic segment
Superstores during fiscal 2008. One of the SOP changes included the creation of a product flow team in the store,
Previously, store Associates were responsible for both selling activities, such as answering customer questions, and
tasking activities, such as stocking shelves. Under the current model, the product flow team Associates are
responsible for receiving, stocking, displaying and tagging store inventory from the delivery truck to the shelf.
Product specialists are dedicated solely to customer-assistance activities. Customer service Associates are
responsibie for opening and closing the store, cashiering and greeting.

Domestic segment Superstores are typically staffed with an average of 59 full-time and part-time
Associates, including customer service Associates; product specialists; product flow team members; in-store
technicians and installers; supervisors; one or more sales managers; an operations manager; and a store director.

The company’s direct-to-consumer business has grown rapidly since the launch of its Web site in 1999,
Through www circuitcity.com, www.firedog.com and telephone call centers, customers have access to a wide
selection of consumer electronics, technology and entertainment products, and related services as well as to
customer service. The company’s Web site at www.circuitcity.com offers nearly 150,000 customer ratings and
reviews of products, as well as in-depth product and technology information. Customers may view real-time in-
store inventory of products selected on www circuitcity.com, purchase products online, and pick up eligible
products in a nearby store. As an enhancement of its multi-channel capabilities, Circuit City offers a 24/24 Pickup
Guarantee™ for qualifying purchases made through its Web site or telephone call centers. Under this policy,
qualifying purchases will be ready for customers to pick up at their designated store within 24 minutes of purchase
contfirmation, or the customer will receive a $24 Circuit City gift card. During fiscal 2008, approximately 55 percent
of online sales were picked up in a store.

At February 29, 2008, the domestic segment had 42,974 hourly and salaried Associates. None of these
Associates is subject to a collective bargaining agreement, The company employs additional personnel during peak
selling seasons. The company has an hourly pay structure for the domestic segment’s non-management sales force.

International segment retail stores are divided into four regions, which are managed by regional vice
presidents. The 4 regions are further divided into 21 districts, which are under the supervision of district managers
who regularly visit stores to monitor store operations. Dealer outlets are divided into seven areas across Canada,
each of which is under the supervision of an area sales manager.

International segment stores operating under the trade name The Source By Circuit City*™ typically have a
small store format and are strategically located in malls and shopping centers. Each store provides readily available
products and services to meet a wide range of consumer electronic needs. Dealer outlets are independent retail
businesses that operate under their own trade names but are permitted, under dealer agreements, to purchase any of
the products sold by The Source By Circuit City™™. The dealer agreements contain a sub-license permitting the
dealers to designate their consumer electronics department or business as a The Source By Circuit City*™™ dealer.

International segment retail stores are typically staffed by 5 to 20 Associates, including full-time and part-
time commissioned sales Associates and a store manager. At February 29, 2008, the international segment had
2,911 hourly and salaried Associates. Approximately 95 of these Associates, who are engaged in warehousing and
distribution operations, are represented by a union. The terms of a three-year collective bargaining agreement
ending in April 2009 were ratified with these employees. The company considers its relationship with the union-
represented employees to be good.

Domestic segment and international segment Associates receive frequent training and development through
interactive e-learning courses; paper-based exercises; interactive in-store communications; team meetings; and peer
mentorship. This blended training approach focuses on improving Associate selling skills; developing product
knowledge with an emphasis on new technology; performing store operations; and building Circuit City culture. In
addition, Associates use the company’s customer Web sites and the internal Associate Web sites as additional

Page 4 of 84



resources for product and service knowledge. Management training programs are designed to prepare the
company’s leaders and include Web-based training, in-store activities and classroom instruction.

Retail Stores
DOMESTIC SEGMENT STORE MIX
Retail Units at Fiscal Year End

2008 2007 2006
SUPEISIOTeS ..o 682 642 626
Other StOTeS......oceveeiiiiieeiee e 1] 12 S
Total domestic segment stores................ 693 654 631

Prior to fiscal 2001, the company’s Superstore prototypes utilized a showroom model, which required
sales assistance for each transaction to retrieve product that was stocked in the large warehouse portion of the
store. Approximately 55 percent of the company’s domestic segment Superstores were constructed as showroom
prototypes, and today they have excess square footage in the warehouse area that is unused. The showroom
prototypes on average include approximately 60 percent of the total square footage as selling area and
approximately 40 percent as non-selling area, which includes areas such as warehouse space, mobile installation
bays, training rooms and restrooms.

During fiscal 2001, Circuit City introduced a new Superstore format that features a brighter, more
contemporary look and an open, easily navigable floor plan conducive to browsing that comprises approximately
30,000 square feet per store. The format allows the company to put all products, except those that are too large for
customers to carry, on the sales floor. These post-showroom prototypes on average include approximately 72
percent of the total square footage as selling area.

During fiscal 2008, Circuit City introduced a new Supesstore format called the city™ that features a highly
interactive environment with 20,000 square feet per store. Store Associates use headsets and tablet PCs to assist in
the sales process. The merchandising strategy for the cnty M includes carrying a reduced assortment in the store
compared with traditional Circuit Clty Superqtores while maintaining strong assortments and inventory levels in
key categories. Circuit City’s the cny protolype includes approximately 75 percent of the total square footage
as selling area.

DOMESTIC SEGMENT SUPERSTORE COUNT BY TOTAL SQUARE FOOTAGE

At February 29, 2008 Count
35,000 sq. ft. or more........ 169
30,000 to 34,999 sq. fi. .... 325
25,000 to 29,999 sq. ft. ... 83
20,000 to 24,999 sq. ft. .... 73
Less than 20,000 sq. ft. .... 32

DOMESTIC SEGMENT SUPERSTORE COUNT BY FORMAT

At February 29, 2008 Count
Showroom (1€2acy)....vevevvvrcrrerneeninnn 372
Non-showroom*
Larger prototypes.......cccoceeveeevvenenne, 247
Smaller prototypes......c.coceeeeevvrenennn. 41
the CItY ™ oo, 22

@ arger prototypes are typically 30,000 or 34,000 square feet. Smaller prototypes are typically 20,000 square feet. The prototype for the
city™ is 20,000 square feet. All categories may include stores with square foolage that is larger or smaller than the prototype design.

The company provides both selling square footage and total square footage metrics for the domestic
segment Superstores in order to aid investors in understanding the impact of the changes in the prototypes.
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DOMESTIC SEGMENT SUPERSTORE SQUARE FOOTAGE SUMMARY

At February 29 or 28 Selling $q. Ft. Total Sq. Ft.

2008 ..., 14,243,803 22,054,584
2007 oo 13,243,665 21,172,652
2000 ..o, 12,990,321 20,728,064

During fiscal 2008, the company opened 43 incremental Superstores, relocated 18 Superstores, remodeled
one Superstore into the company’s the city ™ format and closed three Superstores. An additional Superstore was
closed in February 2008 in advance of opening a relocated store in fiscal 2009. The following table summarizes the
progress of the domestic segment Superstore revitalization program over the last eight fiscal years.

Superstores at

Superstore Superstore Superstore End of Fiscal

Fiscal Openings Relocations Full Remodels Closures Year
2008 ..o, 43 18® | 4® 682
2007 e, 23 12© 2@ g 642
2006 ..o, 18 10 - 4@ 626
2003 oo, 31 28 [ 19 612
2004 -, 8 18 4 20 599
2003 e, 8 11 3 ] 611
2002 1o, 11 8 12 1 604
2007 oo, 24 1 26 ] 594
TOtAl oo 166 106 49 58

&} [n February 2007, the company closed one store in advance of opening a replacement store in the first quarter of fiscal 2008. The
replacement store is included in fiscal 2008 store relocations,

® [n February 2008, the company closed one store in advance of opening a replacement store in the second guarter of fiscal 2009. The
replacement store will be included in fiscal 2009 store relocations.

} In February 2006, the company closed one store in advance of opening a replacement store in the first quarter of fiscal 2007. The
replacement store is included in fiscal 2007 store relocations.

4 One fiscal 2007 remode] consisted of rebuilding a hurricane-damaged store on the same site.

) yn February 2004, the company closed one store in advance of opening a replacement store in the first quarter of fiscal 2005. The
replacement store is included in fiscal 2005 store relocations.

During fiscal 2009, the company expects to open 45 to 55 domestic qegment Superstores, of Wl’llCh it
expects 6 1o 8 will be relocations. Virtually all of the 45 to 55 Superstore openings will be in the city™ format.

INTERNATIONAL SEGMENT STORE MIX
Retail Units at Fiscal Year End

2008 2007 2006
Company-owned StOres...........c..ccociens 502 509 540
Dealer outlets.........cccocveeveninineicrnnns 277 296 300
Battery Plus® Stores..........co.vcveerevnnen. - 1 21
Total international segment stores........ 719 806 861

Effective January 28, 2007, the company returned the management of 92 Rogers Plus® stores to Rogers
Wireless Inc. As of February 28, 2006, there were 93 stores in operation. Results from the Rogers Plus® stores are
presented as results from discontinued operations for all periods presented.

International segment stores operating under the trade name The Source By Circuit City™ have a small
store format with an average of 2,129 square feet.
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Merchandising

The company offers a broad selection of products and services through its stores, on the Web and via the
telephone. The company’s major sales categories are

* video, which includes televisions, imaging products, DVD hardware, camcorders, furniture, and related
accessories;

¢ information technology, which includes PC hardware, telecommunications products, and related
accessories;

¢ audio, which includes home audio, mobile audio, portable audio and navigation products, and related
accessories;

* entertainment, which includes movie software, music software, game software, game hardware and
PC software; and

* warranty, services and other, which includes extended warranty net sales; revenues from PC services,
mobile installations, home theater installations and product repairs; net financing; and revenues
received from third parties for services subscriptions.

To ensure consistency, each domestic segment store follows standard operating procedures and
merchandising programs, including procedures for inventory maintenance and merchandise displays. Merchandise
pricing may vary by channel or by market to reflect local competitive conditions.

Circuit City’s sourcing strategy is to find products with the best value for the cost. The company identifies
products suitable for sourcing through a direct relationship with manufacturers overseas with the support of the
Circuit City Global Sourcing staff in Hong Kong, Shenzhen (People’s Republic of China) and Taipei (Taiwan). For
more complex products, Circuit City sourcing Associates collaborate with the company’s existing supplier base to
reduce costs and development time as well as improve overall profitability. Circuit City offers an increasing amount
of private-label merchandise to complement its branded strategy. These unique private-label brands offer customers
choice and value while supplementing one of the best selections of brand-name products in the consumer
electronics industry.

The international segment’s merchandise offering is designed to increase both sales and gross profit
dollars. In fiscal 2007, the segment underwent a number of transformation activities designed to increase sales and
gross profit margin, including optimiziang assortments, managing lifecycle transitions, implementing a formal
pricing strategy and reducing non-working inventory. The segment continued its transformation activities in fiscal
2008 and is focused on improving the effectiveness of assortment planning, category management, lifecycle
transitions and pricing. ‘

Marketing

In fiscal 2008, Circuit City launched a new brand position based upon consumer insights and support of the
multi-channel strategy. The new brand position is titled simplicity guaranteed™. The company is building and
accelerating upon its turnaround work designed to deliver consumers a better and more valuable shopping
experience, wherever and whenever they shop for consumer electronics. Circuit City’s brand position is focused on
the premise that consumer electronics can be confusing, time-consuming and difficult to install and set up. The
company’s marketing promotes that Circuit City makes it simple to shop, buy and enjoy consumer electronics.

Circuit City utilizes multiple marketing vehicles to build brand awareness and promote specific products
and offers. The domestic segment uses newspaper advertisements, television, direct mailings and online marketing.
The company also offers a rewards credit card in partnership with Chase Card Services. Cardholders can choose
rewards points or promotional financing for qualifying purchases at Circuit City. The points can be redeemed for
future purchases, enabling Circuit City to reward its loyal customers while encouraging repeat traffic to its stores.

During fiscal 2007, the domestic segment launched the firedog™ brand to provide home theater installation
and PC services in-store, at home and remotely. The brand name captures the attributes that the company wants its
technicians and installers to embody: helpful, knowledgeable, friendly and reliable. The decision to build an
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integrated brand for both PC services and home theater installation was based on customer research and was more
cost-efficient than building multiple brands.

The international segment is among the largest retail advertisers in Canada and advertises through multiple
channels, including newspaper, television, direct mailings and radio. During fiscal 2006, the international segment
completed the brand transition to The Source By Circuit City™.

Supply Chain

The company has a vertically-integrated supply chain organization encompassing logistics; distribution and
warchousing; inventory management; space planning; and lifecycle process re-engineering. Due to this structural
alignment, the company expects, over time, to be able to identify and react rapidly to changes in consumer demand
as well as reduce the time from buying decision through replenishment and display of the product at the point of
sale. The company is in the process of upgrading its merchandising, marketing and supply chain information
systems, which will enable additional improvements and efficiencies in processes.

As a retailer primarily of branded consumer electronics that relies upon its ability to offer consumers a
comprehensive and attractive assortment of merchandise and services, Circuit City depends upon strong and stable
supplier relationships. During fiscal 2008, the domestic segment’s five largest suppliers accounted for
approximately 47 percent of merchandise purchased. The major suppliers were Sony, Hewlett-Packard, Samsung,
Toshiba and Canon USA. The international segment’s five largest suppliers accounted for approximately 35 percent
of its merchandise purchased and were Acer, Rogers Wireless, Apple, Hewlett-Packard and Ingram Micro.

The loss or disruption in supply from any one of these major suppliers could have a material adverse effect
on the company’s revenue and earnings. Circuit City has no indication that any of its major suppliers will
discontinue selling merchandise to the company. The company has not experienced significant difficulty in
maintaining satisfactory sources of supply and generally expects that adequate sources of supply will continue to
exist for the types of merchandise sold in its stores.

At February 29, 2008, the domestic segment operated six automated regional electronics distribution
centers; one smaller automated distribution center that primarily handles large non-conveyable products, such as big
screen televisions; and one import consolidation and distribution center. In fiscal 2010, the company plans to open
a new distribution center that will replace two facilities. The new center will provide additional capacity to support
new stores and direct channel growth.

Most products are shipped from manufacturers directly to the distribution centers. Circuit City believes that
the use of distribution centers enables it to efficiently distribute a broad selection of merchandise to its stores,
reduce inventory levels at individual stores, benefit from volume purchasing and maintain inventory control. Some
products are received directly from the manufacturer by the stores in order to reduce costs and time-to-shelf.

The international segment’s stores are replenished primarily through one automated distribution center in
Barrie, Ontario, Canada,

Information Technology
The company is undertaking a series of critical initiatives designed to transform its information technology

(IT) systems and organization. Through this multi-year process, the I'T organization will

» utilize IT solutions available in the marketplace with minimal customization, resulting in a more
flexible infrastructure to reduce costs;

¢ develop strong partnerships with IT vendors, providing a deeper pool of talent, more flexible resources
and access to expertise in retail systems; and

* reduce lifetime costs and mitigate risks through simplification.
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Late in fiscal 2007, the company consolidated the IT organizations that supported Circuit City’s domestic
segment Superstores, direct channel and international segment. The change eliminated duplication of processes and
allowed the unified IT organization to build solutions that serve the company’s multi-channel needs. In fiscal 2008,
the company entered into an agreement with IBM to outsource its IT infrastructure operations. Areas that IBM
manages for Circuit City include data center operations, store support services, e-commerce hosting operations,
service desk operations, network management, network services, desktop support, enterprise systems management
and IT security administration.

The domestic segment’s in-store point-of-sale (POS) systems maintain a record of all transactions and
allow management to track performance by region, store and store Associate on a near real-time basis. The
information gathered by the systems supports automatic replenishment of in-store inventory from the regional
distribution centers and is incorporated into product buying decisions. The in-store POS systems are integrated with
the company’s e-commerce Web site. This integration provides the capability for in-store pickup of merchandise
ordered online and allows for in-store ordering of merchandise for shipment directly to the customer’s home. As
part of an effort to eliminate complex, custom-developed information systems, the domestic segment began
deployment of a new POS system to a limited number of locations during fiscal 2007. The new POS system is
more flexible and scalable in support of the company’s new store growth and other initiatives; allows for easier and
faster training; provides enhanced data security; and enables additional capabilities for services and in-store pickup
of merchandise. At February 29, 2008, the company had deployed the new POS system to 26 percent of its
domestic segment Superstores. As part of the focus on slowing the volume of changes that are introduced to the
stores, the company has decided to slow deployment of the new POS system. A more deliberate rollout will ensure
the POS conversion processes are effective, thereby minimizing disruption to the stores.

For the international segment, each of the retail stores has one or more computers that serve as POS
terminals and are linked to the operational headquarters. This information network provides detailed sates and
margin information on a daily basis, updates the customer database and acts as a monitor of individual store
performance. The POS systems also are linked directly to a system used to automatically replenish a store’s stock
as inventory is sold.

The company has implemented new data warehousing capabilities that will improve internal processes,
streamline applications and allow more timely analysis of data for the domestic segment. In fiscal 2007, the
domestic segment began implementing an extensive suite of systems, the majority of which are provided by Oracle
Retail, to transform its merchandising, supply chain, planning and marketing processes. The systems
implementation, known internally as the merchandising systems transformation (MST), is expected to enhance
speed, flexibility, visibility and optimization across all channels and better integrate financial, assortment and space
planning with forecasting and replenishment. The rollout will be a series of discrete system releases, and each can
deliver benefits upon implementation. The new systems are designed to allow the company to collaborate with its
vendors and optimize pricing and space allocation in its stores. During fiscal 2008, the company implemented six
modules of the new merchandising systems.

Competition

The consumer electronics retail industry is highly competitive. Competitors include
e other consumer electronics retailers,

* discount retailers,

* warehouse club retailers,

* home office retailers,

* [nternet-based retailers and

e direct-to-consumer alternatives.

Discount and warehouse club retailers continue to increase consumer electronics offerings, particularly of
entry-level and less complex products. In addition, many of the company’s vendors and suppliers have opened retail
store locations and increased their direct sales to consumers. The company’s competitors may offer products and
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services at lower prices; promote products and services more aggressively; offer more attractive financing; and
receive more favorable product allocations than the company does. Any of these actions could adversely affect the
company’s sales and profit margin.

In response, Circuit City continues to build a differentiated offering based primarily on the company's
growth pillars of home entertainment, services and multi-channel integration. Circuit City's domestic segment
differentiates itself from competitors by offering a high level of customer service; competitive prices; complete
product and service assortments; financing alternatives; and the option of multi-channel shopping. The international
segment differentiates itself from other consumer electronics retailers in Canada through its range of products and
its service orientation.

Acquisition of InterTAN, Inc.

In May 2004, Circuit City completed its acquisition of InterTAN, Inc. for cash consideration of $259.3
million, which includes transaction costs and is net of cash acquired of $30.6 million. In addition to giving Circuit
City a greater product-sourcing capability and the ability to accelerate the offering of private-label merchandise to
its customers, the acquisition of InterTAN gave Circuit City its first presence in the Canadian market. For
information regarding the company’s risks associated with the international segment, see Forward-Looking
Statements included in Item 7, Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of
Operations, and Translation of Financial Results included in Item 7A, Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures
about Market Risk, of this annual report on Form 10-K.

In February 2007, the board of directors authorized management to explore strategic alternatives for
InterTAN, Inc., which could include the sale of the operation.

Intellectual Property

The company’s principal trademarks and service marks, which are “Circuit City,” “firedog,” “The Source
By Circuit City,” “Circuit City Advantage,” “the city,” “24/24 Pickup Guarantee” and “simplicity guaranteed,”
either have been registered or have trademark applications pending with the United States Patent and Trademark
Office and with the trademark registries of various foreign jurisdictions. The company’s rights in these trademarks
and service marks continue for as long as they are used. The company believes that the “Circuit City” name and the
circle logo design have significant value and are important to its business. The company also owns various
trademarks used with private-label consumer electronics designed and manufactured by third parties for Circuit
City. The company has also filed a patent application for a system and method of guided sales using a tablet
personal computer.

The company has trademark applications pending in both the United States and Canada for “The Source By
Circuit City.” The international segment also operated one store under the license for Battery Plus® until the third
quarter of fiscal 2008. The company’s InterTAN subsidiary formerly licensed marks from RadioShack Corporation
to operate retail consumer electronics outlets under the RadioShack® name in Canada. All stores formerly operated
under license from RadioShack Corporation were re-branded during fiscal 2006.

Seasonality
Like many retailers, Circuit City's revenues are typically greatest during the fourth fiscal quarter because it
includes the majority of the holiday selling season. A corresponding pre-season inventory build during the third
fiscal quarter is typically associated with this higher sales period.
Working Capital
The company funds capital expenditures and working capital needs through available cash and cash
equivalents and landlord reimbursements for store construction. In addition, the company has a $1.3 billion asset-

based credit facility available for working capital, letters of credit, capital expenditures, and other general corporate
purposes. Additional discussion of Circuit City’s Liquidity and Capital Resources is included in Item 7,
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations, of this annual report on
Form 10-K.

Sale of Private-Label Finance Operation

In May 2004, the company completed the sale of its private-label finance operation, comprised of its
private-label and co-branded Visa credit card programs, to Chase Card Services. The company entered into a
Consumer Credit Card Program Agreement under which Chase Card Services is offering private-label and co-
branded credit cards to new and existing customers. In October 2007, the company entered into an amendment to
the agreement to extend the term of the agreement from seven years to eight years and modified various financial
terms, Circuit City is compensated under the program agreement primarily based on the number of new accounts
opened less promotional financing costs. The net results from the program agreement are included in net sales on
the consolidated statements of operations.

Discontinued Operations

On January 28, 2007, Rogers Wireless Inc. terminated its agreement with InterTAN Canada Ltd. with
respect to the operation of the Rogers Plus® stores in the international segment. Results from the Rogers Plus®
stores are presented as results from discontinued operations on the consolidated statements of operations.

The company closed a domestic segment operation in fiscal 2007 that previously had been held for sale.
The company sold a domestic segment subsidiary, MusicNow, LLC, in fiscal 2006. Results from these operations
are presented as results from discontinued operations on the consolidated statements of operations.

Available Information

Circuit City makes available, free of charge on its Web site, its annual reports on Form 10-K, quarterly
reports on Form 10-Q, current reports on Form 8-K and any amendments to those reports as soon as practicable
after electronically filing the material with or furnishing the material to the Securities and Exchange Commission.
These documents may be viewed by visiting the company’s investor information Web site at
http://investor.circuitcity.com and selecting the “SEC Filings” lir}k under the “Investor Information™ header.

The company also makes available, free of charge on its Web site, the charters of the Audit Committee,
Nominating and Governance Committee, and Compensation and Personnel Committee as well as the global code of
business conduct and the corporate governance guidelines adopted by the board of directors, These documents may
be viewed by visiting the investor information Web site at http://investor.circuitcity.com, and selecting the desired
information under the “Corporate Governance” header. The company intends to satisfy any disclosure obligations
with respect to amendments or waivers of the global code of business conduct by posting the information on the
company’s investor Web site.

Copies of any of the above-referenced documents will also be made available, free of charge, upon written
request to:

Circuit City Stores, Inc.
Investor Relations Department
9950 Mayland Drive
Richmond, Virginia 23233

References to the company’s Web site do not constitute incorporation by reference of the information
contained on the Web site, and the information contained on the Web site is not part of this document.

Item 1A. Risk Factors,

Our business is influenced by many factors that are difficult to predict, involve risks or uncertainties that
may materially affect actual results and are often beyond our control. Understanding how these factors may affect
our business is important to understanding information about the.company in this annual report on Form 10-K and
our other filings and releases. Our discussion below contains “forward-looking statements,” as discussed in Item 7,
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations (MD&A). You should
read the discussion below in conjunction with our MD&A, and the consolidated financial statements and related
notes included in this report.

We face intense, multi-channel competition from a variety of competitors that could negatively impact our
financial performance.

In order to achieve profitable results, we must compete successfully in the consumer electronics industry
against large specialty retailers, discount or warehouse club retailers, home office retailers, Internet-based retailers,
direct-to-consumer alternatives and local or regional retailers. Many of our vendors and suppliers have opened
retail store locations and increased their direct sales to consumers. Because of the size and strong performance of
some of our competitors, they may promote merchandise more aggressively and offer more attractive financing and
discount prices for extended periods of time, which could adversely affect our profit margin. If we cannot respond
adequately to these multiple sources and types of competition, it could adversely impact customer traffic, market
share and overall financial performance.

If we are not successful in growing our services platform and increasing sales of services and accessories,
then our margin and revenues could be adversely impacted.

Our strategy includes margin and revenue growth from services, including home theater installation and
services for personal computers. We also are focused on increasing revenues through accessory attachments, where
we provide the customer with key products as well as cables, connectors, brackets, batteries, chargers, stands,
mounts and other accessories. If we are unable to increase the rates at which our customers purchase these services
and accessories through our retail execution, then our margin rates could be negatively impacted by decreases in
average retail prices. In addition, our revenues could be adversely impacted as a larger number of competitors are
able to sell products online and through discount retail channels.

Future losses may adversely affect our financial condition and operating cash flows.

We had a net loss of $319.9 million for the year ended February 29, 2008, and a net loss of $8.3 million for
the year ended February 28, 2007. These results have had a negative impact on our financial condition and
operating cash flows. We also expect to continue to incur losses for our 2009 fiscal year, although we believe that
our turnaround initiatives will lead to sustained profitability. Qur primary sources of liquidity include borrowing
under our credit facility, available cash and cash equivalents, expected reductions in net-owned inventory and
landlord reimbursements for store construction. Potential additional sources of cash in our 2009 fiscal year could
include proceeds on the sale of a subsidiary and an income tax refund due to the carryback of a portion of our net
operating loss for the 2008 fiscal year.

We expect that our primary sources of liquidity will be sufficient to fund capital expenditures and working
capital through fiscal 2009 and for the foreseeable future. However, we cannot provide any assurance that our
business will return to profitability and that we will not incur additional losses beyond our current expectations. A
continued trend of operating losses may have an adverse affect on our financial condition and operating cash flows.

Significant changes in our relationships with key suppliers may adversely impact our business.

The products that we sell originate from a wide variety of domestic and international suppliers. During
fiscal 2008, the domestic segment’s five largest suppliers accounted for approximately 47 percent of its
merchandise purchased, and the international segment’s five largest suppliers accounted for approximately 35
percent of its merchandise purchased. While we believe that our relationships with our key suppliers are strong,
any vendor may choose to modify the terms of the relationship that it has with us, due to general economic
concerns or due to concerns relating to the vendor or to us, at any time. A significant unfavorable change in our
relationships with key suppliers could materially adversely affect our revenue and gross profit. In addition, any
significant change in the payment terms that we have with our key suppliers could adversely affect our financial
condition and liquidity.
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The failure to control our cost and expense structure could have a material adverse impact on our
profitability and earnings.

The average selling prices of key products, including flat panel and digital televisions, have decreased
significantly, which makes it more challenging for us to maintain or grow profit margins on these products. Many
of our competitors have been able to teverage sales growth and maintain efficient cost structures. As part of our
turnaround efforts, we have changed our retail standard operating procedures and modified our store management
structure. As a result, we have been able to reduce our expense structure to more competitive levels. However, we
will need to continue to control our cost and expense structure as we focus on retail execution. Any unplanned
increases in labor rates, advertising and marketing expenses or indirect spending could delay us from achieving
sustained profitability or otherwise have a material adverse impact on operating results. ’

The unexpected loss of one or more members of our executive management team could adversely affect our
business.

We have experienced numerous changes in our executive management team in the past several years,
including a new chief financial officer and two new executive vice presidents in fiscal 2008. We belicve that these
individuals understand our operational strategies, including the importance of our turnaround initiatives and the
need to continue to motivate our Associates. We have entered into employment agreements with each of these
individuals, but we cannot make any assurances that we can retain these individuals for the period necessary for us
to return to sustained profitability. Competition for personnel in our industry is strong and the ability to retain key
employees during a turnaround can be difficult. The unexpected future loss of services of one or more members of
our executive management team could have an adverse effect on our business. If we are unable to retain key
executive officers, then it may be difficult for us to maintain a competitive position within the industry or to
implement strategic changes in the future.

We may not be able to attract and retain qualified Associates at all levels within the company, which could
adversely affect our sales performance, cost structure and competitive position within the industry.

We must recruit and retain a large number of qualified Associates in order to perform successfully. We face
intense competition for Associates at all levels of the company, and we compete in job markets nationally. In
addition, many of our Associates are in entry-tevel or part-time positions, which typically have high levels of
turnover. Our ability to maintain appropriate staffing levels while controlling labor costs is subject to a number of
external factors such as the quality of the labor market in our trade areas, unemployment levels, prevailing wages,
changing demographics, health insurance costs and state labor and employment requirements. If we are unable to
attract and retain qualified Associates, then our sales performance may be adversely impacted or our labor costs
may increase significantly. We have taken steps to bring our hourly wages in line with the marketplace, which
could have an adverse impact on morale, productivity, recruiting and retention.

Failure to effectively manage our inventory levels could adversely affect our financial results.

We procure merchandise from a variety of sources and methods, including new and existing vendors,
reverse auctions, in-house global sourcing and direct relationships with manufacturers. We depend on strong and
stable supplier relationships and accurate forecasts of customer demand. Reduced consumer spending or lack of
consumer interest in our products could lead to excess inventory levels; alternatively, if we do not have adequate
inventory to respond to customer demand for products, we may lose sales to competitors. Additionally, we may
inaccurately forecast product life cycles or end-of-life products, leaving us with excess inventory. As a result, we
may be forced to lower our prices, adversely impacting margins and financial results.

We may be unable to relocate successfully or open new stores in desirable locations, which could adversely
affect our ability to increase sales and achieve profitable growth.

Our store revitalization program is an important part of our business plan. We have a significant number of
stores in older formats or in locations where the trade area has shifted away from our target market. We continue to
refine our store prototypes and seek real estate in smaller trade areas and urban locations in addition to larger
markets. When we open new stores in markets where we already have a presence, our existing locations may
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experience a decline in sales as a result. For our store revitalization program to be successful, we must identify and
lease favorable store sites, construct the building, and hire and train Associates for the new location. In many areas,
we face intense competition from other retailers for desirable store locations. Construction, environmental, zoning
and real estate delays may negatively impact store openings and increase costs and capital expenditures. We cannot
be certain that new or relocated stores will produce the anticipated sales or return on investment or that existing
stores will not be adversely affected by new or expanded competition in their market areas.

We may not be able to successfully execute our multi-channel marketing strategy, which could adversely
affect our growth, revenues and margins.

Our direct-to-consumer business has grown rapidly since the launch of our Web site in 1999. We have
invested heavily in marketing our in-store pickup process for Web orders, including our “24/24 Pickup Guarantee,”
and we have a catalog offering that allows consumers to order products online or by phone. These efforts are
intended to attract new customers and increase sales from existing customers, but they could result in customers
making fewer trips to our brick-and-mortar stores. While we continue to focus on strategies that provide enhanced
shopping capabilities for our Web site customers, it may be more challenging for us to increase sales of extended
warranties, services and accessories as customers move toward greater online shopping. In addition, competitive
pricing on the Internet and the ability of online customers to perform better price comparisons could negatively
impact traffic, average purchase amount and profit margins.

Our business is heavily dependent upon information systems, which require upgrades that may be expensive
or difficult to implement, and which could result in higher costs and business disruption.

Our information systems include in-store point-of-sale systems that provide information used to track sales
performance by Associates, inventory replenishment, e-commerce product availability, product margin information
and customer information. In addition, we have or are implementing systems for data warehousing; merchandising
and supply chain; planning; and marketing. These systems are complex and require integration with each other and
with business processes. We have outsourced a large portion of our information technology infrastructure
operations to IBM. If IBM does not respond to our needs or provide satisfactory levels of service under this
arrangement, or if we encounter difficulty implementing new systems or maintaining and upgrading current
systems, then our business operations could be disrupted and our expenses could increase.

Consumers may not upgrade televisions or buy related home theater products, accessories or services at the
rate that we expect during the next few years, which would adversely affect our growth, revenues and
margins.

Because of the transition from analog to digital television broadcasting, we have invested significant
inventory, store space and labor in the digital television category. We expect a large number of consumers to
replace analog television sets in the next few years and to purchase related home theater products, accessories and
services at the same time. Set-top converters and other technology will permit consumers to continue to use analog
televisions even after broadcasting is converted to a digital signal. As a result, if consumers do not embrace digital
television at the levels that we expect, our growth, revenues and margins may be negatively impacted.

General economic conditions or a decline in consumer discretionary spending may adversely impact our
sales in a disproportionate fashion.

We sell products and services that consumers tend to view as conveniences rather than necessities. As a
result, our results of operations may be more sensitive to changes in general economic conditions that impact
consumer spending, including discretionary spending. Future economic conditions such as employment levels,
business conditions, interest rates, energy costs and tax rates could reduce consumer spending or change consumer
purchasing habits. A general reduction in the level of consumer spending or our inability to respond to shifting
consumer attitudes regarding products, store locations and other factors could adversely affect our growth and
profitability.
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Our business is subject to quarterly fluctuations and seasonality, which leaves our financial and operating
results vulnerable to temporary unfavorable conditions that may impact key selling periods.

The most significant portion of our revenue is generated during the period that begins with Thanksgiving,
includes the holiday shopping season and continues until the Super Bowl. The majority of this period occurs in the
company’s fourth fiscal quarter. As a result, any factors negatively affecting us during this time of year, including
adverse weather or unfavorable economic conditions, could have a material adverse impact on our revenue and
profitability for the entire year. In addition, other key holiday weekends during the year, such as Memorial Day,
Fourth of July and Labor Day, bring disproportionately high revenues for the quarter in which they fall, relative to
non-holiday weekends, and also leave us somewhat vulnerable to adverse impacts from temporary unfavorable
conditions. :

We may not be able to anticipate and respond to changes in consumer demand, preferences and patterns,
which could adversely affect our sales and profitability.

The consumer electronics industry is subject to rapid technological change, obsolescence and price erosion.
Our success depends on our ability to anticipate and respond to consumer demand and preferences for new items.
The introduction and availability of new products are often controlled by manufacturers and may be subject to the
cooperation of third parties such as television broadcasters and wireless providers. We may be adversely impacted
by limited quantities of new products. The introduction of new technologies may negatively impact sales of existing
products. Significant deviations from the projected demand for products that we sell could result in lost sales or
lower margins due to the need to mark down excess inventory.

Our innovation and strategy efforts may fail to increase sales, improve margins or enhance the customer
experience and may not result in any meaningful differentiation against our competitors, which could
adversely affect our ability to achieve profitable growth.

We have instituted an innovation process to define and test strategic initiatives to grow business in key
areas and to identify future areas of growth for us. As a result of this innovation process, we have made large
investments in training, information systems and store formats that could prove to be unsustainable or unprofitable
when rolled out on a national scale. This could negatively impact our expense structure and profitability. Our
failure to successfully implement our strategic vision or the occurrence of any of the following events could have a
material adverse impact on our business:

¢ Inability to provide a superior customer experience in our stores that is differentiated from our
competitors

¢ Failure to leverage our assets to create new revenue streams and profit

* Failure to identify customer needs and desires and to tailor our shopping experience in a way that meets
these needs

* Inability to grow revenue through in-home sales and service offerings

* Lack of core competencies, talent and systems needed to sustain growth and support innovation efforts

We rely on foreign sources for a significant portion of our merchandise, so disruptions in countries where
our goods are produced or international trade or transportation issues could adversely affect availability of
key products and result in associated declines in revenues.

We depend on products produced outside the United States and Canada. We could be adversely affected by
a number of risks associated with production and delivery of those products into our market areas, including

e economic or political instability, natural disasters or public health emergencies in countries where our
suppliers are located;

* increases in shipping costs;
transportation delays or interruptions, particularly as they may affect seasonal periods; and

¢ changes in laws or taxation policies as they may affect the import and export of goods.
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Failure to maintain effective systems of internal and disclosure control could have a material adverse effect
on the company’s results of operations and financial condition.

Effective internal and disclosure controls are necessary for us to provide reliable financial reports,
effectively prevent fraud and operate successfully as a public company. If we cannot provide reliable financial
reports or prevent fraud, our reputation and operating results would be harmed. As part of our ongoing monitoring,
we may discover material weaknesses or significant deficiencies in our internal control over financial reporting
under standards adopted by the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board that require remediation.

A material weakness is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal control over financial
reporting, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the annual or interim financial
statements will not be prevented or detected on a timely basis. During the preparation of our quarterly report on
Form 10-Q, we determined that there was a material weakness in our internal control over financial reporting as of
November 30, 2007, arising from the application of certain complex provisions of Statement of Financial
Accounting Standard (SFAS) No. 109, “Accounting for Income Taxes,” including the calculation of the valuation
allowance against deferred tax assets. We have remediated this material weakness as of February 29, 2008.

We cannot assure that other internal or disclosure control deficiencies might not be identified in the future.
Any failure to maintain effective controls or timely effect any necessary improvement of our internal and disclosure
controls could, among other things, result in losses from fraud or error, harm our reputation or cause investors to
lose confidence in our reported financial information, all of which could have a material adverse effect on our
results of operations and financial condition.

Item 1B. Unresolved Staff Comments.

None.

Page 16 of 84




Item 2. Properties.

The following table summarizes the geographic location of the company’s retail stores and dealer outlets
at February 29, 2008.

Domestic Segment . International Segment
Other ‘ Company-  Dealer
Superstores Stores Total Owned QOutlets Total

Alabama 9 - 9 Alberta 47 50 97
Arizona 15 - 15 British Columbia 53 35 88
Arkansas 4 - 4 Manitoba 13 15 28
California 92 - 92 New Brunswick 12 9 21
Colorado 17 - 17 Newfoundland 7 13 20
Connecticut 10 1 11 Northwest
Delaware 3 - 3 Territories 1 3 4
Florida 53 - 53 Nova Scotia 19 8 27
Georgia 24 - 24 Nunavut - 1 1
Hawaii 1 - 1 Ontario 217 77 294
Idaho 2 - 2 Prince Edward
Illinois 32 1 33 Island 3 4 7
Indiana 12 i 13 Quebec 115 44 159
Kansas 3 - 3 Saskatchewan 14 17 31
Kentucky 7 - 7 Yukon 1 1 2
Louisiana 12 - 12 502 277 779
Maine 3 - 3
Maryland 18 - 18
Massachusetts 18 2 20
Michigan 21 2 23
Minnesota 9 - 9 The following table summarizes the lease expiration dates
Mississippi 5 - 5 of the domestic segment’s active stores at February 29, 2008.
Missouri 12 - 12
Nebraska 1 - 1
Nevada 6 - 6 Fiscal Year of Lease Expiration Stores
New Hampshire 6 - 6 2009 through 2013 71
New Jersey 19 - 19 2014 through 2018 338
New Mexico 2 - 2 2019 through 2023 269
New York 35 - 35 2024 through 2025 _l10
North Carolina 21 - 21 688
Ohio 26 2 28 Company-owned stores _35
Oklahoma 6 - 6 Total stores at February 29, 2008 693
Oregon 7 - 7
Pennsylvania 30 - 30
Puerto Rico 2 - 2
Rhode Island 1 - |
South Carolina 10 - 10
Tennessee 14 - 14
Texas 61 - 61
Utah 5 - 5
Vermont 1 - 1
Virginia 23 - 23
Washington 12 1 13
West Virginia 4 - 4
Wisconsin 7 i 8
Wyoming 1 - ]

682 11 693
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Of the domestic segment’s stores open at February 29, 2008, the company owns 5 stores and leases the
remaining 688 stores. All eight of the domestic segment’s distribution centers are leased. The company owns one
of its eight domestic segment repair centers and leases one building for its call center. For its corporate
headquarters in Richmond, Virginia, the company leases two buildings and owns some of the land. The company
leases space for all warehouse, repair and office facilities except as otherwise noted.

InterTAN owns a 402,000 square-foot building containing office and warehouse space and a retail
location in Barrie, Ontario, Canada, where the headquarters of the international segment are located. With the
exception of a retail store located on this property, the international segment’s retail operations are conducted in
leased facilities. The dealer outlets included in the preceding table are independent retail businesses that operaie
under their own trade names but are permitted, under dealer agreements, to purchase any of the products sold by
The Source By Circuit City>™.

For information regarding the company’s lease obligations, see Note 10, Lease Commitments, of the
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements, included in Item 8, Financial Statements and Supplementary Data, of
this annual report on Form 10-K.

Item 3. Legal Proceedings.

Except as described below, there are no material pending legal proceedings to which the company,
including its subsidiaries, is a party or of which its property is the subject.

On April 4, 2007, the plaintiffs in Daniel Weidler et al. v. Circuit City Stores, Inc. filed a class action
lawsuit against the company in the Superior Court of Los Angeles. The lawsuit alleges two causes of actions for
violations of the California Fair Employment and Housing Act and wrongful termination in violation of public
policy. The lawsuit specifically alleges that certain employment terminations by the company constituted age
discrimination because they disparately impacted workers over the age of 40. The company continues to evaluate
the allegations and its defenses and intends to defend itself vigorously. At this time, the lawsuit is in its preliminary
stages, and the company’s liability arising from the lawsuit could vary widely. Based on information currently
available, the company believes it will not have a significant impact on results of operations, financial condition or
cash flows.

Item 4. Submission of Matters to a Vote of Security Holders.

No matter was submitted to a vote of security holders during the fourth quarter of the fiscal year ended
February 29, 2008.
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PARTII

Item 5. Market for Registrant’s Common Equity, Related Stockholder Matters and Issuer Purchases of
Equity Securities.

The common stock of Circuit City Stores, Inc. is traded on the New York Stock Exchange under the
symbol CC. As of March 31, 2008, there were approximately 4,800 shareholders of record of common stock. On
April 17, 2008, the common stock closed at $4.55.

Market Price of Common Stock Dividends

Fiscal 2008 Fiscal 2007 Fiscal Fiscal
Quarter High Low High Low 2008 2007
| 3 ST $19.60 $15.28 $31.54  §23.00 $0.0400 $0.0175
20 e $17.97 $10.07 $31.30 $22.19 $0.0400 $0.0175
Ard e $11.00 $ 5.35 $29.31  $22.32 $0.0400 $0.0400
GHH oo $ 824 § 347 $25.52 $18.25 $0.0400  $0.0400
Total..ooreieiieicee e, $0.1600  $0.1150

The company has historically paid quarterly dividends and currently expects to continue to pay
comparable cash dividends in the future. However, changes in the declaration and payment of dividends will
depend on many factors, including the company’s earnings, capital requirements, financial condition, restrictions
in any existing indebtedness and other factors, and are at the discretion of the company’s board of directors.
Information concerning restrictions on the payment of dividends is included in Note 8, Debt, of the Notes to
Consolidated Financial Statements in Item 8, Financial Statements and Supplementary Data.

The foliowing table provides information about common stock repurchases by or on behalf of the
company during the quarter ended February 29, 2008:
Total Number Approximate Dollar

of Shares Value of Shares

Total Number Average Purchased as that May Yet Be

of Shares - Price Part of Publicly Purchased Under

Purchased™ Paid Announced the Program™
(in thousands) __ per Share™ Program (in millions)

December | — December 31, 2007............. - - - $233.7
January 1 —January 31, 2008...........ccoocon 1.7 $4.09 - $233.7
February 1 — February 29, 2008................. 1.7 $4.94 - $233.7

Total fiscal 2008 fourth quarter................. 34 $4.52 -

@ These columns reflect shares of common stock withheld to pay tax withholding obligations for employees in connection with the vesting
of stock awards. These shares are not considered part of the share repurchase program described in (b) below.

® In January 2003, the company announced that the board of directors had authorized the repurchase of up to $200 million of common
stock. In June 2004, the company announced a $200 million increase in its stock repurchase authorization, raising the repurchase capacity to
$400 million. In March 20035, the company announced a $400 million increase in its stock repurchase authorization, raising the repurchase
capacity to $800 million. In June 2006, the company announced a $400 million increase in its stock repurchase authorization, raising the
repurchase capacity to $1.2 billion. There is no expiration date under the authorization. At March 31, 2008, $233.7 million remained
available for share repurchases under the share repurchase authorization.
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The following graph compares the cumulative total return to the shareholders of the company for the last
five fiscal years with the total return on the S&P 500 Index and the S&P 500 Retailing Index, assuming an
investment of $100.00 in shares of the company’s common stock on February 28, 2003, and the reinvestment of
dividends.

Comparison of Cumulative Five Year Total Return

$600

$500

$400 -

$300 4

$200

$100 ¢

$0 T T T T
2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008
== Circuit City Stores, Inc. == S&P 500 Index —fr~S&P 500 Retailing Index

Fiscal Year 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008
Circuit City Stores, Inc. ...c.cccvnenine $100.00 $255.20 $358.63  $553.87  $440.15  $104.39
S&P 500 Index.....ccovovviininnns $100.00 $138.52 $i48.19 $160.63 $179.86  $173.39
S&P 500 Retailing Index ............... $100.00 $156.38 $173.07 $187.81  $207.00  $157.17
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Item 6. Selected Financial Data, Fiscal Year
2008 2007 2006 2005 2004

CONSOLIDATED SUMMARY OF NET (LOSS) EARNINGS FROM CONTINUING OPERATIONS
{Amounis in millions except per share data)
INEE SALES ..o e et s e e $11,744  $12.430 $11,514 $10414  $ 9,857
GroSS PrOfIL oo s eseess e rsrnenes B 2,426 52928 $ 2,810 $2552 §2284
Selling, general and administrative expenses .. $ 2770 $2842 $ 239 $2471 §2320
Impairment of goedwill.... $ 26 § 92 3 - 35 - % -
Operating (loss) income .......... . e 3 T 8 (53 s 215 $ 87 3 )
(Loss) earnings from conunumg operallons before incometaxes... $ (354) $ 220 § 233 $ 97 3 (1)
Net (loss) earnings Srom continuing Operations.....cceecene. % 320 § 0 (10) 147 $ 6l $ H
(Loss) earnings from continuing operations per share:

BasiC. v s snssesss s 3 (1L93) 8 (0.06)  § 0.83 $ 0.31 $ (0.00)

DIILEA. ...ttt e et b eeeae $ (195) 5 (006) § 0.82 $ 0.3] $ (0.00}
CONSOLIDATED SUMMARY OF NET (LOSS) EARNINGS FROM CONTINUING OPERATIONS PERCENTAGES
(% of net sales except effective tax rate)
GrOSS PIOTIL ovveicee e e esbe s aesers e e 20,7 230 244 24.5 232
Operating (10S8) INCOME ....iviiiricevirnerrssiesesie e rerssre s (3.2) 0.0 19 0.8 (0.0)
(Loss) earnings from continuing operations before income taxes ... 3.0 0.2 2.0 0.9 0.0
EffECHVE LAX FALE .veovoveereoonsverresriesesemneesece e ssssassscssereesesecasnressnes 9.1%8  150.1® 36.8 37.5 36.5
Net (loss) earnings from continuing operations.......cc.ccceeeievesvenres (2.7) 0. 1.3 0.6 (0.0)
CONSOLIDATED SUMMARY BALANCE SHEETS
{Amounts in millions)
TOtal CUITENT ASSRES .. vvtiveeeeieeeeeesrieeeee e snesiemeensesteseereanssssssneeeee § 2,440 $ 2,884 $ 2833 $2745 $ 3,006
Property and equipment, Net.........ccvvvevcinviinenirscnscrsmennee. 3 1,037 8 921 3 830§ 727  § 665
Goodwill and other intangible assets, HEt.....ociivcrecivenmverninene:. 3 136§ 141 $ 254 $ 247 8§ -
TOAL ASSEES ..vvvveieieeererecesiseie e e re st et st se s et rm e btes b eme s $ 3,746 $ 4,007 $ 4069 $3840 $ 3,808
Total current liabilities .. . $ 1606 351,714 $1622 31315 §$ 1,217
Long-term debt, excludmg current mstal]mems ............................... $ 5 § 50 $ 52 $ 20 § 33
Other long-term Habilities ..c.ov.v.oeiieeviccincei v $ 580§ 452 $ 440 § 425 0§ 341
Total HabiliIes .......coeivvieririeeece st st s an $ 2,243 32216 $2114 %1760 3 1,592
Total stockholders’ equity .....cvc.oicvevvivenecriierecsverersssneinnee. 9 1,503 § 1,791 $ 1955 52080 § 2216
Total liabilities and stockholders” equity...........ococoeviecnrviervneene. § 3,746 3 4,007 $4069 $3840 § 3,808
CONSOLIDATED SUMMARY OF CASH FLOWS FROM CONTINUING OPERATIONS
{Amounts in millions)
Depreciation and amoTZation ..........coweneccniesmessecesenens $ 188 S5 181 § 63 $ 153 % 198
Cash flow from operating activities of continuing operations.......... $ @6 % 316 § 365 538 0§ (126)
Purchases of property and equipment. ..., $ 325§ 286§ 254 $ 2601 & 176
OTHER DATA
Capital expenditures, net of landiord reimbursements® (in mittions)... § 226 $ 242 5 220 3 164 $ 127
Cash dividends per share paid.........cococoeeoveevienieecenccceninnsniirennr. 3 0,16 $0.115 $ 0.07 $ 007 % 007
Return on average stockholders’ equity (%) «covovvivervncrenees (19.6) (0.5) 7.3 2.8 (0.0}
Number of Associates of domestic segment........... 42,974 43,011 42,359 42,425 43211
Number of Associates of international segment 2,911 3071 3,648 3,521 -
Number of domestic segment retail stores.. 693 654 631 617 604
Number of international segment retail stores and dealer outlets..... 779 806 861 878 -

Results from the Rogers Plus® stores are presented as results from discontinued operations for all periods presented.

Consolidated results include results from InterTAN from the acquisition date, May 12, 2004,

See consolidated financial statements and accompanying notes, included in Item 8, Financial Statements and Supplementary Data. of this
annual report on Form 10-K.

@ 1n fiscal 2008 and fiscal 2007, the company recorded impairment charges of $26.0 million and $92.0 million, respectively, associated with
its international segment’s goodwill. The impairment charges are net deductible for tax purposes.

® During fiscal 2008, the company recorded a valuation allowance of $127.4 million against the net deferred tax assets of the U.S.
operations. Also during fiscal 2008, the company recorded a benefit of $36.1 million related to a change in its position regarding
repatriation of the undistributed earnings of its Canadian subsidiaries.

© The calculation of capilal expenditures, net of landlord reimbursements, includes accruals for capital expenditures and receivables for
landlord reimbursements.
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Item 7. Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations.

Overview

We are a leading specialty retailer of consumer electronics, home office products, entertainment software,
and related services. We have two reportable segments: our domestic segment and our international segment.

Our domestic segment is engaged in the business of selling brand-name and private-label consumer
electronics, personal computers, entertainment software, and related services in our stores in the United States and
via the Web at www.circuitcity.com and www.firedog.com. At February 29, 2008, the domestic segment operated
682 Superstores and 11 other stores in 158 U.S. media markets.

Our international segment, which is comprised of the operations of InterTAN, Inc., is engaged in the
business of selling private-label and brand-name consumer electronics in Canada. The international segment’s
headquarters are located in Barrie, Ontario, Canada, and it operates through retail stores and dealer outlets in
Canada primarily under the trade name The Source By Circuit City™™. At February 29, 2008, the international
segment conducted business through 779 retail stores and dealer outlets, which consisted of 502 company-owned
stores and 277 dealer outlets. The international segment also operates a Web site at www.thesource.ca. In February
2007, the board of directors authorized management to explore strategic alternatives for InterTAN, Inc., which
could include the sale of the operation.

Effective January 28, 2007, we returned the management of 92 Rogers Plus® stores to Rogers Wireless Inc.
Results from the Rogers Plus® stores are presented as results from discontinued operations in all periods presented.

Management’s Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) is designed to provide the reader of financial statements
with a narrative discussion of our results of operations; financial position, liquidity and capital resources; critical
accounting policies and significant estimates; and the impact of recently issued accounting standards. Our MD&A
is presented in eight sections:

. Executive Summary

. Critical Accounting Policies

. Results of Operations

. Recent Accounting Pronouncements

. Financial Condition

. Domestic Segment Superstore Revitalization Program
. Fiscal 2009 Outlook

. Forward-Looking Statements

This discussion should be read in conjunction with the Consolidated Financial Statements and
accompanying Notes included in Item 8, Financial Statements and Supplementary Data, as well as with Item 1A,
Risk Factors, included in this annual report on Form 10-K. All per share amounts in this discussion are presented
on a fully diluted basis.

The terms “Circuit City,” “the company,” “we,” “our” and “us” are used throughout this report and,
depending on the context of their use, may represent any of the following: the legal entity, Circuit City Stores,
Inc., a Virginia corporation, one of Circuit City’s operating segments or the entirety of Circuit City Stores, Inc. and
its consolidated subsidiaries.

Within the financial tables in this annual report on Form 10-K, certain columns and rows may not sum due
to the use of rounded numbers for disclosure purposes. Percentages presented are calculated from the underlying
whole-dollar amounts.

Executive Summary

Fiscal 2008 Performance Summary

. Net sales were $11.74 billion compared with $12.43 billion in the prior year, a decrease of 5.5
percent. Comparable store sales decreased 7.7 percent compared with a 5.8 percent increase in fiscal
2007. The fiscal 2008 sales decrease primarily reflects the domestic segment comparable store sales
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decline of 8.1 percent, partially offset by the net sales contribution of 40 net additional domestic
segment Superstores.

. The gross profit margin decreased by 291 basis points from fiscal 2007 to 20.7 percent of net sales
primarily due to decreases in domestic segment merchandise margin and extended warranty net sales
as well as an increase in shrink.

. Selling, general and administrative (SG&A) expenses as a percent of net sales increased 73 basis
points from fiscal 2007 to 23.6 percent of net sales, pnmarlly reflecting the overall deleveraging
impact of lower domestic segment sales.

. We recorded an impairment charge of $26.0 million, or 22 basis points of consolidated net sales,
assoctated with the international segment’s goodwill.

. The loss from continuing operations before income taxes was 3.0 percent of net sales in fiscal 2008.
Earnings from continuing operations before income taxes were 0.2 percent of net sales in fiscal 2007.
The decrease primarily results from declines in domestic segment comparable store sales and gross
profit margin.

. During fiscal 2008, we recorded a valuation allowance of $127.4 million against the net deferred tax
assets of our U.S. operations. Also during fiscal 2008, we recorded a benefit of $36.1 million related
to a change in our position regarding repatriation of the undistributed earnings of our Canadian
subsidiaries.

. The net loss from continuing operations was $321.4 million, or $1.95 per share, compared with $10.2
million, or 6 cents per share, in fiscal 2007.

Fiscal 2008 Significant Events

During fiscal 2008, we induced a lot of change in our organization that led to disappointing financial results
but that we believe ultimately positioned the company for future success.

As aresult of intensified gross margin pressures within the consumer electronics industry, in the fall of
2006 we launched efforts to accelerate the timing of initiatives that were developed to improve financial
performance for the domestic segment. These initiatives included retail transformation work, services growth,
multi-channel growth, price optimization, sourcing, inventory optimization and expense reductions. The
accelerated transformation efforts that we began in fiscal 2007 were largely implemented in fiscal 2008.

Qur retail transformation activities in fiscal 2008 included reducing the number of retail operating regions;
aligning pay bands in our stores; introducing a redefined store operating and staffing model; establishing regional
and district learning centers to support the process of change management in our stores; and implementing
simplified standard operating procedures in our stores. We believe that these changes were implemented too
quickly, resulting in lower sales and gross margins from lower close rates and a decline in attachments of
accessories, services and warranties to the products we sold.

Despite the difficulties that arose from our retail transformation activities, we were able to achieve progress
in other areas of our business.

We made significant progress in our four strategic growth pillars:

s Win in Home Entertainment. We capitalized on a strong flat panel television cycle, posting strong growth
in sales of large LCD televisions, which partially offset declines in older technologies such as tube and
projection televisions. Though our transformation activities negatively impacted our ability to attach
higher-margin accessories and services at the rate we saw in fiscal 2007, during the fourth quarter, we were
able to increase our TV basket size by 10 percent over the third quarter.

i
»  Services. We launched the firedog®" brand in September 2006 to assist customers with home theater
installations, consumer PC services and the convergence and integration of multiple technology products.
In fiscal 2008, we delivered PC services and home theater installation revenue growth of 29 percent from
the prior year to reach nearly $270 million in sales.

*  Multi-channel. Domestic segment direct channel sales grew 21 percent for the year, reaching $1.35 billion
for fiscal 2008. '

*  Real Estate. We delivered on our domestic segment Superstore opening plans for the year with 43
incremental Superstores and 18 relocated Superstores. During the year, we also launched a new store
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prototype, called the city™. The city™ has a smaller footprint, approximately 20,000 square feet, and
offers a differentiated and improved customer experience compared with our traditional stores. Of the
fiscal 2008 incremental and relocated openings, 21 were in the city'™ format. We also completed one full
remodel of an existing store into the new format. We expect to open 45 to 55 incremental and relocated
stores in fiscal 2009, virtually all in the city™ format.

Information Technology. We outsourced our information technology infrastructure, implemented six modules of
our new merchandising systems, and ended the fiscal year with 26 percent of domestic segment Superstores
operating on our new point-of-sale platform.

Expense Reductions. We continued our SG&A reduction activities with a focus on all layers of the business. We
measured the savings compared with our spending plan at the time that we made the decision to accelerate our
transformation initiatives and identified areas of spend to reduce. We planned to achieve savings of $150 million
and exceeded that target by $50 million, achieving approximately $200 million of savings compared with our
planned spending. These savings were partially offset by investments to support strategic initiatives, including
incremental and relocated stores and information technology.

Enhanced Liquidity. We enhanced liquidity in three primary steps. We amended and increased our asset-based
credit facility to $1.3 billion from $500 million. We reduced domestic segment net-owned inventory by $107
million. We also reduced our capital expenditures for fiscal 2008 by 11 percent compared with our originally
planned fiscal 2008 expenditures.

Strengthened Management Team. In fiscal 2008, we hired three experienced senior retail executives to execute the
next phase of the turnaround. These three executive vice presidents include the chief operating officer, chief
financial officer and head of new business development, including the city™ format stores, firedog™ services and
ongoing innovation work.

In fiscal 2009, we will continue to focus on our long-term strategy and transformation efforts. Our four
growth pillars of win in home entertainment, services, multi-channel and real estate serve as the foundation for our
strategic initiatives.

Critical Accounting Policies

Our consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with U.S. generally accepted
accounting principles. Preparation of financial statements requires us to make estimates and assumptions affecting
the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses and the disclosure of contingent assets and
liabilities. We use our historical experience and other relevant factors when developing our estimates and
assumptions, which we continually evaluate. Note 2, Summary of Significant Accounting Policies, of the Notes to
Consolidated Financial Statements, included in Item 8, Financial Statements and Supplementary Data, of this
annual report on Form 10-K includes a discussion of our significant accounting policies. The following accounting
policies are those we consider critical to an understanding of the consolidated financial statements because their
application places the most significant demands on our judgment. Qur financial results might have been different if
other assumptions had been used or other conditions had prevailed.

Inventory Valuation

We value our inventory using the average cost method and include the cost of freight from the vendor to
our distribution centers, or in the case of direct shipments, the cost of freight from the vendor to our stores. We
estimate the realizable value of inventory based on assumptions about forecasted consumer demand, market
conditions and obsolescence. If the estimated realizable value is less than cost, the inventory value is reduced to
its estimated realizable value through a markdown recorded against the cost of the inventory. If estimates
regarding consumer demand and market conditions are inaccurate or unexpected changes in technology affect
demand, it is possible that actual results could differ from recorded reserves. A 10 percent change in our
markdown reserve at February 29, 2008, would not be significant to the consolidated financial statements.

Our inventory loss reserve represents estimated physical inventory losses that have occurred since the last
physical inventory date. Independent physical inventory counts are taken on a regular basis to ensure that the
inventory reported in the consolidated financial statements is accurately stated. During the interim period between
physical inventory counts, we reserve for anticipated physical inventory losses on a location-by-location basis. Qur
inventory loss reserve contains uncertainties because the calculation requires management to make assumptions
and apply judgment regarding a number of factors, including current inventory loss trends. The loss reserve
recorded at February 29, 2008, represents estimated physical inventory losses for the interim period since the last
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independent physical count was performed. A 10 percent change in this estimate would not be significant to the
consolidated financial statements.

Goodwill

Goodwill is reported as a separate line item on our consolidated balance sheets. The balance in goodwill
was $118.0 million at February 29, 2008, and $121.8 million at February 28, 2007. We evaluate goodwill for
impairment on an annual basis and more frequently if events or circumstances indicate that goodwill may be
impaired, such as a significant adverse change in the business climate or a decision to sell or dispose of a reporting
unit. Application of the goodwill impairment test requires judgment, including the identification of reporting units,
assignment of assets and liabilities to reporting units, assignment of goodwill to reporting units and determination
of the fair value of each reporting unit.

We estimate the fair value of the reporting unit using the average of discounted cash flows and comparative
market multiples of earnings before interest, taxes, depreciation and amortization (EBITDA). Applying this
methodology requires significant management judgments including estimation of future cash flows, estimation of
the long-term rate of growth for the reporting unit, selection of an appropriate discount rate, economic projections
and market data. Changes in these assumptions and estimates could materially affect the determination of fair
value.

If the analysis indicates that goodwill is impaired, measuring the impairment requires a fair value estimate
of each identified tangible and intangible asset. We obtain independent appraisals, as appropriate, to support our
goodwill impairment analysis.

We completed our annual impairment testing during the second quarter of fiscal 2008 and determined there
was no impairment. In the fourth quarter of fiscal 2008, in connection with previously announced plans to explore
strategic alternatives for InterTAN, Inc., which could include the sale of the operation, as well as a decline in
comparative market muitiples of EBITDA, we identified a triggering event requiring us to evaluate the goodwill of
the international segment for possible impairment. We performed an impairment analysis, which included a third-
party valuation, and recorded an impairment charge of $26.0 million to write down goodwill to its estimated fair
value.

During the fourth quarter of fiscal 2007, due to deterioration in sales and margin trends of the international
segment, we determined that it was necessary to evaluate goodwill associated with this segment for impairment. As
a result of this analysis, we recorded an impairment charge of $92.0 million to write down goodwill to its estimated
fair value.

If actual results are not consistent with our assumptions and estimates used in the analysis, we may be
subject to further impairment losses that could be material.

Income Taxes

We account for income taxes in accordance with Statement of Financial Accounting Standard (SFAS) No.
109, “Accounting for Income Taxes,” which requires that deferred tax assets and liabilities be recognized using
enacted tax rates for the effect of the temporary differences between the book and tax basis of recorded assets and
liabilities. We make estimates and judgments with regard to the calculation of certain income tax assets and
liabilities. SFAS No. 109 requires that deferred tax assets be reduced by valuation allowances if, based on the
consideration of all available evidence, it is more likely than not that some portion of the deferred tax asset will not
be realized. Significant weight is given to evidence that can be objectively verified. Quarterly, we ¢valuate our
deferred income taxes to determine if valuation allowances are required by considering available evidence,
including historical and projected taxable income and tax planning strategies. As of November 30, 2007, our U.S
operations had generated a cumulative three-year loss. Based on the cumulative three-year loss and other available
objective evidence, we concluded that a valuation allowance should be recorded against the net deferred tax assets
of our U.S operations. During fiscal 2008, we recorded a valuation altowance of $127.4 million. The establishment
of the valuation allowance was a non-cash expense.

On March 1, 2007, we adopted Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) Interpretation No. 48,
*Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes — an interpretation of FASB Statement No. 109” (FIN 48). FIN
48 prescribes a recognition threshold and measurement attribute for the financial statement recognition and
measurement of a tax position taken or expected to be taken in a tax return. Positions taken by an entity in its
income tax returns must satisfy a more-likely-than-not recognition threshold, assuming that the positions will
be examined by taxing authorities with full knowledge of all relevant information, in order for the positions to
be recognized in the consolidated financial statements. Quarterly, we evaluate the income tax positions taken,
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or expected to be taken, to determine whether these positions meet the more-likely-than-not threshold
prescribed by FIN 48. We are required to make subjective judgments and assumptions regarding our income
tax exposures and must consider a variety of factors, including the current tax statutes and the current status of
audits performed by tax authorities in each tax jurisdiction. To the extent an uncertain tax position is resolved
for an amount that varies from the recorded estimated liability, our income tax expense in a given financial
statement period could be materially affected.

Our unrecognized tax benefits were $49.8 million at February 29, 2008, $38.4 million at March 1, 2007,
and $15.2 million at February 28, 2007. In conjunction with the adoption of FIN 48, we have classified
unrecognized tax benefits not expected to be settled within one year as other liabilities on the consolidated balance
sheet. At February 28, 2007, unrecognized tax benefits were reflected as an offset to the income tax receivable on
the consolidated balance sheet. Additional discussion and the impact of adopting this Interpretation are included in
Note 9, Income Taxes, of the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements, included in Item 8, Financial Statements
and Supplementary Data, of this annual report on Form 10-K.

Accrued Lease Termination Costs

When leased properties are no longer used for operating purposes, we recognize a liability for our future
lease payments and related costs, from the cease-use date through the end of the remaining lease term, net of
contractual or estimated sublease rental income. Inherent in the calculation of accrued lease termination costs are
significant management judgments and estimates, including estimates of the amount and timing of future sublease
revenues and the timing and duration of future vacancy periods. When making these assumptions, we consider a
number of factors, including our historical experience, the condition and location of the property, the terms of the
lease, the specific real estate market and general economic conditions. We review these judgments and estimates
on a quarterly basis and make appropriate revisions.

Accrued lease termination costs were $115.5 million at February 29, 2008, and $105.6 million at February
28, 2007. We present the changes in the accrued lease termination costs in Note 11, Exit and Other Activities, of
the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements, included in Item 8, Financial Statements and Supplementary Data,
of this annual report on Form 10-K. Changes in assumptions about future sublease income increased the liability
for lease termination costs by $13.9 million for fiscal 2008, $16.2 million for fiscal 2007 and $18.3 million for
fiscal 2006. In fiscal 2007, we recorded a $12.9 million reduction of the liability due to a change in estimate for
seven previously-vacant stores that were to re-open as outlet stores. If actual results are not consistent with our
estimates or assumptions, changes to the lease termination liability could be material.

Stock-Based Compensation

Effective March 1, 2006, we adopted SFAS No. 123 (revised 2004), “Share-Based Payment” (SFAS No.
123(R)), which requires companies to record compensation expense for employee stock-based compensation based
on the grant date fair value of the award. Additional discussion of adopting this statement is included in Note 2,
Summary of Significant Accounting Policies, of the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements, included in Item
8, Financial Statements and Supplementary Data, of this annual report on Form 10-K.

SFAS No. 123(R) requires companies to estimate the number of equity awards granted that are expected to
be forfeited, recognize compensation expense based on the number of awards that are expected to vest, and
subsequently adjust estimated forfeitures to reflect actual forfeitures. Our estimated forfeiture rate is based on
historical experience and expectations regarding future employee turnover and requires significant management
judgment regarding future employee retention trends. Quarterly, we review our assumptions and revise the
estimated forfeiture rate if actual forfeitures or known future forfeitures are trending differently than our previous
expectations. If our actual forfeiture rate is materially different from our estimate, stock-based compensation
expense could be significantly different from what we have recorded in the current period.

Stock-based compensation expense is measured at the grant date based on the fair value of the award and
recognized over the requisite service period of the award. We determine the fair value of our non-qualified stock
oplions at the grant date using the Black-Scholes option valuation model. The Black-Scholes model requires us to
make subjective assumptions, including the expected term of the option, the expected volatility of the stock price,
expected dividend yield and the risk-free interest rate. The assumptions used in the Black-Scholes model represent
our best estimates, but these estimates involve inherent uncertainties and the application of management judgment.
Using different assumptions or a different valuation model could have a significant impact on the grant date fair
value of options, resulting in significantly higher or lower stock-based compensation expense.

Stock-based compensation expense was $22.4 miilion in fiscal 2008, $28.7 million in fiscal 2007 and $26.9
million in fiscal 2006. During fiscal 2008 and the second half of fiscal 2007, we increased the estimated forfeiture
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rate to reflect changes in our expectations regarding the number of instruments that ultimately will vest, due in part
to restructuring activities and changes in executive management. Consistent with the provisions of SFAS No.
123(R), the effects of the changes in estimate were recognized in compensation expense in the period of change.

Pension Plans

For our defined benefit pension plan and unfunded non-qualified benefit restoration plan, the net pension
expense and the plans’ funded status are determined on an actuarial basis. The effects of both the performance of
pension plan assets and changes in pension plan liability discount rates on the computation of net pension expense
are amortized over future periods. Actual results in any given year will often differ from actuarial assumptions
because of economic conditions and expectations for the future.

At the end of each fiscal year, we determine the weighted average discount rate used to calculate
the present value of plan liabilities. The discount rate is an estimate of the interest rate at which the pension
liabilities could be effectively settled at the end of the year. At February 29, 2008, the company performed an
analysis in which the projected cash flows from our plans were matched with a yield curve based on an appropriate
population of readily available high-quality corporate bonds. The results of the yield curve were used to select the
weighted average discount rate. At February 28, 2007, when estimating the discount rate, we reviewed yields
available on high-quality, fixed income debt instruments. We reviewed high-quality corporate bond indices in
addition to a hypothetical portfolio of corporate bonds constructed with maturities that approximated the expected
timing of anticipated benefit payments. We selected a discount rate of 6.75 percent at February 29, 2008, and 5.75
percent at February 28, 2007.

Net pension expense is determined using assumptions at the beginning of each fiscal year. A significant
element in determining the net pension expense is the expected return on plan assets. We use a calculated market-
related value of pension plan assets to determine the expected return on pension plan assets. The calculated market-
related value of the plan assets is different from the actual or fair market value of the assets. The fair market value
is the value of the assets at a potnt in time that is available to make payments to pension plan participants and to
cover transaction costs. The calculated market-related value recognizes changes in fair value on a straight-line
basis over a five-year period. This recognition method spreads the effects of year-over-year volatility in the
financial markets over that period of years. The rate of return assumption is reviewed annually and adjusted as
appropriate. For fiscal 2008, fiscal 2007 and fiscal 2006, our expected rate of return on plan assets was 8.23
percent. The weighted average discount rate used to determine net pension expense was 5.75 percent in 2008, 5.65
percent in 2007 and 5.75 percent in 2006. Net pension expense for our pension plans was $0.1 million in fiscal
2008, $2.4 million in fiscal 2007 and $1.7 million in fiscal 2006. These expenses are included in cost of sales,
buying and warehousing and selling, general and administrative expenses on the consolidated statements of
operattons.

The following table is a sensitivity analysis that illustrates the effect on net pension expense and the funded
status of changing the expected rate of return on plan assets and the discount rate, while holding all other
assumptions constant and excluding the impact of unusual events:

Increase / (Decrease} In

Change in February 29, 2008 Fiscal 2008
(Amounts in millions) Assumption Funded Status Expense
Expected rate of return on plan assets .......... +/- 25 basis points N/A $(0.6) / $0.6
Weighted average discount rate..................... +/- 25 basis points $10.1/%(10.8) $(1.4)/8%1.5

In October 2004, the board of directors approved amendments to freeze both the defined benefit pension
plan and the non-qualified benefit restoration plan, effective February 28, 2005. As a result, all eligible employees
retained any benefits accumulated to the effective date, but were no longer eligible to increase their benefit.
Eligible employees continued to earn vesting credit toward the pension plan’s vesting requirements. Employees
who were eligible to retire under the defined benefit pension plan’s early or normal retirement provisions on or
before February 29, 2008 were considered grandfathered employees and were not subject to the plan changes. In
addition, employees who were eligible to retire under the pension plan’s early or normal retirement provisions on
or before February 28, 2015, were considered grandfathered empioyees under the benefit restoration plan and were
eligible to receive the supplemental benefits they would have received under the benefit restoration plan had their
pension plan benefit accruals not been frozen.

During fiscal 2008, the defined benefit pension plan and the non-qualified benefit restoration plan were
further amended to freeze benefit accruals for the grandfathered participants, effective February 29, 2008. During
fiscal 2008, the defined benefit pension plan was also amended to provide an additional year of benefit accruals for
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participants who met certain provisions of the amendment, excluding grandfathered participants. As of February
29, 2008, all plan participants no longer will be eligible to increase their benefits under the defined benefit pension
plan and benefit restoration plan after the applicable freeze date, but will retain any benefits accrued through such
date.

In the fourth quarter of fiscal 2007 we adopted SFAS No. 158, “Employers’ Accounting for Defined
Benefit Pension and Other Postretirement Plans — an amendment of FASB Statements No. 87, 88, 106, and
132(R).” SFAS No. 158 requires an employer to recognize a plan’s funded status in its balance sheets and to
recognize the changes in a plan’s funded status in accumulated other comprehensive income in the year in which
the changes occur. Additional discussion of adopting this statement is included in Note 15, Employee Benefit
Plans, of the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements, included in Item 8, Financial Statements and
Supplementary Data, of this annual report on Form 10-K.

Results of Operations

Reclassifications and Adjustments

To improve presentation and comparability, amounts previously reported in the consolidated financial
statements have been reclassified to conform to current-year presentation.

Summary of Segment Performance

Where relevant, we have included separate discussions of our domestic and international segments. The
following tables summarize performance by segment.

SEGMENT PERFORMANCE SUMMARY

Year Ended February 29, 2008

Domestic International Consolidated
% of % of % of
(Dellar amounts in millions) $ Sales 3 Sales $ Sales
Net $ale8.uiiiniinnr e cerrer e $11,142.8 100.0% $600.9 100.0% $11,743.7  100.0%
Gross Profit.....ccoeoieceeeeorerreneeenens $ 22124 19.9% $213.1 35.5% $ 24255 20.7%
Selling, general and administrative
EXPEIISES oo vveverimaeraressecnarersarsnsenns $ 2,580.0 23.2% $190.1 31.6%  $ 2,770.1 23.6%
[mpairment of goodwill ..............c.... $ - - $ 26.0 4.3% $ 260 0.2%
Loss from continuing operations
before income taxes........coevevenn. $ (351.0) (3.2)% $ (2.6) 04)% $ (353.6) (3.0)%
Year Ended February 28, 2007
Domestic International Consolidated
% of % of % of
{Dollar amounts in millions) $ Sales $ Sales $ Sales
INEE SAlES..vevveeer et e s eeraeeennes $11,859.6 100.0% $ 570.2 100.0% $12,429.8 100.0%
Gross profit.......cocoveeereieeieeecreeennnns $ 2,740.0 23.1% $ 188.4 33.0% $ 29283 23.6%
Selling, general and administrative
EXPENSES....vvirenrrierarereerrerearersesennes $ 2.632.8 22.2% $ 208.8 36.6% $ 2.841.6 22.9%
Impairment of goodwill ................... $ - - § 920 16.1% $§ 920 0.7%

Earnings (loss) from continuing
operations before income taxes... $ 133.7 1.1% $(113.4)  (199% $ 20.3 0.2%
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Year Ended February 28, 2006

Domestic International Consolidated
% of % of % of
{Dollar amounts in millions) $ Sales $ Sales $ Sales
NEt 8alES ...coveeieeceeieice e, $10,974.0 100.0% $540.2 100.0% $11,5142 100.0%
Gross profit......cceeccveceniecineeeceennn, $ 26045 23.7% $206.0 38.1% $ 28105 24.4%
Selling, general and administrative
EXPENSES o emeerrararirereireseressseasesees $ 23799 21.7% $215.8 39.9% $ 2,595.7 22.5%

Earnings (loss) from continuing
operations before income taxes ... $ 2444 2.2% $(10.9) Q0% $ 2334 2.0%

Net Sales
Consolidated

For the fiscal year ended February 29, 2008, our net sales decreased 5.5 percent to $11.74 billion, and
comparable store sales decreased 7.7 percent. For the fiscal year ended February 28, 2007, our net sales increased
8.0 percent to $12.43 billion, and comparable store sales increased 5.8 percent.

A store’s sales are included in comparable store sales after the store has been open for a full 12 months.
Comparable store sales include Web- and call center-originated sales and sales from relocated and remodeled
stores. Sales from closed stores are included in comparable store sales until the month in which the stores are
closed. International segment sales are included in comparable stores sales and are calculated in local currency.
The calculation of comparable store sales excludes the impact of fluctuations in foreign currency exchange rates.

The fiscal 2008 net sales decrease primarily reflects the decrease in domestic segment comparable store
sales, partially offset by the net sales contribution of 40 net additional domestic segment Superstores.

The fiscal 2007 net sales increase primarily reflects the increase in domestic segment comparable store
sales and the net sales contribution of 16 net additional domestic segment Superstores.

Our major sales categories are:

* video, which includes televisions, imaging products, DVD hardware, camcorders, furniture, and related
accessories;

¢ information technology, which includes PC hardware, telecommunications products and related
accessories;

¢ audio, which includes home audio, mobile audio, portable audio and navigation products, and related
accessories;

s entertainment, which includes movie software, music software, game software, game hardware and PC
software; and

* warranty, services and other, which includes extended warranty net sales; revenues from PC services,
mobile installations, home theater installations and product repairs; net financing; and revenues received
from third parties for services subscriptions.

Domestic Segment

The domestic segment’s fiscal 2008 net sales were $11.14 billion, a decrease of 6.0 percent from fiscal
2007 sales of $11.86 billion. Comparable store sales decreased 8.1 percent. The fiscal 2008 sales decrease
primarily reflects the decrease in the comparable store sales partially offset by the net sales contribution of 40 net
additional Superstores. The comparable store sales decrease is due primarily to decreases in store traffic and close
rates compared to fiscal 2007, partially offset by an increase in average ticket associated with Superstore sales.

The domestic segment’s fiscal 2007 net sales were $11.86 billion, an increase of 8.t percent over fiscal
2006 sales of $10.97 billion. Comparable store sales increased 6.1 percent. The fiscal 2007 sales increase primarily
reflects the increase in the compardble store sales and the net sales contribution of 16 net additional Superstores.
The comparable store sales increase is due primarily to an increase in Web- and call center-originated sales as well
as an increase in the average ticket associated with Superstore sales. A strong increase in sales of flat panel
televisions drove the increase in average ticket.
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DOMESTIC SEGMENT NET SALES BY CATEGORY
Years Ended February 29 or 28

2008 2007 2006

% of % of % of
{(Dollar amounts in millions) $ Sales 3 Sales $ Sales
VIAEO...ciiiiviiiiiiisseenrivtseeieseesresenetaeaesrene $ 4561.3 409% $ 4,980.8 42.0% $ 45813 41.7%
Information technology............cccovirninne, 2,875.6 258 2,859.4 24.1 2,731.5 249
AUAIO oo 1,508.3 136 1,779.0 15.0 16854 154
Entertainment......c.cocoieeviceeerscereceecrinnns 1,3729 123 1,321.4 11.1 1,200.4 10.9
Warranty, services and other................ 824.7 1.4 919.1 7.8 7754 7.1
NEL SAlES ..eevvveviiirerrrrrnrreerseeeeeeeeeneeeeeeas $11.142.8 100.0% _$11.859.6  100.0% $10974.0 100.0%

For fiscal 2008, our sales decline was primarily driven by strong-double digit comparable store sales
declines of projection, tube and plasma televisions as well as portable digital audio products. Partially offsetting
these declines were very strong double-digit growth in large LCD televisions and double-digit growth in video
game hardware, software and accessories, notebook computers and navigation products. For fiscal 2008, dlrect
channel sales, including Web- and call center-originated sales, grew 21 percent to $1.35 billion; firedog™ PC
services and home theater installation revenues grew 29 percent to $268.9 million.

For fiscal 2007, our growth was primarily driven by strong double-digit comparable store sales growth of
flat panel televisions. Comparable store sales of notebook computers, video gaming products and digital imaging
products grew double digits and comparable store sales of navigation products grew by triple digits. Strong sales
growth in these areas was partially offset by double digit declines in sales of tube and prolectlon televisions. For
fiscal 2007 in the domestic segment, Web-originated sales grew 52 percent; firedog™ services revenues, mcludmg
PC services and home theater installations, grew 77 percent; and call center sales grew 73 percent from the prior
year. For fiscal 2007, Web-originated sales reached $1 billion and firedog™ services revenues exceeded $200
million.

The domestic segment sells extended warranty programs on behalf of unrelated third parties who are the
primary obligors. The commission revenue for extended warranty net sales is included in net sales. Reflecting our
expanded ability to provide high-value services in a growing number of ways, we view extended warranty net
sales as one component of many that contributes to both sales and gross margin. Our customer service approach
focuses on selling solutions, with warranties being only one of many available solutions.

The percent of domestic segment sales attributable to net sales of extended warranties was 2.5 percent in
fiscal 2008, 3.5 percent in fiscal 2007 and 3.8 percent in fiscal 2006. As average selling prices on many products
declined during fiscal 2008, extended warranty net sales as a percentage of domestic segment net sales also
declined compared to fiscal 2007. We believe that consumers perceive a reduced need for an extended warranty
when the product price has declined.

International Segment

The international segment’s fiscal 2008 net sales were $600.9 million, an increase of 5.4 percent over
fiscal 2007 sales of $570.2 million. The sales increase was driven by the favorable impact of fluctuations in
foreign currency exchange rates of 10 percent and an increase in comparable store sales of 2.4 percent for the year
in local currency. These increases were partially offset by the impact of the year-over-year net decrease of 27
retail stores and dealer outlets.

The international segment’s fiscal 2007 net sales were $570.2 million, an increase of 5.6 percent over
fiscal 2006 sales of $540.2 million. The sales increase was driven by the effect of fluctuations in foreign currency
exchange rates, which accounted for approximately 4 percentage points of the increase. Comparable store sales
decreased 0.8 percent in fiscal 2007 in local currency.
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INTERNATIONAL SEGMENT NET SALES BY CATEGORY

Years Ended February 29 or 28

2008 2007 2006

% of % of % of
{Dollar amounts in millions) $ Sales . $ Sales 3 Sales
VIACO oot $110.1 18.3% - "$106.5 18.7%  $102.4 19.0%
Information technology .......cvevcenveennen. 202.7 339 216.5 38.0 201.6 373
AUAIO. ..ot 211.3 352 190.3 334 171.7 318
Entertainment ................cooevviieeieiieeevnnnnn. 44.4 7.4 254 4.5 25.5 4.7
Warranty, services and other.................. 32.5 5.4 31.3 5.4 39.1 7.2
Netsales ..o $600.9  100.0% ___ $570.2 100.0% $540.2 100.0%
Gross Profit Margin
Consolidated

The gross profit margin rate was 20.7 percent in fiscal 2008, 23.6 percent in fiscal 2007 and 24.4 percent
in fiscal 2006. 1

The gross profit margin rate declined 291 basis points in fiscal 2008 from fiscal 2007. The domestic
segment contributed 320 basis points to the decline which was partially offset by an increase of 30 basis points
contributed by the international segment.

The gross profit margin rate declined 85 basis points in fiscal 2007 from fiscal 2006. The domestic
segment contributed 58 basis points to the decline, and the international segment contributed 27 basis points to the
decline.

Domestic Segment

The domestic segment’s gross profit margin rate was 19.9 percent in fiscal 2008, 23.1 percent in fiscal
2007 and 23.7 percent in fiscal 2006. |

The domestic segment’s gross profit margin rate decreased 325 basis points in fiscal 2008 from fiscal
2007, driven by a decrease in merchandise margins, primarily due to the maturation of the television product cycle
and competitive pressures across many product categories, including PC hardware, imaging products and mobile
audio products and accessones, as well as a decrease in extended warranty net sales and an increase in shrink.

The domestic segment’s gross profit margin rate decreased 63 basis points in fiscal 2007 from fiscal 2006,
driven by a decrease in merchandise margins primarily in televisions, PC hardware, and entertainment software, as
well as a decrease in extended warranty net sales as a percentage of domestic segment net sales.

International Segment

The international segment’s gross profit margin rate was 35.5 percent in fiscal 2008, 33.0 percent in fiscal
2007 and 38.1 percent in fiscal 2006.

The gross profit margin increase from fiscal 2007 to fiscal 2008 is primarily due to a decreased level of
merchandise markdowns compared with the prior year. Fiscal 2007 results also include $3.3 million, or 58 basis
points of international segment net sales, for inventory write-offs associated with plans to exit certain product lines,
clearance sales associated with store closures, and other actions to align the international segment merchandise
assortment with consumer demand. Similar costs were not incurred in fiscal 2008. The gross profit margin increase
is partially offset by the unfavorable impact of the continued shift in the product sales mix from higher-margin
categories, including batteries, gadgets and parts and accessories, to lower-margin categories, including video
games, navigation products and personal electronics.

The gross profit margin decrease from fiscal 2006 to fiscal 2007 is due to an increased level of inventory
write-offs and merchandise markdowns compared with the prior year as well as a shift in the product sales mix
from higher-margin categories, including batteries, to lower-margin, higher-growth categories, including personal
electronics and navigation products. Results also include $3.3 million, or 58 basis points of international segment
net sales, for inventory write-offs associated with restructuring a:ctivities in fiscal 2007 as described above.
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Selling, General and Administrative Expenses
Consolidated
SELLING, GENERAL AND ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES
Years Ended February 29 or 28

2008 2007 2006

% of % of % of
{Dollar amounts in millions) $ Sales $ Sales $ Sales
SHOTE EXPENSES .ovvvveverveeerenrereriveenrecnnen. $2,352.0 200%  $2,447.2 19.7% $2,235.4 19.4%
General and administrative expenses... 359.0 3.1 350.1 2.8 317.2 2.8
Stock-based compensation expense..... 18.9 0.2 24.2 0.2 26.9 0.2
Remodel expenses .......cco.covvevinencinnen, 0.1 0.0 0.7 0.0 - -
Relocation eXpenses. ... ..o vvecnrcinnans 209 0.2 4.5 0.0 7.1 0.1
Pre-opening eXpenses .........cocoveeeienens 19.2 0.2 14.8 0.1 9.0 0.1
TOtal ..o $2.770.1 23.6% $2.841.6 22.9% $2,595.7 22.5%

Selling, general and administrative (SG&A) expenses were 23.6 percent of sales in fiscal 2008, 22.9
percent of sales in fiscal 2007, and 22.5 percent of sales in fiscal 2006.

Beginning in the fourth quarter of fiscal 2007, we made structural changes to reduce our SG&A expenses.
During fiscal 2008, we achieved approximately $200 million in savings from these initiatives, of which $185
million relates to the domestic segment. The savings represent the difference between anticipated SG&A expenses
for targeted areas before and after the changes and are partially offset by investments to support strategic
initiatives, including incremental and relocated stores and information technology.

The consolidated expense-to-sales ratio increased 73 basis points from fiscal 2007 to fiscal 2008. The
domestic segment contributed 79 basis points to the increase, which was partially offset by a decrease of 6 basis
points contributed by the international segment.

The consolidated expense-to-sales ratio increased 32 basis points from fiscal 2006 to fiscal 2007. The
domestic segment contributed 51 basis points to the increase, which was partially offset by a decrease of 19 basis
points contributed by the international segment.

Domestic Segment
SELLING, GENERAL AND ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

Years Ended February 29 or 28

2008 2007 2006

% of % of % of
{Dollar amounts in millions) 3 Sales $ Sales $ Sales
SLOTE EXPEMNSES ..ouoecrermvivirenrecrsrensansereen $2,1849  19.6%  $2,278.2 19.2% $2,085.4 19.0%
General and administrative expenses... 336.7 3.0 312.1 2.6 252.5 23
Stock-based compensation expense..... 18.2 0.2 22.5 0.2 259 0.2
Remodel eXpenses ......covvvimenininniiinns 0.1 0.0 0.7 0.0 - -
Relocation eXpenses.....co..covveeveeerveanens 209 0.2 4.5 0.0 7.1 0.1
Pre-opening eXpenses ........c.e.vereevenens 19.2 0.2 14.8 0.1 9.0 0.1
TOtal oo $2.580.0 232%  $2,632.8 22.2% $2.379.9 21.7%

The domestic segment’s expense-to-sales ratio increased 95 basis points in fiscal 2008 from fiscal 2007.
The increase in the selling, general and administrative expense ratio from fiscal 2007 to fiscal 2008 primarily
reflects the overall deleveraging impact of lower net sales. Also impacting the increase were a 61 basis point
increase in expenses related to the 62 domestic segment stores that have opened during the past 12 months and a
56 basis point increase in occupancy expenses. Fiscal 2007 domestic segment relocation expenses include a $12.9
million benefit from the reversal of lease termination charges for seven previously-vacant locations that were to re-
open as outlet stores. A similar benefit was not recorded in fiscal 2008. A decrease of 34 basis points in
compensation costs and a decrease of 22 basis points in expenses associated with stores and facility closures and
other restructuring activities partially offset these increases.

The domestic segment’s expense-to-sales ratio increased 51 basis points in fiscal 2007 from fiscal 2006.
The increase in the selling, general and administrative expense ratio from fiscal 2006 to fiscal 2007 primarily
reflects net incremental expenses, related to strategic investments in information technology, multi-channel and

Page 32 of 84




innovation activities that totaled 98 basis points of domestic segment net sales. Also in fiscal 2007, we incurred
$38.4 million, or 32 basis points of domestic segment net sales,:associated with store and facility closures and
other restructuring activities, primarily lease-related costs and severance. Of the total amount, a charge of $7.4
million is classified as general and administrative expenses, and the remainder is classified as store expenses. The
expenses were partially offset by leverage of payroll and marketing expenses; expenses in these categories grew at
a slower rate than net sales, resulting in lower expense-to-sales ratio. Fiscal 2007 relocation expenses include a
$12.9 million benefit from the reversal of lease termination charges for seven previously-vacant locations that
were to re-open as outlet stores. Fiscal 2006 domestic segment store expenses include a $9.4 million gain on our
portion of the settlement in the Visa/MasterCard antitrust litigation.

International Segment :
SELLING, GENERAL AND ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES
Years Ended February 29 or 28

2008 2007 2006
% of % of % of
{(Dollar amounts in millions) $ Sales $ Sales $ Sales
SLOTe EXPeNSES ..oovvveeeeeecvvereerereiens $167.1 278% - $169.0 29.6% $150.1 27.8%
General and administrative expenses... 223 37 ‘ 38.1 6.7 64.7 12.0
Stock-based compensation expense..... 0.7 0.1 1.7 0.3 1.0 0.2

Total ... $190.1 316% __ $208.8 36.6% $215.8 39.9%

The international segment’s expense-to-sales ratio was 31.6 percent in fiscal 2008, 36.6 percent in fiscal
2007 and 39.9 percent in fiscal 2006.

The decrease in the selling, general and administrative expense-to-sales ratio for fiscal 2008 is primarily
due to $10.3 million expenses associated with store closures and other restructuring activities that were incurred in
fiscal 2007 that were not repeated in fiscal 2008. Additionally, fiscal 2008 expenses include a $7.5 million
recovery related to a former subsidiary.

The decrease in the selling, general and administrative expense-to-sales ratio for fiscal 2007 is the result of
the absence of brand transition costs of $29.9 million primarily related to marketing expenses and inventory write-
downs incurred in fiscal 2006, which resulted from litigation with RadioShack Corporation. The decrease was
partially offset by expenses of $10.3 million associated with store closures and other restructuring activities.

Impairment of Goodwill

In the fourth quarter of fiscal 2008, in connection with previously announced plans to explore strategic
alternatives for InterTAN, Inc., which could include the sale of the operation, as well as a decline in comparative
market multiples of EBITDA, we identified a triggering event requiring us to evaluate the goodwill of the
international segment for possible impairment. We performed an impairment analysis, which included a third-
party valuation, and recorded an impairment charge of $26.0 million, or 22 basis points of consolidated net sales,
to write down goodwill to its estimated fair value.

Due to deterioration in the sales and margin trends of our international segment, we determined during the
fourth quarter of fiscal 2007 that it was necessary to evaluate the goodwill associated with this segment for
impairment. As a resuit of this analysis, we recorded a non-cash impairment charge of $92.0 million, or 74 basis
points of consolidated net sales.

Income Tax (Benefit) Expense

The consolidated effective income tax rate app]icable to resuits from continuing operations was 9.1
percent in fiscal 2008, 150.1 in fiscal 2007, and 36.8 percent in fiscal 2006. As of November 30, 2007, our U.S.
operations had generated a cumulative three-year loss. Based on the cumulative three- -year loss and other available
objective evidence, we concluded that a valuation allowance should be recorded against the net deferred tax assets
of our U.S. operations. As a result of this conclusion, we could not record the full tax benefit in fiscal 2008
associated with the pre-tax loss of our U.S. operations. The decrease in the effective tax rate in fiscal 2008
primarily results from the valuation allowance of $127.4 million recorded against the net deferred tax assets of our
U.S. operations, partially offset by a $36.1 million benefit related to a change in our position regarding repatriation
of the undistributed earnings of our Canadian subsidiaries. Because the impairment of goodwill is not deductible
for income tax purposes, no income tax benefit was recorded associated with the impairment charge recorded in
fiscal 2008. :
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The increase in the effective tax rate in fiscal 2007 is primarily a result of the goodwill impairment charge
that is not deductible for income tax purposes. The impact of the non-deductible impairment charge was partially
offset by tax-exempt investment income and tax adjustments resulting in a tax benefit, including an adjustment
identified during the preparation of the fiscal 2006 tax return and the revision of management estimates related to
tax contingencies. :

Net (Loss) Earnings from Continuing Operations

The net loss from continuing operations was $321.4 million, or $1.95 per share, for the fiscal year ended
February 29, 2008. The net loss from continuing operations was $10.2 million, or 6 cents per share, for the fiscal
year ended February 28, 2007. Net earnings from continuing operations were $147.4 million, or 82 cents per
share, for the fiscal year ended February 28, 2006.

The increase in the net loss from continuing operations in fiscal 2008 was driven by the decline in
domestic segment comparable store sales, the decline in the domestic segment gross profit margin rate and the
impact of the deferred tax valuation allowance.

The net loss from continuing operations for fiscal 2007 includes a $92.0 million goodwill impairment
charge related to the international segment and $35.4 million in after-tax expenses related to store and facility
closures as well as other restructuring activities.

Net Earnings (Loss) from Discontinued Operations

NET EARNINGS (LOSS) FROM DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS
Years Ended February 29 or 28

(Amounts in millions) 2008 2007 2006
ROZETS PHIS® SIOrES ..ovvoeoee et $0.9 $54 $ 3.7
Domestic segment OPeration........c.cvviiiaseinerienecanenanas 0.6 (4.8) (5.3)
MUSICNOW, LLC ..o vaaretnateeresvassrrenenes - ‘ - 3.7
Bankcard business ... - (0.5) -
Net earnings (loss) from discontinued operations ......... $1.5 $0.1 $(5.4

For fiscal 2008, net earnings from discontinued operations include $0.9 million of earnings from 92 Rogers
Plus® stores, the management of which we returned to Rogers Wireless, Inc. in fiscal 2007, and $0.6 million of
earnings from the domestic segment operation that we closed in fiscal 2007.

For fiscal 2007, net earnings from discontinued operations include $5.4 million of earnings from the Rogers
Plus® stores, partially offset by a $4.8 million net loss related to the closure of a domestic segment operation and a
$0.5 million loss from the bankcard business that relates to income tax expense from a revision of management’s
estimate regarding tax uncertainties.

For fiscal 2006, the net loss from discontinued operations totaled $5.4 million and related to a subsidiary,
MusicNow, LLC, that was sold in October 2005 and an operation that was held for sale at February 28, 2006,
partially offset by earnings from the Rogers Plus® stores.

Cumulative Effect of a Change in Accounting Principles

In fiscal 2007, we adopted SFAS No. 123 (revised 2004), “Share-Based Payment,” using the modified
prospective transition method, resulting in a non-cash after-tax benefit of $1.8 million.

We adopted FASB Interpretation No. 47, “Accounting for Conditional Asset Retirement Obligations”
(FIN 47), an interpretation of SFAS No. 143, “Asset Retirement Obligations,” on February 28, 2006. The impact
of adopting FIN 47 was the recognition of additional net assets amounting to $1.5 million; an asset retirement
obligation of $5.1 million; and a charge of $3.7 million ($2.4 million, net of tax), which was included in
cumulative effect of change in accounting principle in the fiscal 2006 consolidated statement of operations.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

As discussed in Note 9, Income Taxes, we adopted FIN 48 and FASB Staff Position FIN 48-1, “Definition
of Settlement in FASB Interpretation No. 48” (“FSP FIN 48-17) on March 1, 2007.
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In September 2006, the FASB issued SFAS No. 157, “Fair Value Measurements.” SFAS No. 157 defines
fair value, establishes a framework for measuring fair value, and expands disclosure of fair value measurements.
The provisions of SFAS No. 157 are effective for us beginning with the first quarter of fiscal 2009 for financial
assets and liabilities as well as for any other assets and liabilities that are carried at fair value on a recurring basis in
the financial statements. In February 2008, the FASB issued FSP 157-2, “Partial Deferral of the Effective Date of
SFAS 157,” which detays the effective date of SFAS No. 157 for all nonrecurring fair value measurements of
nonfinancial assets and nonfinancial liabilities. We do not expect that the implementation of SFAS No. 157, as it
relates to financial assets, financial liabilities and other assets and liabilities that are carried at fair value on a
recurring basis, will have a material effect on our results of operations, financial position or cash flows. We are
currently evaluating the potential impact of SFAS No. 157 as it relates to nonrecurring fair value measurements of
nonfinancial assets and liabilities,

In June 2007, the Emerging Issues Task Force (EITF) issued EITF 06-11, “Accounting for Income Tax
Benefits of Dividends on Share-Based Payment Awards.” This Issue requires income tax benefits from dividends
or dividend equivalents that are charged to retained earnings and are paid to employees for equity classified
nonvested equity shares, nonvested equity share units, and outstanding equity share options to be recognized as an
increase to additional paid-in capital. The Issue is to be applied prospectively to the income tax benefits related to
awards declared in fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2007, and interim periods within those fiscal years.
We will adopt the Issue effective March 1, 2008 and do not expect the adoption to have a material impact on our
financial position, results of operations or cash flows.

In February 2007, the FASB issued SFAS No. 159, "The Fair Value Option for Financial Assets and
Financial Liabilities." SFAS No. 159 permits entities to choose to measure many financial instruments and certain
assets and liabilities at fair value. SFAS No. 159 will be effective for us beginning with the first quarter of fiscal
2009 and will be applied prospectively. We do not expect the adoption of this new standard to have a material
impact on our financial position, results of operations or cash flows.

In December 2007, the FASB issued SFAS No. 141(R), “Business Combinations,” and SFAS No. 160,
“Noncontrolling Interests in Consolidated Financial Statements, an amendment of ARB No. 51.” These new
standards significantly change the accounting for and reporting of business combination transactions and
noncontrolling interests (previously referred to as minority interests) in consolidated financial statements. Both
standards will be effective for us beginning with the first quarter of fiscal 2010 and will be applied prospectively.
We do not expect adoption of these standards to have a matena] impact on our financial position, results of
operations or cash flows.

Financial Condition

Liquidity and Capital Resources

Cash Flows Summary

The following table summarizes our cash flows for each of the past three fiscal years.

Years Ended February 29 or 28

{Amounts in millions) 2008 2007 2006
Net cash (used in) provided by:
Operating aCtivilies ......oovveeerieeeereereecrescieesens $(45.6) $ 3163 $ 364.9
INVESting ACtiVITIES....cvivrvriecreireerrreereerereseerarsene 341.2 (334.7) (593.9)
Financing activities ..........ccoocoveriicninienicnnicnene (157.9) (160.8) (318.4)
Discontinued Operations........c..ccceiveemieerernineennee 15.8 5.7 (18.0)
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash .......c.ccceeue.. 1.4 (1.4 1.7
Increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents ....... $154.9 $(174.8) $(563.7)
Operating Activities

In fiscal 2008, we used net cash in operating activities of $45.6 million, compared with net cash provided
by operating activities of $316.3 million in fiscal 2007, The change was due primarily to the net loss of $319.9
million in fiscal 2008, compared with the net loss of $8.3 million in fiscal 2007.
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We generated net cash from operating activities of $316.3 million in fiscal 2007, compared with $364.9
million in fiscal 2006. The decrease in cash provided by operating activities in fiscal 2007 compared with fiscal
2006 primarily resulted from an increase in vendor receivables and a decrease in accrued income taxes, partialty
offset by cash provided by improvements in inventory management. Cash provided by the decrease in net-owned
inventory during fiscal 2007 was $122.7 million; cash used by the increase in net-owned inventory during fiscal
2006 was $19.8 million.

Investing Activities

Net cash provided by investing activities was $341.2 million in fiscal 2008, compared with net cash used in
investing activities of $334.7 million in fiscal 2007. The change was due primarily to an increase in net sales of
and maturities of investment securities during fiscal 2008.

Net cash used in investing activities was $334.7 million in fiscal 2007, compared with net cash used in
investing activities of $593.9 million in fiscal 2006, The decrease in cash used for investing activities during fiscal
2007 compared to fiscal 2006 was due primarily to a decrease in net purchases of investment securities, partially
offset by increased purchases of property and equipment as we made investments in new Superstores, store
refreshes and category resets.

Financing Activities

Net cash used in financing activities was $157.9 million in fiscal 2008, $160.8 million in fiscal 2007 and
$318.4 million in fiscal 2006. The decrease in cash used during fiscal 2008 compared to fiscal 2007 was primarily
due to a decrease in cash used to repurchase common stock under the stock repurchase authonzation, partially
offset by a decrease in cash provided by the issuance of common stock as well as the change in book overdraft
balances from a source of cash in fiscal 2007 to a use of cash in fiscal 2008.

The decrease in cash used in financing activities during fiscal 2007 compared to fiscal 2006 was primarily
due to a decrease in cash used to repurchase common stock under the stock repurchase authorization, coupled with
an increase in cash provided by the issuance of common stock.

The board of directors has authorized the repurchase of up to $1.2 billion of our common stock, of which
$233.7 million remained available at February 29, 2008. During fiscal 2008, we used cash to repurchase 2.5
million shares of common stock at an average price of $18.68 per share, for a total price of $46.7 million, excluding
commission fees. During fiscal 2007, we used cash to repurchase 10.0 million shares of common stock at a total
cost of $236.9 million, excluding commission fees. During fiscal 2006, we used cash to repurchase 19.4 million
shares of common stock at a total cost of $338.5 million, excluding commission fees. At February 29, 2008, we
had repurchased 60.4 million shares of common stock at a total cost of $966.3 million, excluding commission fees,
cumulatively since inception of the stock repurchase program.

In June 2006, the board of directors authorized an increase in our quarterly dividend rate to $0.04 per share
from the previous quarterly dividend of $0.0175 per share on our common stock. The dividend rate change was
effective with the quarterly dividend in the third quarter of fiscal 2007, resulting in an increase in cash used to pay
dividends in fiscal 2008.

At February 29, 2008, outstanding debt totaled $68.6 mitlion, compared with $57.6 million at February 28,
2007, and $81.2 million at February 28, 2006. The increase from fiscal 2007 to fiscal 2008 reflects the addition of
capital leases for store equipment. The decrease from fiscal 2006 to fiscal 2007 reflects the repayment of the
international segment’s short-term borrowings.

We have a revolving credit facility secured by inventory and credit card receivables. This facility is used to
support letters of credit and to meet borrowing needs. Loans primarily bear interest at a spread over either LIBOR
or prime. The facility was amended in January 2008 to increase the available borrowings and to extend its
expiration date from June 2009 to Januvary 2013.

The facility has a stated commitment of $1.3 billion, which includes a $1.25 billion commitment for the
domestic segment and a $50 million commitment for the international segment. In general, the maximum amount
of borrowings, including loans and outstanding letters of credit, outstanding on any date may not exceed the lesser
of a borrowing base calculated as a percentage of the company’s eligible inventory and credit card receivables or 90
percent of $1.3 billion. We are required to maintain a minimum level of available borrowings under the facility.
Dividend payments would be limited to an aggregate of $15 mitlion in any fiscal year if available borrowings under
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the facility are, or at any time during the next twelve months are projected to be, less than 25 percent of the lesser of
$1.3 billion and the borrowing base. The lenders may require that proceeds from the sale of inventory be applied
on a daily basis to payment of amounts owed under the facility if available borrowings are less than 15 percent of
the lesser of $1.3 billion and the borrowing base for five consecutive days.

The facility contains representations and warranties, conditions, covenants and events of default that are
customary for this type of credit facility; however, it contains no financial covenants.

At February 29, 2008, we had outstanding letters of credit of $50.1 million and no borrowings, leaving
$967.6 million available for borrowing under the credit facility. At February 28, 2007, we had outstanding letters
of credit of $60.1 million and no borrowings, leaving $439.9 million available for borrowing under the previous
revolving credit facility. We were in compliance with all covenants at February 29, 2008.

Cash, Cash Equivalents and Short-term Investments

At February 29, 2008, we had cash, cash equivalents and short-term investments of $297.4 million
compared with $739.5 million at February 28, 2007. The $442.1 million year-over-year decrease was driven
primarily by purchases of property and equipment; stock repurchases and dividend payments; and cash used in
operating activities. These uses of cash were partially offset by cash provided by proceeds from the sale of
property and equipment.

At February 29, 2008, we had no investments in auction rate securities. We do not intend to invest in that
type of security in the foreseeable future.

Net-owned Inventory

Merchandise inventory decreased to $1.57 billion at February 29, 2008, from $1.64 billion at February 28,
2007. Merchandise payable decreased 1.1 percent to $912.1 million from $922.2 million last year. Despite the net
sales decrease, consolidated and domestic segment net-owned inventory decreased by $52.8 million and $106.9
million, respectively. We achieved our previously announced goal to reduce our domestic segment net-owned
inventory at February 29, 2008, compared to February 28, 2007, by $100 million to $150 million. In order to
achieve the goal, we increased our mix of current in-program inventory and increased our focus on in-stocks for our
most productive stock keeping units.

Liquidity

Our primary sources of liquidity include borrowing under the credit facility, available cash and cash
equivalents, expected reductions in net-owned inventory and landlord reimbursements for store construction. The
facility contains representations and warranties, conditions, covenants and events of default that are customary for
this type of credit facility; however, it contains no financial covenants. Tt places limitations on specific uses of
berrowings, including for dividends, stock repurchases and acquisitions. We do not believe the limitations
contained in the credit facility will, in the foreseeable future, adversely affect our ability to use the credit facility
and execute our business plan.

Potential additional sources of cash in fiscal 2009 include proceeds from the sale of a subsidiary and an
income tax refund due to the carryback of a portion of our net operating loss for the 2008 fiscal year. We will
evalvate funding alternatives as necessary to support future needs.

Expected uses of cash in fiscal 2009 include contractual obligations described below and funds required to
support our operating activities, including an increase in inventory levels in advance of the holiday season.
Potential uses of cash that are subject to our discretion include:

e capital expenditures, primarily for new store construction, store relocations, information technology
systems and existing store updates; and

¢ payment of dividends.
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We experienced a loss in fiscal 2008 of $319.9 million, and our cash, cash equivalents and short-term
investments position declined from $739.5 million at the end of fiscal 2007 to $297.4 million at the end of fiscal
2008. We have projected only a modest improvement in our loss for fiscal 2009 compared with our loss for fiscal
2008. This outlook is based on the following:

* A continuation of current operating trends through the first half of fiscal 2009 and an improvement
in second half trends

* A continuation of weak macroeconomic trends, particularly in the first half of the fiscal year

¢ Improved retail execution, leading to higher close rates and improved basket, offsetting a decline in
store traffic

¢ Sales growth in key product areas

We have taken steps to enhance our liquidity by amending and increasing our asset-based credit facility in
January 2008 to $1.3 billion from $500 million. Our plans to manage our liquidity position in fiscal 2009 include
improving our close rates and attachment rates, which would have a positive impact on both sales and margin;
improving working capital through targeted improvements in net-owned inventory; reducing projected capital
expenditures by $75 million to $95 million below prior year levels; suspending our stock repurchase program;
maintaining an intense focus on controlling expenses; and maintaining strong relationships with our vendors to
ensure continued availability of vendor credit.

We have considered the impact of the financial outlook on our liquidity and have performed an analysis of
the key assumptions in our forecast such as sales, gross margin and SG&A expenses; an evaluation of our
relationships with vendors, including availability of vendor credit; and an analysis of cash requirements, including
our net-owned inventory position, other working capital changes, capital expenditures and borrowing availability
under our credit facility. Based upon these analyses and evaluations, we expect that our anticipated sources of
liquidity will be sufficient to meet our obligations without disposition of assets outside of the ordinary course of
business or significant revisions of our planned operations through fiscal 2009.

Capital Expenditures

Capital expenditures, net of total landlord reimbursements, for fiscal 2008 totaled $226.2 million and
included:

e  $123.5 million related to new store construction, store relocations, store refreshes and category
resets for the domestic segment;

¢ $79.5 million related to information technology;
e $15.8 million related to distribution and other non-store capital expenditures; and
e  $7.5 million related to the international segment.

Fiscal 2008 capital expenditures reflect a reduced level of capital expenditures from our previous plan of
approximately $255 million driven by our actions to conserve capital.

Page 38 of 84




Contractual Obligations

CONTRACTUAL OBLIGATIONS AT FEBRUARY 29, 2008

Payments Due by Fiscal Year
(Amounts in millions) Total 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 Thereafter
Contractual obligations'™:
Operating leases™®
Active properties.......... $3.9769  $392.5 $390.9 $378.5 $373.1 $367.9 $2.074.0

Closed locations............ 3750 43.1 41.3 40.4 378 377 174.7
CarMax leases™ ........... 341.1 289 28.9 28.9 28.9 28.9 196.6
Capital leases™ ... 52.4 8.4 6.5 5.9 5.0 4.2 22.4
Financing lease ‘
obligations ................ 14.0 1.0 08 | 0.7 0.6 0.9 10.0
Other debt™ .........ocoovevvenee. 2.2 2.2 - - - - -
Interest payments.............. 63.2 79 7.4 6.9 6.5 6.1 284
Other contractual
obligations™.................. 789.3 153.0 139.0 114.3 117.8 120.2 145.0
Total.....ccccovvririrrnriicrene, $5.614.1 $637.0 $614.8 $575.6 $569.7 $565.9 $2.651.1

@ Included in other long-term liabilities on our consolidated balance sheet ai February 29, 2008, are: a $61.4 million liability for setf-
insurance obligations; a $49.8 million liability for unrecognized tax benefits and related interest; an $18.8 million obligation for deferred
compensation; and a $6.3 million liability for asset retirement obligations. Because the timing of their future cash flows is uncertain, these
other long-term liabilities are excluded from this table.

® See Note 10, Lease Commitments, of the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for further information related to lease commitments
on active properties.

© Operating lease obligations do not include payments to landlords for real estate taxes, common area maintenance and insurance. These
amounts, if included in the above table, would increase total operating lease obligations by approximately $1.2 billion as calculated as of
February 29, 2008,

@ CarMax, Inc.. a former subsidiary, currently operates 23 of its sales locations pursuant to leases under which we are the primary obligor. In
conjunction with the separation of CarMax, we have assigned each of these leases to CarMax, but we remain contingently liable under the
leases. The obligations are fully funded by sublease income from CarMax.

) See Note 8, Debt, of the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.

© Other contractual obligations include a $702.6 million obligation related to our information technology services contract with IBM. This
seven-year contract was signed in early fiscal 2008. The remaining commitments in other contractual obligations relate primarily 1o
marketing.

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

Other than our operating leases described in Note 10, Lease Commitments, of the Notes to Consolidated
Financial Statements, we did not have any off-balance sheet arrangements at February 29, 2008.

Domestic Segment Superstore Revitalization Program

From the beginning of fiscal 2001 through fiscal 2008, we built as new, relocated or fully remodeled 313
Superstores, or 46 percent of the company’s 682 domestic segment Superstores, net of closures, as part of an
overall effort to bring a more contemporary shopping experience to our customers. In addition to new store designs,
we have increased inventory levels on the sales floor in virtually all stores to help ensure that customers find
complete consumer electronics solutions, including all the accessories they need.

During fiscat 2008, the domestic segment opened 61 Superstores and fully remodeled 1 Superstore.
Eighteen of the opened stores were relocations and 43 were incremental stores. Net expenses related to domestic
segment relocations and remodels totaled $21.0 million in fiscal 2008. Relocation expenses primarily include
expenses associated with completing 18 relocations. In fiscal 2008, the average accelerated depreciation expense
per relocated store was approximately $0.1 million, booked ratably from the time the decision is made to relocate
the store to closure, and the average lease impairment expense was approximately $1.0 million, booked when we
cease use of the property. Capital expenditures, net of landlord reimbursements, to build a new or relocated store
averaged approximately $1.4 million in fiscal 2008.
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As of February 29, 2008, there were 82 stores that had been relocated under our store revitalization
program with results available for at least 12 months following their relocation. There were also 109 stores open
moere than 12 months on February 29, 2008, that were incremental to our overall store base. Of those 109
incremental stores, 95 had been open more than 24 months.

The §2 relocated stores open more than 12 months produced the following results for their 12-month
periods after grand opening:

* An average sales change that was approximately 25 percentage points better than the sales pace of
the rest of the store base during the same time periods

» A return on invested capital, including lease termination and sublease costs on vacated stores, of
approximately 9 percent

¢ A return on invested capital, excluding lease termination and sublease costs on vacated stores, of
approximately 23 percent

The 109 incremental stores open more than 12 months produced a return on invested capital of
approximately 13 percent measured at the end of the first 12 months after grand opening. The 95 incremental
stores open more than 24 months produced a return on invested capital of approximately 20 percent measured at the
end of the second 12 months after grand opening.

Our prototype format has evolved significantly since we began our revitalization program in fiscal 2001.
During fiscal 2008, Circuit City introduced a new Superstore format called the city™ that features a highly
interactive environment with 20,000 square feet per store. Store Associates use headsets and tablet PCs to assist in
the sales process. The merchandising strategy for the city™ includes carrying a reduced assortment in the store
compared with traditional Circuit City Superstores, while maintaining strong assortments and inventory levels in
key categories. Circuit City’s the city'™ prototype includes approximately 75 percent of the total square footage as
selling area. Because results from the Superstore openings prior to 2008 are not necessarily indicative of the results
we expect to see from our new prototype stores, primarily due to the reduced size of the new prototype, after this
year we do not intend to update the average sales change and return on invested capital metrics from all stores
opened since fiscal 2001. We expect to disclose a relevant metric to evaluate our real estate openings and
performance in future filings.

We remain committed to updating our store base. We expect to continue to open new and relocated stores,
though at a pace somewhat slower than fiscal 2008 and our previous fiscal 2009 plans. As we build stores, we are
committed to selecting real estate that will enhance our competitive position and enable us to improve our operating
results. The mix of new versus relocated stores opened in any one year will depend upon the availability of sites
that we expect would meet or exceed our performance hurdles.

Fiscal 2009 Outlook
The company expects the following in fiscal 2009:
¢ Consolidated net sales relatively unchanged from the prior year
¢ A mid-single digit domestic segment comparable store sales decline

e Improvement in earnings from continuing operations before income taxes as a percentage of
consolidated net sales of 50 basis points to 100 basis points

¢ No tax expense or benefit, excluding discrete items, associated with domestic segment operations
e Capital expenditures, net of landlord reimbursements, of $130 million to $150 million
® Depreciation and amortization expense of approximately $185 million

¢ A reduction in domestic segment net-owned inventory from February 29, 2008, to February 28,
2009 of $50 million to $100 million

* 45 to 55 domestic segment Superstore openings, including 6 to 8 relocations
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The fiscal 2009 outlook is based on the following assumptions:

* A continuation of current operating trends through the first half of fiscal 2009 and an improvement
in second half trends

* A continuation of weak macroeconomic trends, particularly in the first half of the fiscal year

* Improved retail execution, leading to higher close rates and improved basket, offsetting a decline in
store traffic

¢ Sales growth in key product areas including LCD televisions, notebook computers and GPS
devices, offset by sales declines in projection and tube televisions, desktop computers and portable
audio products

¢ Improvements in merchandise margins, shrink and markdowns

e Mid-single digit percentage growth in SG&A dollars compared with fiscal 2008 driven by
incremental and relocated store openings and increased compensation costs

For the first quarter, the company expects to record a loss from continuing operations before income taxes
of $180 million to $195 million, compared with a loss of $82.5 million in the prior year first quarter. The significant
increase in the loss results from our expectation of a continuation of the operating trends seen in the second half of
fiscal 2008, including a year-over-year decline in gross margin and deleveraged expenses from incremental and
relocated stores opened in the prior 12 months that offset savings from expense reduction initiatives. Due to
operating improvements, traction against current sales- and gross margin-driving initiatives, and more favorable
year-over-year comparisons, the company expects a gradual recovery in the second half of fiscal 2009, achieving an
improved pre-tax profit from continuing operations in the fourth quarter as compared to fiscal 2008 results.

Forward-Looking Statements

The provisions of the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995 provide companies with a “safe
harbor” when making forward-looking statements. This “safe harbor” encourages companies to provide prospective
information about their companies without fear of litigation. We wish to take advantage of the “safe harbor”
provistons of the Act. Our statements that are not historical facts, including statements about management’s
expectations for fiscal 2009 and beyond, are forward-looking statements and involve various risks and
uncertainties. In most cases, you can identify our forward-looking statements by words such as “expect,” “believe,”
“should,” “may,” “plan,” “will” or similar words.

Forward-looking statements are estimates and projections reflecting our judgment and involve a number of
risks and uncertainties that could cause actual results to differ materially from those suggested by the forward-
looking statements. Although we believe that the estimates and projections reflected in the forward-looking
statements are reasonable, our expectations may prove to be incorrect. The retail industry and the specialty retail
industry, in particular, are dynamic by nature and have undergone significant changes in recent years. Our ability to
anticipate and successfully respond to the continuing challenges of our industry is key to achieving our
expectations. Important factors that could cause actual results to differ materially from estimates or projections
contained in our forward-looking statements include

¢ changes in the amount and degree of competition, pricing and promotional pressure exerted by current
competitors and potential new competition from competitors using either similar or alternative methods
or channels of distribution such as the Internet, telephone shopping services and mail order;

our response to pricing and promotional activities of our competitors;

the successful implementation of our initiatives to accelerate sales growth, gross margin improvement
and expense reductions;

our ability to reduce our overall cost and expense structure and to maintain cost reductions while
continuing to grow sales;

our ability to control and leverage expenses as a percentage of sales;
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changes in general economic conditions including, but not limited to, financial market performance,
consumer credit availability, interest rates, inflation, energy prices, personal discretionary spending
levels, trends in consumer retail spending (both in general and in our product categories),
unemployment and consumer sentiment about the economy in general;

the level of consumer response to new products or product features in the merchandise categories we
sell and changes in our merchandise sales mix;

the pace of commoditization of digital products;
the impact of inventory and supply chain management initiatives on inventory levels and profitability;
our ability to generate sales and margin growth through expanded services offerings;

the impact of new products and product features on the demand for existing products and the pricing
and profit margins associated with the products we sell;

significant changes in retail prices for products and services we sell;

changes in availability or cost of financing for working capital and capital expenditures, including
financing to support development of our business;

the lack of availability or access to sources of inventory or the loss or disruption in supply from one of
our major suppliers;

the impact of a significant change in the relationships with key vendors;
our inability to liquidate excess inventory should excess inventory develop;

our inability to maintain sales and profitability improvement programs for our Circuit City Superstores,
including our store revitalization plan;

our ability to continue to generate strong sales growth through our direct sales channel;

the availability of appropriate real estate locations for relocations and new stores;

the cost and timeliness of new store openings and relocations;

consumer reaction to new store locations and changes in our store design and merchandise;

our ability and the ability of Chase Card Services to successfully market and promote the third party
credit card program being offered by Chase Card Services;

the extent to which customers respond to promotional financing offers and the types of promotional
terms we offer;

our ability to attract and retain an effective management team or changes in the costs or availability of a
suitable work force to manage and support our service-driven operating strategies;

the impact of our wage management initiative on Associate morale and our reputation with customers;

the impact of initiatives related to upgrading merchandising, marketing and information systems on
revenue and operating margin and the costs associated with these investments;

changes in production or distribution costs or costs of materials for our advertising;
effectiveness of our advertising and marketing programs for increasing consumer traffic and sales;

the imposition of new restrictions or regulations regarding the sale of products and/or services we sell,
changes in tax rules and regulations applicable to the imposition of new environmental restrictions,
regulations or taws or the discovery of environmental conditions at current or future locations, or any
failure to comply with such laws or any adverse change in such laws;

the outcome of our review of strategic alternatives for our international segment;

deterioration of the expected future performance of our international segment, resulting in an additional
goodwill impairment charge;
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¢ the timely production and delivery of private-label merchandise and level of consumer demand for
those products;

¢ reduced investment returns or other changes relative to the assumptions for our pension plans that
impact our pension expense;

¢ changes in our anticipated cash flow and liquidity;

* whether, when and in what amounts share repurchases may be made under our stock buyback program;
® adverse results in litigation matters;

¢ currency exchange rate fluctuations between Canadian and U.S. dollars and other currencies;

* the global regulatory and trade environment;

& the disruption of global, national or regional transportation systems;

s the occurrence of severe weather events or natural disasters that could significantly damage or destroy
stores or prohibit consumers from traveling to our retail locations, especially during peak selling
periods; and

¢ the successful execution of the initiatives to achieve revenue growth and increase gross profit margin
underlying our projected 2009 results as discussed under “Fiscal 2009 Outlook™ in MD&A.

We believe our forward-looking statements are reasonable. However, undue reliance should not be placed
on forward-looking statements, which are based on current expectations.

Item 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures about Market Risk.

We are exposed to market risk from potential changes in the U.S./Canadian currency exchange rates as they
relate to inventory purchases and the translation of our international segment’s financial results.

Inventory Purchases

A portion of InterTAN’s purchases are from vendors requiring payment in U.S. dollars. Accordingly, there
is risk that the value of the Canadian dollar could fluctuate relative to the U.S. doliar from the time the goods are
ordered until payment is made. InterTAN’s management monitors the foreign exchange risk associated with its
U.S. dollar open orders on a regular basis by reviewing the amount of such open orders; exchange rates, including
forecasts from major financial institutions; local news; and other economic factors. At February 29, 2008, U.S.
dollar open purchase orders totaled approximately $11.4 million. A 10 percent decline in the value of the Canadian
dollar would result in an increase in product cost of approximatety $1.1 million for those orders. The incremental
cost of such a decline in currency values, if incurred, would be reflected in higher cost of sales in future periods. In
these circumstances, management would take product pricing action, to the degree commercially feasible.

Translation of Financial Results

Because we translate a portion of our international segment’s financial results from Canadian dollars to
U.S. dollars, fluctuations in the value of the Canadian dollar have a direct effect on reported consolidated results.
We do not hedge against the possible impact of this risk. A 10 percent adverse change in the foreign currency
exchange rate would not have a significant impact on our results of operations or financial position.
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Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data.

Circuit City Stores, Inc.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS

Years Ended February 29 or 28

{Amounts in thousands except per share data) 2008 % of Sales 2007 % of Sales 2006 % of Sales
NET SALES ... e $11,743,691 100.0 $12,429754 100.0 $11,514,151 100.0
Cost of sales, buying and warehousing ...........cc.ccee..... 9,318,174 79.3 9,501,438 76.4 8.703,683 75.6
GROSS PROFIT ...t 2,425,517 20.7 2,928,316 236 2,810,468 244
Selling, general and administrative eXpenses..........o... 2,770,104 23.6 2,841,619 229 2,595,706 225
Impairment of goodwill...........oovviiiiiiiii 26,800 0.2 92,000 0.7 - -
OPERATING (LOSSYINCOME.............coooovvvenne (370,587) (3.2) (3,303) (0.0} 214,762 1.9
TNLETEST INCOMIE oo cerir e rie s st srnre s ranreee e 18,188 0.2 27,150 0.2 21,826 0.2
[DEETEST EXPENBE v.vevverrererrereeeerrnceeeeeacemeneesenee e seese e 1,180 0.0 1,519 0.0 3,143 0.0
(Loss) earnings from continuing operations

befOre INCOME LAXES ...ttt ssiaarena s (353,579) (3.0} 20,328 0.2 233,445 2.0
Income tax (benefit) eXPense ........cevveineenieercrninens (32.226) (0.3) 30,510 0.2 85.996 0.7
NET (LOSS) EARNINGS FROM

CONTINUING OPERATIONS ..................... (321,353) (2.1 (10,182) (0.1) 147,449 1.3
EARNINGS (LOSS) FROM DISCONTINUED

OPERATIONS, NET OF TAX ................c.... 1,456 0.0 128 0.0 {5,350) (0.0}
CUMULATIVE EFFECT OF CHANGE IN

ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLES, NET OF TAX - - 1,773 0.0 (2,353) _(0.0)
NET (LOSS) EARNINGS .......c....cooiiveeeeene, $ 319897y (2.7) § (8.281) (0.1} $ 139746 1.2
Weighted average common shares:

BASIC vvioviiioi v veeie et sees e sre e e s enes 165,134 170,448 177,456

DIULED o ern e rn s e e ens 165,134 170,448 180,653
(LOSS) EARNINGS PER SHARE:
Basic:

Continuing OPErations ..........coovrresrnieeiniension $ (1.95) $ (0.06) $ 0.83

Discontinued OPerations. ... ..ouecerreiereeeeresessesessnes $ .01 5 0.00 $ (0.03)

Cumulative effect of change in accounting

PLINCIPIES ....vvveeeeiii ittt $ - 5 0.01 $ (0.01)

Basic (loss) earnings per Share ..........coccccovovivvecenene $ (1.94) 3 (0.05) $ 0.79
Diluted:

Continuing OPerations .......c.coceeeererereececenerereeens $ (1.95) 5 {0.06) $ 0.82

Discontinued operations. . ... ...eeeeresccaseesceececeenees $ 0.01 $ 0.00 $ (0.03)

Cumulative effect of change in accounting

PIANCIPIES -evoveeeeecece e isesises. D - $ 0.01 $ (0.01)
Diluted (Joss) earnings per share ..........ccoeeveeeneene $ (1.94) 3 (0.05) $ 0.77

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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Circuit City Stores, Inc.
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

{Amounts in thousands except share data)

At February 29 or 28
2008 2007

ASSETS

CURRENT ASSETS:

Cash and cash eqUIVAIENES ........c..cooirieeceeeeees e $ 296,055 $ 141,141
ShOT-tErM INVESHMIEIILS ....\ii i icrerireres et asre e e re s e srssse e b e sbeseesresrneans 1,366 598,341
Accounts receivable, net of allowance for doubtful accounts ..........ccoceveieenenee. 330,599 382,555
MerchandiSe IVENTOLY ......covvoveiceceiieeciciie ettt e eee e s e e st s en e e rserne 1,573,560 1,636,507
Deferred income taxes, net of valuation alloWance .......ccovvvvvenvevesrecivsencieinenne 38,672 34,868
INCOME LAX FECEIVADIE ..ot veereevesneersnreeraesesresssssaesssaenssaeearses 158,116 42,722
Prepaid expenses and Other CUITent assets .........o.vecvvvveevirnrrcreieceseeecreee e 41,352 47,378
TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS.. ..o et 2,439,720 2,883,512
Property and equipment, net of accumulated depreciation............ FRUTOURUPIURRTUOION 1,037,321 921,027
Deferred iNCOME (AXES .......oouvicereciiii ettt ee et s e vt or e nrenres - 31,910
GOOAWILL ..ottt e s st bbb 118,031 121,774
Other intangible assets, net of accumulated amortization ...............cceeeeeeeviecnens 18,400 19,285
OLhEE ASSEES .....cvieererreriienisare et et s se e sre e st etes s esers s e s e et brasabsssebesbans 132,458 29.775
TOTAL ASSETS ...t $3.745,930 $4,007,283
LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY

CURRENT LIABILITIES:

Merchandise payable ..o e $ 912,094 $ 922205
EXPEnses Payable..... .o e e e e ab s 232,386 281,709
Accrued expenses and other current Liabilities .........ccooeeieeiiiiciicccceeceern 346,818 404,444
AcCrued COMPENSALION. ...eviiieicreericrei ittt et e e se e s s reans 85,127 98,509
ACCTUCH INMCOIME LAXES ..voviveiiiveiiiie ittt eeeee e eeeeeeesreesseserarssssessesessssansssensrssesnans 17,680 -
Current installments of long-term debt..........coeoviieiviiceieicee e 11,582 7,162
TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES ... 1,605,687 1,714,029
Long-term debt, excluding current installments ..........cccooeeioeeicnrecniriceein e 57,050 50,487
Accrued SIraight-lineg FENE ........ccocieieiieeiieeer e e ers s et rer s e eereannenen 145,960 133,759
Deferred reNt CTEAIES ..........ooverereerececs e et es e e e e seesaeeneerenre s eeaneenentnenenne 163,662 143,877
Accrued 1ease 1ermMIiNAioN COSIS ..ioiiiirmrririseeerererrisre s asresiesisssestesnteseeseessaneas 82,900 76,326
Deferred income taxes, net of valuation allowance .........cooovveeeeivcvevecveeceeesee e 35,586 -
Other Habillties ...oocoviriii ettt a et sae s st ssve e s e areens 151910 97,561
TOTAL LIABILITIES ...ttt 2,242,755 2,216,039
Commitments and contingent liabilities

STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY:

Common stock, $0.50 par value; 525,000,000 shares authorized;

168,859,462 shares issued and outstanding (170,689,406 in 2007) .......ccccccvcun.... 84,430 85,345
Additional paid-in capital ........c.ccviieireeee et 319,573 344,144
Retained arNINES......cccveiiiie ettt e eme s rae s e rennsnaneene 981,112 1,336,317
Accumulated other comprehensive INCOME..........oovvreiieieeieeiececeiecee e 118.060 25438
TOTAL STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY ..o, 1,503,175 1,791,244
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY .................. $3,745,930 $4.007.283

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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Circuit City Stores, Inc.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

Years Ended February 29 or 28
{Amounts in thousands) 2008 2007 2006
OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Net (loss) earnings... s 3 (319,897) § (8,281) $ 139,746
Adjustments to reconc1le net (]055) cammgs to net cash (uscd m) pmwded by
operating activities of continuing operations:
Net (earnings) loss from discontinued operations (1,456) (128) 5,350
Deprecintion EXPeNSe ........coveeeiecoe e cvrsns e . 183,433 177,828 160,608
AMOITZALON EXPEISE ....cruerermeeteremrcreeriermesetraereaseeeremtaeseasse s st smt e saeses et eresemsas seadsaesessus seaniasbes 4,188 3,645 2,618
Impairment of O0AWIll ..o e s 26,000 92,000 -
Stock-based compensduon EXPEIISE ...cviviiiiieaiiae st eriss st sas s s sttt re s aee 21,610 26,727 24,386
Loss (gain) on dispositions of propeny and cqu;pmenl 2,734 (1,439) 2,370
Provision for deferred income taxes.. - 27,587 72717 (14,252)
Cumulative effect of change in accounung prmc1pics - (1,773) 2,353
Other... . 5,821 1,689 (1,726)
Changes in operatmg assets and l]abllmeq
Accounts receivable, net.. 45,814 (133,152) 16,552
Merchandise inventory ... 84,362 49352 (231,114)
Prepaid expenses and O{her current assets.. 5,875 (9.580) (17.341)
T DSBS - vrreecerrverrssreresereeeeeieseeseesaeeseseeesaasansassanseesmnesansaes e aseessaneeasansessrassseransenssnsnessarnnnsaen (4,844) 535 (3,061)
Merchandise payable ... (19,237) 73,317 211,362
Expenses payable ... BSOS PP U VO PPV ORRTRTURTUROP 11,527 55,722 40,921
Accrued expenses, othcr current lmbllmes .md income taxes . (188,010) {81,364) 43,202
Other long-term HabilItIEs ..c......ooir et s et s bbb s 68,867 {1,474) (17.032)
NET CASH (USED IN) PROVIDED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES OF CONTINUING OPERATIONS .......... (45,626) 316,341 364942
INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Purchases of property and eqUIPMENL.... ..o vceieecnnccnniei s cnreneenennnns (O25,382)  (285,7253)  (254,451)
Proceeds from sales of property and cquipment - 71,451 38,620 55421
Purchases of investment securities .. e (2,649,670)  (2,002,123)  (1,409.760)
Sales and maturities of INVESUMENL SECUMLIES ...ovvvvievieniieireerrirraiiessreersrermnsreesaesressanensesseesennas 3,246,254 1,926,086 1,014910
OLhET INVESIUNEZ ACLIVITIES ..virrvvririrecrncriereserairenerersssisrssesressresesssesenses e sc sressssensssesemsansassassssranas (1,482) (11,567 -
NET CASH PROVIDED BY (USED IN) INVESTING ACTIVITIES OF CONTINUING OPERATIONS.... 341,171 (334.709) (593,880}
FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Proceeds from shoTt-term BOITOWINES .v.vivi e ce e 276,168 35,657 73,954
Principal payments on Short-term Bormowings ....cc v eercneiereiniienninnsssenesensenenemmene (2 199391) (56,912) (53,893)
Debl ISSUANCE COStSuuiiiiiiiininiriininienans (19,750) - -
Proceeds from long-termdebt ...................c... - 1,216 1,032
Principal payments on long-term debt............. (19,140) (6,724) (1,829)
Changes in overdraft balances ... (49,630) 19,347 (22,540
Repurchases of common SocK ...t e (46,757) {237.203) (338,476)
Issuances of COMIMON SLOCK ...cvviiiiiiiiiiiiiiser e ss e e e srnsser e res e sesreenn et esanermes e shssasessesnnas 4,907 89,662 38.038
Dividends paid.... (26,844) (20.126) (12.844)
Excess lax beneﬁl from stock- based compcnsauon - 15,729 -
Redemption of preferred share purchase rghts ... e - - (1,876)
Other fiNancing ACHVIIES .oovvieiiiiiiis e s s er ey e chs ersene s sanss s sanias (1,218) (1.424) -
NET CASH USED IN FINANCING ACTIVITIES OF CONTINUING OPERATIONS ....oooovoveirerrnsvernesvevsnnenn_{(157,855)  (160,778)  (318.434)
DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS:
Operating cash flows............. 15,855 3,310 (9.884)
Investing cash flows............... - 2,958 (8,089)
Financing cash flOWS ... et s s (57 (592) =
NET CASH PROVIDED BY (USED IN} DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS ...ccoovicriiieniiriennmnsinsnsierasrermssvans 15,798 5,676 (17.973)
EFFECT OF EXCHANGE RATE CHANGES ON CASH ....ccoiiiiiiiiicie ettt st sias s b s 1,426 (1.359) 1,655
Increase (decrease) in cash and cash eqUIVALENLS ......cvviviiiirnr e s 154,914 (174,829) (563.,690)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of Year ... 141,141 315970 879.660
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF YEAR ......ociiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiininitinn s ninnnninn e ee e eneaaies $ 296055 § 141,141 $ 315970

See accompanying noies to consolidated financial statements.
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Circuit City Stores, Inc,
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF STOCKHOLDERS® EQUITY AND COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (LOSS)

Accumulated
Additional Other
Common Stock Paid-in Relained Comprehensive
{Amounts in thousands except per share data) Shares Amount Capital Eamings Income Total
BALANCE AT FEBRUARY 28, 2005 ..o 188.150 $94,075 $721.038 $1.239,7114 $25,100 $2,079,927
Comprehensive income:
Nelt eamings ... . - - - - 138,746 - 139,746
Other comprehenswe income (Iosn;), net of 1axes:
Foreign currency translation adjustment
(net of deferred taxes of $11,316) ............. - - - - 19,500 19,500
Minimum pension liability adjustment
(net of deferred taxes of $182) .................. - - - - (313) 313)
Comprehensive iNCOME....o.u e o imiiareersennns 158,933
Repurchases of common StOCK ... crcccrcineennenes (19,396} (9,698) (328,778) - - (338,476)
Compensation for S1ock awirds oo veeniecineeiiene, - - 24,386 - - 24,386
Exercise of common stock oplionS........cocvoceoienniinenns 3,830 1,915 36,752 - - 38,667
Shares isseed under stock-based incentive plans,
net of cancellations, and other,...,.ovieevieneiccennen. 2,205 1,103 (2,160) - - {1.057)
Tax effect from stock issued ..c.ovvevivecrirvnnnes - - 6,973 - - 6,973
Redemption of preferred share purch.xse rights.. - - - (1,876) - (1.876)
Dividends — common stock ($0.07 per share)............. - = — (12.844) - (12.844)
BALANCE AT FEBRUARY 28, 2006......coovcuererererererrrernees 174,789 87.395 458,211 1,364,740 44,287 1,954,633
Comprehensive loss:
INEE EOSS 1.etrrrvreemrsieeriesireseiaesessaeressssrasssssnesesssessane - - - (8,281) - (8.281)
Other comprehensive {loss) income, net of laxes:
Foreign currency translation adjustment
(net of deferred taxes of $3.630) e - - - - (7.793) (7,793)
Unrealized gain on available-for-sale
securities (net of deferred 1axes of $219)... - - - - 377 377
Minimum pension liability adjustment
(net of deferred taxes of $136) .....coovenneee - - - - (229) 229
Comprehensive loss .. (15,926}
Adjustment to initially apply SFAS No 158 (net of
deferred taxes of $6,628)..... - - - - (11,204) {11,204)
Repurchases of common stock.. (10,032) (5.016) (232,187 - - (237.203)
Compensation for stock awards ......c.ccocoverenane. - - 26,727 - - 26,727
Adjustment to initiatly apply SFAS No. 123(R) ......... - - (2,370 - - (2,370}
Exercise of common stock oplions, nel...........cow. 5,767 2,883 86,228 - - 39,111
Shares issued under stock-based incentive plans,
net of cancellations, and other..........cceovvvveivvieene 165 83 (1,027) - - (544)
Tax effect from SLOcK 1S8UE .o - - 8,562 - - 8,562
Dividends — common stock ($0.115 per share) ........... - - - (20,142) = {20.142)
BALANCE AT FEBRUARY 28, 2007 ......cccicvniminsmsmsesninens 170.689 85,345 344,144 1.336,317 25,438 1,791,244
Comprehensive loss:
NELT0SS 11t resressirss e ress s verse s esrss s ar s ans - - - (319,897 - (319.397)
Other comprehensive income {loss), net of taxes:
Foreign currency translation adjustment
(net of deferred taxes of $11.107) ............ - - - - 41,206 41.206
Unrealized loss on available-for-sale
securities (net of deferred taxes of $105)... - - - - (180) (180)
Pension plan adjustments
(net of deferred taxes of $30.976) ............ - - - - 51,596 51,596
Comprehensive loss .. (227,275}
Adjustment to initially app[y FIN 48 .......................... - - 407 (8,400) - (7.993)
Repurchases of common SI0CK.....mmiarrianin (2,500) (1,250} (45.507) - - (46.,757)
Compensation for stock awards ......oeeeeveeevieeicnieeees - - 21,610 - - 21,610
Exercise of common stock options, net...........cccocoeee. 461 230 4,602 - - 4,832
Shares issued under stock-based incentive plans.
net of cancellations, and other.........ccooeevvveerrvrenec. 209 105 (1.289) - - (1,184)
Tax effect from SIOCK 135080 .o - - {4,394) - — (4,394)
Dividends — common stock ($0.16 per share) ............. - - - (26,908) - (26,908)
BALANCE AT FEBRUARY 29, 2008 168,859 $84.420 $319,573 $ 981,112 3118060 $1.503,175

See accompanying notes 10 consolidated financial stutements.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. BASIS OF PRESENTATION

Description of Business: Circuit City Stores, Inc. is a leading specialty retailer of consumer electronics,
home office products, entertainment software, and related services. The company has two reportable segments: its
domestic segment and its international segment.

The domestic segment is engaged in the business of selling brand-name and private-label consumer
electronics, personal computers, entertainment software, and related services in its stores in the United States and
via the Web at www circuitcity.com and www firedog.com. At February 29, 2008, the company’s domestic
segment operated 682 Superstores and 11 other stores in 158 U.S. media markets.

The international segment, which is comprised of the operations of InterTAN, Inc., is engaged in the
business of selling private-label and brand-name consumer electronics in Canada. The international segment’s
headquarters are located in Barrie, Ontario, Canada, and it operates through retail stores and dealer outlets in
Canada primarily under the trade name The Source By Circuit City™. At February 29, 2008, the international
segment conducted business through 779 retail stores and dealer outlets, which consisted of 502 company-owned
stores and 277 dealer outlets. The international segment also operates a Web site at www.thesource.ca. In February
2007, the board of directors authorized management to explore strategic alternatives for InterTAN, Inc., which
could include the sale of the operation.

Effective January 28, 2007, the company returned the management of 92 Rogers Plus® stores to Rogers
Wireless Inc. Results from the Rogers Plus® stores are presented as results from discontinued operations in ail
periods presented.

The company closed a domestic segment operation in fiscat 2007 that previously had been held for sale.
The company sold a domestic segment subsidiary, MusicNow, LLC, in fiscal 2006. Results from these operations
are presented as results from discontinued operations on the consolidated statements of operations.

Reclassifications and Adjustments: To improve presentation and comparability, amounts previously
reported in the consolidated financial statements have been reclassified to conform to current-year presentation.

During fiscal 2006, the company identified errors in previously issued financial statements. Management
evaluated the impact of the errors in the consolidated financial statements for previously reported periods, on the
2006 fiscal year and on earnings trends. Based upon the evaluation, management concluded the errors and the
corrections of such errors were not material to the company’s financial statements taken as a whole and corrected
the errors in the fourth quarter of fiscal 2006. As a result, the company recognized an after-tax reduction in net
earnings of $3.2 million during the fourth quarter of fiscal 2006 that relates primarily to benefits recognized in the
first three quarters of fiscal 2006 for the estimated non-redemption of the rewards feature on the Circuit City
Rewards Credit Card. The company also recognized an after-tax benefit of $0.4 million during the fourth quarter of
fiscal 2006 to correct errors in lease accounting and for other matters in the consolidated financial statements for
fiscal 2004 and fiscal 2005.

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Principles of Consolidation: The consolidated financial statements of the company conform to U.S.
generally accepted accounting principles. The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of the
company and its wholly owned subsidiaries. All significant intercompany balances and transactions have been
eliminated in consolidation.

Use of Estimates: The preparation of financial statements in conformity with U.S. generally accepted
accounting principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of
assels, liabilities, revenues and expenses and the disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities. Actual results may
differ from these estimates.

Fiscal Year: The company’s fiscal year begins on March 1 and ends on February 28 or February 29.

Revenue Recognition: The company recognizes revenue when the sales price is fixed or determinable,
collectibility is reasonably assured and the customer takes possession of the merchandise, or in the case of services,
at the time the service is provided. Shipping and handling costs billed to customers are included in revenue.
Revenue excludes sales taxes and is reported net of estimated sales returns. Estimated sales returns are based on
historical return rates.
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The domestic segment sells extended warranty contracts that provide repair and/or replacement coverage
exceeding that offered under traditional manufacturers’ warranties and earns a commission for each contract sold.
Because unrelated third parties are the primary obligors under these contracts, commission revenue for these plans
is recognized in net sales at the time of sale. For the international segment, the company is the primary obligor for
its extended warranty programs. Accordingly, extended warranty revenue is deferred at the point of sale and
recognized as revenue over the life of the contract. Costs associated with the extended warranty contracts are
deferred at the peint of sale and recognized over the life of the contract.

For revenue transactions that involve multiple deliverables, the revenue associated with any undelivered
elements is deferred until it is earned. The amount of revenue deferred in connection with the undelivered elements
is determined based on the fair value of the undelivered item.

In fiscal 2008, the company extended its consumer credit card program agreement under which Chase Card
Services offers private-label and co-branded credit cards to new and existing customers. The company 1s
compensated under the agreement primarily based on the number of new accounts opened less promotional
financing costs. The net results from the agreement are included in net sales on the consolidated statements of
operations.

Gift Cards: The company sells gift cards to its customers in its stores and on its Web site and records
deferred revenue at the time of sale. The deferred revenue is included in accrued expenses and other current
liabilities on the consolidated balance sheets. The gift cards do not have an expiration date. The company
recognizes income from gift cards when the gift card is redeemed by the customer or when the likelihood of the gift
card being redeemed by the customer is remote (gift card breakage} and it is determined that the company does not
have an obligation to remit the value of unredeemed gift cards to the relevant jurisdictions. The gift card breakage
rate is based upon historical redemption patterns. Based on the company’s historical information, the likelihood of
a gift card remaining unredeemed can be determined 24 months after the gift card is issued. At that time, breakage
income is recognized for those cards for which the likelihood of redemption is deemed to be remote. Gift card
breakage revenue is included in net sales on the consclidated statements of operations.

Sales Incentives: The company offers sales incentives, such as discounts and rebates that entitie customers
to a reduction in the price of a product or service. For sales incentives in which the company is the obligor, the
liability is included in accrued expenses and other current liabilities on the consolidated balance sheets. The
reduction in revenue is recognized when the sale is recorded based on the value of the incentive expected to be
redeemed. The company also offers rewards points for purchases using the Circuit City private-label or the co-
branded credit card. The value of points earned through the rewards card is included in accrued expenses and other
current liabilities on the consolidated balance sheets. Prior to February 29, 2008, the value of points earned through
the rewards card and recorded in the financial statements did not consider the non-redemption of rewards points as
the company did not have sufficient historical experience to estimate redemption rates. At February 29, 2008, the
company concluded that sufficient historical experience existed to allow the company to make a reasonable and
reliable estimate of future rewards points that will be redeemed. 'As a result, the company recorded a $12.5 million
benefit in revenue to record the estimated non-redemption of rewards points earned since the inception of the
program. Beginning in fiscal 2009, the value of points earned through the rewards card will be recorded as a
reduction in revenue at the time the points are earned based on the percentage of points ¢xpected to be redeemed.
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Cost of Sales, Buying and Warehousing and Selling, General and Administrative Expenses: The
primary costs classified in each major expense category include

Cost of Sales, Buying and Warehousing Selling General and Administrative Expenses
* total cost of merchandise sold including: * compensation, benefit costs and stock-
—Cost of transportation of merchandise from based compensation expense for store and
vendors to the company’s stores corporate Associates;
~Vendor allowances that are not a * occupancy costs of store and corporate
reimbursement of specific, incremental and facilities;
identifiable costs to promote a vendor's products; * depreciation related to store and corporate
+ cost of services performed; assets;
» physical inventory losses; * marketing;
« markdowns; » vendor allowances that are a reimbursement
* buying costs; of specific, incremental and identifiable
= customer shipping and handling expenses; and costs to promote a vendor’s products;
« operating costs of the company’s distribution and * costs related to relocating and remodeling store
repair centers. locations;

*» professional service fees; and
« other administrative costs, such as credit card
service fees, supplies, and bad debt.

Vendor Allowances: The company receives cash consideration from vendors, including volume incentives
and reimbursements for specific costs such as price protection and marketing, through a variety of programs. Most
vendor allowances, including those in excess of the cost to promote a vendor’s product, are recognized as a
reduction to cost of sales, buying and warehousing when the related product is sold or other conditions of the
allowances are met. Cash consideration that represents a reimbursement of specific, incremental, identifiable direct
costs incurred by the company to promote the vendors’ products is reported as a reduction to selling, general and
administrative expenses in the period in which the costs are incurred.

Pre-Opening Expenses: Non-capital expenditures for store openings are expensed as incurred and
primarily include store occupancy, compensation, benefit, marketing and supply costs. Due to the adoption of
FASB Staff Position 13-1, “Accounting for Rental Costs Incurred during a Construction Period,” beginning in
fiscal 2007, rent incurred during the construction period is also included in pre-opening expenses. Previously, such
costs were capitalized.

Marketing Expenses: Marketing costs, primarily consisting of print, Internet and television
advertisements, are expensed the first time the advertisement runs and are included in selling, general and
administrative expenses on the consolidated statements of operations. Marketing expenses, net of specific vendor
reimbursements, were $403.5 million in fiscal 2008, $424.6 million in fiscal 2007 and $431.8 million in fiscal
2006.

Stock-Based Compensation: The company sponsors various stock-based incentive plans. Effective March
1, 2006, the company adopted Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 123 (revised 2004), “Share-Based
Payment” (SFAS No. 123(R)), using the modified prospective transition method. The statement requires companies
to recognize the fair value of employee stock-based compensation awards over the period during which the
employee is required to provide service in exchange for the award. In addition, the statement requires companies to
estimate the number of equity awards granted that are expected to be forfeited, recognize compensation expense
based on the number of awards that are expected to vest, and subsequently adjust estimated forfeitures to reflect
actual forfeitures. Under SFAS No. 123(R), companies are required to report excess tax benefits as a financing cash
inflow rather than as a reduction of taxes paid.

Prior to the adoption of SFAS No. 123(R), the company accounted for stock-based compensation using a
fair value-based method in accordance with SFAS No. 123, “Stock-Based Compensation.” Under SFAS No. 123,
the company recognized forfeitures when they occurred and benefits of tax deductions in excess of recogmzed
compensation costs were reported as operating cash flows. Because the fair value recognition provisions of SFAS
No. 123 and SFAS No. 123(R) were materiaily consistent under the company’s stock-based incentive plans, the
adoption of SFAS No. 123(R) did not have a materia! impact on the company’s financial position, results of
operations or cash flows,
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The company values stock option grants using the Black-Scholes option valuation model and recognizes
expense over the options’ vesting periods, For nonvested stock, the market value at the grant date is expensed over
the requisite service periods. The vesting of certain nonvested stock awards may accelerate if the company achieves
operating profit margin targets. The expense related to the performance-accelerated awards is recognized based on
the likelihood of management achieving the performance targets.

Earnings Per Share: Basic earnings per share is computed using the weighted average number of shares
of common stock outstanding. For purposes of calculating basic earnings per share, awards of nonvested stock that
are subject to the satisfaction of certain conditions are excluded from the weighted average number of common
shares outstanding until all necessary conditions have been satisfied. Diluted earnings per share is computed using
the weighted average number of common shares and potentially dilutive common equivalent shares outstanding,
including nonvested stock.

Foreign Currency Translation: The local currency of the international segment, the Canadian dollar, is its
functional currency. For reporting purposes, international segment assets and liabilities are translated into U.S.
dollars using the exchange rates in effect at the balance sheet date. Income and expense items are translated using
monthly average exchange rates. The effects of exchange rate changes on the translation of the net assets of the
international segment are included as a component of stockholders’ equity in accumulated other comprehensive
income. Gains and losses from foreign currency transactions are immaterial and are included in selling, general and
administrative expenses on the consolidated statements of operations.

Fair Value of Financial Instruments: The carrying values of the company’s cash equivalents, short-term
investments, accounts receivable, current liabilities and long-term debt approximate fair value.

Cash and Cash Equivalents: Cash and cash equivalents consist of cash on hand, money market funds and
tax-exempt commercial paper with original maturities of three months or less. All cash and cash equivalents were
available for general corporate purposes at February 29, 2008, and February 28, 2007.

Outstanding checks in excess of funds on deposit at February 29, 2008, and February 28, 2007 totaled
$36.3 million and $86.0 million, respectively, and are included in expenses payable on the company’s consolidated
balance sheets.

Short-Term Investments: As part of its cash management program, the company maintains a portfolio of
marketable investment securities. The company primarily invests in variable rate demand notes that are classified as
available-for-sale securities. The variable rate demand notes are long-term instruments; however, the interest rates
are reset approximately every seven days, at which time the securities can be sold. Accordingly, the securities are
classified as current assets on the consolidated balance sheets. The marketable investment securities are carried at
cost, which approximates fair value due to their frequent interest rate resets. The cost of securities matured or sold
is based on the specific identification method.

Accounts Receivable: Accounts receivable primarily includes vendor allowances, credit and debit card
payments due from banks and receivables for warranty repairs performed by the company.

Merchandise Inventory: Inventory is comprised of finished goods held for sale and is stated at the lower
of cost or market value. Cost is determined by the average cost method and includes the cost of freight from the
vendor to the company’s distribution centers, or in the case of direct shipments, the cost of freight from the vendor
to the company’s stores. Also included in the cost of inventory are certain vendor allowances that are not a
reimbursement of specific, incremental and identifiable costs to promote vendors’ products. The company estimates
the realizable value of inventory based on assumptions about forecasted consumer demand, market conditions and
obsolescence. If the estimated realizable value is less than cost, the inventory value is reduced to its estimated
realizable value through a markdown recorded against the cost of the inventory. Markdowns establish a new cost
basis for the company’s inventory. Subsequent changes in facts or circumstances do not result in the reversal of
previously recorded markdowns or an increase in that newly established cost basis.

The company’s inventory loss reserve represents estimated physical inventory losses that have occurred
since the last physical inventory date. Independent physical inventory counts are taken on a regular basis to ensure
that the inveniory reported in the consolidated financial statements is accurately stated. During the interim period
between physical inventory counts, the company reserves for anticipated physical inventory tosses on a location-by-
location basis.

Property and Equipment: Property and equipment is stated at cost less accumulated depreciation.
Depreciation is calculated using the straight-line method over the assets’ estimated useful lives. Property held under
capital leases is stated at the lower of the present value of the future minimum lease payments at the inception of
the lease or fair value of the leased property and s depreciated on a straight-line basis over the lease term.
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Leasehold improvements are depreciated over the shorter of their estimated useful lives or the period from the date
the assets are placed in service to the end of the expected lease term.

The company capitalizes external direct costs of materials and services used in the development of internal-
use software and payroll and payroll-related costs for Associates directly involved in the development of internal-
use software. Once capitalized software is available for use, it is included in furniture, fixtures and equipment and
depreciated on a straight-line basis over its estimated useful life, generally a period of three to seven years.
Software maintenance and training costs are expensed in the period incurred.

Impairment or Disposal of Long-Lived Assets: The company reviews long-lived assets for impairment
when circumstances indicate the carrying amount of an asset may not be recoverable. Impairment is indicated when
the sum of undiscounted estimated future cash flows expected to result from the use of the asset is less than the
asset’s carrying value. If an impairment exists, an impairment loss is recognized for the difference between the
asset’s carrying value and its estimated fair value. When the company commits to a plan to close or relocate a store,
distribution center or repair center, estimates of the depreciable lives of fixtures, equipment and leasehold
improvements to be abandoned are revised to reflect the use of the assets over their shortened useful lives.

Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets: The excess of the purchase price over the fair value of identifiable
net assets of acquired companies is allocated to goodwill. Goodwill is not amortized but is evaluated for
impairment at the reporting unit level on an annual basis, during the second quarter of each fiscal year, or more
frequently if events or circumstances indicate that goodwill may be impaired. A reporting unit is an operating
segment, or one level below an operating segment, for which discrete financial information is available and is
regularly reviewed by management.

The company estimates the fair value of the reporting unit using the average of discounted cash flows and
comparative market multiples of earnings before interest, taxes, depreciation and amortization (EBITDA). If the
fair value of the reporting unit is less than its carrying value, then the implied fair value of the goodwill of the
reporting unit must be calculated and compared to the carrying value of that goodwill. If the implied fair value of
the goodwill is less than its carrying value, goodwill is deemed to be impaired and an impairment loss, equal to the
excess of the carrying value over the implied fair value, must be recorded.

The company completed its annual impairment testing during the second quarter of fiscal 2008 and
determined there was no impairment. In the fourth quarter of fiscal 2008, in connection with previously announced
plans to explore strategic alternatives for InterTAN, Inc., which could include the sale of the operation, as well as a
decline in comparative market multiples of EBITDA, the company identified a triggering event requiring it to
evaluate the goodwill of the international segment for possible impairment. The company performed an
impairment analysis, which included a third-party valuation, and recorded an impairment charge of $26.0 million to
write down goodwill to its estimated fair value.

During the fourth quarter of fiscal 2007, due to deterioration in sales and margin trends of the international
segment, the company determined that it was necessary to evalonate goodwill associated with this segment for
impairment. As a result of this analysis, the company recorded an impairment charge of $92.0 miltion to write
down goodwill to its estimated fair value.

The company has identifiable intangible assets that primarily were acquired through acquisition. The :
identifiable intangible assets are primarily contract-based and are amortized on a straight-line basis over their .
estimated useful lives.

Income Taxes: The company files a consolidated federal income tax return for its U.S. operations and
accounts for income taxes in accordance with SFAS No. 109, “Accounting for Income Taxes.” Deferred income
taxes reflect the impact of temporary differences between the amounts of assets and liabilities recognized for
financial reporting purposes and the amounts recognized for income tax purposes, measured by applying currently
enacted tax rates. SFAS No. 109 requires that deferred tax assets be reduced by valuation allowances if, based on
the consideration of all available evidence, it is more likely than not that some portion of the deferred tax asset will
not be realized. Significant weight is given to evidence that can be objectively verified. The company evaluates its
deferred income taxes quarterly to determine if valuation allowances are required by considering available
evidence, including historical and projected taxable income and tax planning strategies. During fiscal 2008, the
company’s U.S. operations generated a cumulative three-year loss. Based on the cumulative three-year loss and
other available objective evidence, management concluded that a full valuation allowance should be recorded
against the net deferred tax assets of the U.S. operations. During fiscal 2008, the company recorded a valuation
allowance of $127.4 million against the net deferred tax assets of the company’s U.S. operations.
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On March 1, 2007, the company adopted Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) Interpretation No.
48, “Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes — an interpretation of FASB Staterment No. 109” (FIN 48) and
FASB Staff Position FIN 48-1, “Definition of Settlement in FASB Interpretation No. 48” (“FSP FIN 48-1). FIN
48 prescribes a recognition threshold and measurement attribute for the financial statement recognition and
measurement of a tax position taken or expected to be taken in a tax return. Positions taken by an entity in its
income tax returns must satisfy a more-likely-than-not recognition threshold, assuming that the positions will be
examined by taxing authorities with full knowledge of all relevant information, in order for the positions to be
recognized in the consolidated financial statements. Quarterly, the company evaluates the income tax positions
taken, or expected to be taken, to determine whether these positions meet the more-likely-than-not threshold
prescribed by FIN 48. Unrecognized tax benefits not expected to be settled in one year are classified as other
liabilities on the consolidated balance sheet.

The company accounts for interest and penalties as a component of income tax expense (benefit).

Accrued Straight-Line Rent: The company conducts a substantial portion of its business in leased
properties. Some of the company’s leases contain rent escalations, which are based on either scheduled and
spectfied escalations of the minimum rent or a change in an index that may be completely unrelated to the use of
the underlying leased property, such as a multiple of the change in the Consumer Price Index. The company
recognizes rent expense for leases that include scheduled and specified escalations of the minimum rent on a
straight-line basis over the base term of the lease. Any difference between the straight-line rent amount and the
amount payable under the lease is included in accrued straight-line rent on the consolidated balance sheets.

Landlord Reimbursements: The company constructs stores on both owned and leased land and may
receive reimbursement from a landlord for the cost of the structure. These transactions are evaluated under sale-
leaseback accounting, and in cases where substantial funding is received, the transaction qualifies as a sale. Any
gain or loss from the transaction is deferred and amortized as an increase or decrease in rent expense on a straight-
line basis over the base term of the lease. The deferred gain is included in deferred rent credits, and the deferred
loss is included in other assets on the consolidated balance sheets. Landlord reimbursements from transactions
qualifying as sales are included in cash flows from investing activities as proceeds from sales of property and
equipment.

In cases where reimbursement from a landlord results in substantial under-funding of costs incurred for the
construction of the structure, the company is deemed to have continuing involvement and the transaction qualifies
as a financing under sale-leaseback accounting. The landlord reimbursement is considered a financing and is
included in long-term debt on the consolidated balance sheets. The interest on the financing lease obligations is
recognized using the effective interest method over the base term of the lease. Landlord reimbursements from
transactions qualifying as financings are included in cash flows from financing activities as proceeds from long-
term debt.

In instances where the company leases an existing structure, reimbursement from a landlord for tenant
improvements is classified as an incentive and included in deferred rent credits on the consolidated balance sheets.
The deferred rent credit is amortized as rent expense on a straight-line basis over the base term of the lease.
Landlord reimbursements from these transactions are included in cash flows from operating activities as a change
in other long-term liabilities.

Accrued Lease Termination Costs: At a location’s cease-use date, the future lease payments and related
costs, from the date of closure to the end of the remaining lease term, net of contractual or estimated sublease rental
income, are recorded in selling, general and administrative expenses on the consolidated statements of operations.
The current portion of accrued lease termination costs is included in accrued expenses and other current liabilities
on the consolidated balance sheets. The non-current portion of accrued lease termination costs is presented
separately on the consolidated balance sheets. The net lease termination cost is discounted using a credit-adjusted
risk-free rate of interest. The company evaluates these assumptions each quarter and adjusts the liability
accordingly.

Insurance: The company is self-insured for certain losses related to workers’ compensation, general
liability, automobile liability, and health and welfare plans. A portion of these self-insured risks is managed
through a wholly-owned captive insurance subsidiary. Self-insurance liabilities are estimated using valuations
provided by third-party actuaries and are included in accrued expenses and other current liabilities and in other
liabilities on the consolidated balance sheets.

Comprehensive Income (Loss): Comprehensive income (loss) consists of net (loss) earnings and certain
other items that are recorded directly to stockholders’ equity, net of deferred income taxes. In addition to net (loss)
earnings, comprehensive income (loss) includes foreign currency translation adjustments, adjustments to reflect the
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funded status of the company’s pension plans on the consolidated balance sheets, and unrealized gains and losses
on available-for-sale securities.

The following table presents accumulated balances for each classification of other comprehensive income,
net of deferred income taxes,

At February 29 or 28
{(Amounts in millions) 2008 2007
Foreign currency translation adjustments.........oeevcvveercceennes $ 78.0 $36.8
Pension plan adjusiments .....c..ocecvveverrmnrenvccnrecesiee e 39.9 (11.8)
Unrealized gain on available-for-sale securities ..................... 0.2 04
Accumulated other comprehensive iINCOME ........cccevvevenveeenne. $118.1 $25.4

Risks and Uncertainties: The company is a leading specialty retailer of consumer electronics, home office
products, entertainment software, and related services. The diversity of the company’s products, customers and
geographic operations reduces the risk that a severe impact will occur in the near term as a result of changes in its
customer base, competition or markets. During fiscal 2008, the domestic segment’s five largest suppliers accounted
for approximately 47 percent of its merchandise purchased. The major suppliers were Sony, Hewlett-Packard,
Samsung, Toshiba and Canon USA. The international segment’s five largest suppliers accounted for approximately
35 percent of its merchandise purchased and were Acer, Rogers Wireless, Apple, Hewlett-Packard and Ingram
Micro.

The company experienced a loss in fiscal 2008 of $319.9 million, and its cash, cash equivalents and short-
term investments position declined from $739.5 million at the end of fiscal 2007 to $297.4 million at the end of
fiscal 2008. The company expects only a modest improvement in its projected loss for fiscal 2009. This outlook is
based on the following:

® A continuation of current operating trends through the first half of fiscal 2009 and an improvement
in second half trends

* A continuation of weak macroeconomic trends, particularly in the first half of the fiscal year

* Improved retail execution, leading to higher close rates and improved basket, offsetting a decline in
store traffic

e Sales growth in key product areas

The company has taken steps to enhance its liquidity by amending and increasing its asset-based credit
facility in January 2008 to $1.3 billion from $500 million. The company’s plans to manage its liquidity position in
fiscal 2009 include improving close rates and attachment rates, which would have a positive impact on both sales
and margin; improving working capital through targeted improvements in net-owned inventory; reducing projected
capital expenditures by $75 million to $95 million below prior year levels; suspending the stock repurchase
program; maintaining an intense focus on controlling expenses; and maintaining strong relationships with its
vendors to ensure continued availability of vendor credit.

The company has considered the impact of the financial outlook on its liquidity and has performed an
analysis of the key assumptions in the forecast such as sales, gross margin and SG&A expenses; an evaluation of its
relationships with vendors, including availability of vendor credit; and an analysis of cash requirements, including
its net-owned inventory position, other working capital changes, capital expenditures and borrowing availability
under the credit facility. Based upon these analyses and evaluations, the company expects that its anticipated
sources of liquidity will be sufficient to meet its obligations without disposition of assets outside of the ordinary
course of business or significant revisions of its planned operations through fiscat 2009.

3. RECENT ACCOUNTING PRONOUNCEMENTS

The company adopted Financial Accounting Standards Board Interpretation No. 47, “Accounting for
Conditional Asset Retirement Obligations™ (FIN No. 47), an interpretation of SFAS No. 143, “Asset Retirement
Obligations,” on February 28, 2006. The impact of adopting FIN No. 47 was the recognition of additional net
assets amounting to $1.5 million; an asset retirement obligation of $5.1 million; and a charge of $3.7 million (2.4
million, net of tax), which was included in cumulative effect of change in accounting principle in the fiscal 2006
consolidated statement of operations.
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As discussed in Note 2, Summary of Significant Accounting Policies, and Note 9, Income Taxes, the
company adopted FIN 48 and FASB Staff Position FIN 48-1, “Definition of Settlement in FASB Interpretation No.
48" (“FSP FIN 48-1") on March 1, 2007.

In September 2006, the FASB issued SFAS No. 157, “Fair Value Measurements.” SFAS No. 157 defines
fair value, establishes a framework for measuring fair value, and expands disclosure of fair value measurements.
The provisions of SFAS No. 157 are effective for the company beginning with the first quarter of fiscal 2009 for
financial assets and liabilities as well as for any other assets and liabilities that are carried at fair value on a
recurring basis in the financial statements. In February 2008, the FASB issued FSP 157-2, “Partial Deferral of the
Effective Date of SFAS 157, which delays the effective date of SFAS No. 157 for all nonrecurring fair value
measurements of nonfinancial assets and nonfinancial habilities. The company does not expect that the
implementation of SFAS No. 157, as it relates to financial assets, financial liabilities and other assets and liabilities
that are carried at fair value on a recurring basis, will have a material effect on its results of operations, financial
position or cash flows. The company is currently evalvating the potential impact of SFAS No. 157 as it relates to
nonrecurring fair value measurements of nonfinancial assets and liabilities.

In June 2007, the Emerging Issues Task Force (EITF) issued EITF 06-11, “Accounting for Income Tax
Benefits of Dividends on Share-Based Payment Awards.” This Issue requires income tax benefits from dividends
or dividend equivalents that are charged to retained earnings and are paid to employees for equity classified
nonvested equity shares, nonvested equity share units, and outstanding equity share options to be recognized as an
increase to additional paid-in capital. The Issue is to be applied prospectively to the income tax benefits related to
awards declared in fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2007, and interim periods within those fiscal years.
The company will adopt the Issue effective March 1, 2008, and does not expect the adoption to have a material
impact on its financial position, results of operations or cash flows.

In February 2007, the FASB issued SFAS No. 159, "The Fair Value Option for Financial Assets and
Financial Liabilities." SFAS No. 159 permits entities to choose to measure many financial instruments and certain
assets and liabilities at fair value. SFAS No. 159 will be effective for the company beginning with the first quarter
of fiscal 2009 and will be applied prospectively. The company does not expect the adoption of this new standard to
have a material impact on its financial position, results of operations or cash flows.

In December 2007, the FASB issued SFAS No. 141(R), “Business Combinations,” and SFAS No. 160,
“Noncontrolling Interests in Consolidated Financial Statements, an amendment of ARB No. 51.” These new
standards significantly change the accounting for and reporting of business combination transactions and
noncoatrolling interests (previously referred to as minority interests} in consolidated financial statements. Both
standards will be effective for the company beginning with the first quarter of fiscal 2010 and will be applied
prospectively. The company does not expect adoption of these standards to have a material impact on its financial
position, results of operations or cash flows.

4. (LOSS) EARNINGS PER SHARE

The following table presents a reconciliation of the denominators used in the {loss) earnings per share
calculations. '

Years Ended February 29 or 28

{Shares in millions) 2008 2007 2006
Weighted average common shares......oooevveerniiveiercviens 165.1 170.4 177.5
Potentially dilutive common equivalent shares:

OPLONS ..ot esee e st reetbesbesraesrrans - - 2.7

Nonvested StOCK ....ccoovriiiinicicirc e - - 0.5
Weighted average common shares and potentially

dilutive common equivalent shares ........................ 165.1 170.4 180.7
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For fiscal 2008 and fiscal 2007, no options or nonvested stock were included in the computation of the
company’s diluted loss per share because the company reported net losses from continuing operations. The fiscal
2006 computation of potentially dilutive common equivalent shares excluded certain options to purchase shares of
common stock because the exercise prices were greater than the average market price of the common shares and,
therefore, the effect would be anti-dilutive. Shares excluded were as follows:

Years Ended February 29 or 28

(Shares in millions) 2008 2007 2006
OPUIOTIS ..ottt e e e 8.2 11.6 5.2
INONVESLED SEOCK vvvevieeece it eeee e errer e eee s 4.1 4.2 -

5. SHORT-TERM INVESTMENTS

The following table presents the estimated fair value of the company’s investment securities.

At February 29 or 28
{Amounts in millions) 2008 2007
Available-for-sale securities:
Variable rate demand notes .........coecvvevoneinivcencnnane. $ - $596.6
L 11 1 1< OO 03 0.6
Trading SECUNTES .....ccovieeceeieeecee e e 1.1 i1
TOUAL ottt et e e ee s v te e s e e rans $1.4 $598.3

As of February 28, 2007, the company’s marketable investment securities consisted primarily of variable
rate demand notes. These securities are carried at cost which approximates fair value due to their frequent interest
rate resets.

6. PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT

Property and equipment, stated at cost, is summarized as follows:

At February 29 or 28

(Amounts in millions) 2008 2007
Land....oooo s $ 338 $ 332
Buildings (up t0 25 YEars).....c.covcererirenerrverrensessenenns 277.8 274.5
Construction N Progress.......c..coceeecereecercrieserieseeverens 148.8 111.1
Furniture, fixtures and equipment (1 to 8 years)........... 1,184.5 1,075.5
Leasehold improvements (up to 17 years) .....ccceeveneee. 773.7 689.3
Capital leases (3 to 27 years)........ccccooeceececvencrvcranrenns 64.1 35.3
Other ...t 2.9 24

2,485.6 2,221.3
Less accumulated depreciation...........cccoccovernvvecrernecnenn 1.448.3 1,300.3
Property and equipment, net........c..ooovevviviineieneciineenene. $1,037.3 § 9210

Capitalized interest totaled $7.8 million for fiscal 2008, $8.0 million for fiscal 2007 and $5.0 million for
fiscal 2006.

The net book values of assets under capital leases are summarized as follows:

At February 29 or 28
(Amounts in millions) 2008 2007
BUITAINGS ...t ra e n e $27.6 $28.8
Furniture, fixtures and equipment ...............ccccoeevievecniecnnnnn 36.5 6.5
64.1 353
Less accumulated depreciation..........c.coeeveereireniennninenicninnnene 13.3 8.4
Assets under capital leases, Net.........ccocooeeeeinririeeriennrrennenas $50.8 $26.9

Depreciation expense for assets under capital leases was $6.1 million during fiscal 2008, $3.9 million
during fiscal 2007 and $1.6 million during fiscal 2006.
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7. GOODWILL AND OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS

The changes in the carrying amount of goodwill by reportable segment were as follows:
Domestic International

{Amounts in millions) Segment Segment Total

Balance at February 28, 2006..........ccoocovvvveecrecrnen $3.1 $2209  $224.0
Purchase price adjustments for tax benefits .................. - 0.3) {0.3)
IMPAITMENT ..c.veeeerererece s e e s eeree e eeraneenes 0.1) (92.0) (92.1)
DASPOSILIONS ....cieeceecce e e (3.0) - 3.0)
Foreign currency translation...........ccecceveevnvicreveeneeenns - (6.8) (6.8
Balance at February 28, 2007......cccveivirirreveieeenns - 121.8 121.8
Purchase price adjustments for tax benefits .................. - (1.0) (1.0)
IMPAITMENT .ot e - (26.0) (26.00
Foreign currency translation..........cveineninnieninn - 23.2 232
Balance at February 29, 2008............ccocvievereviicinenn, i $118.0  $118.0

The company completed its annual impairment testing during the second quarter of fiscal 2008 and
determined there was no impairment. In the fourth quarter of fiscal 2008, in connection with previously announced
plans to explore strategic alternatives for InterTAN, Inc., which could include the sale of the operation, as well as a
decline in comparative market multiples of EBITDA, the company identified a triggering event requiring it to
evaluate the goodwill of the international segment for possible impairment. The company performed an
impairment analysis, which included a third-party valuation, and recorded an impairment charge of $26.0 million to
write down goodwill to its estimated fair value.

During the fourth quarter of fiscal 2007, due to deterioration in sales and margin trends of the international
segment, the company determined that it was necessary to evaluate goodwill associated with this segment for
impairment. As a result of this analysis, the company recorded an impairment charge of $92.0 million to write
down goodwill to its estimated fair value.

The gross carrying value, accumulated amortization and weighted average amortization periods of other
intangible assets were as follows:

At February 29, 2008

Gross Weighted Average
. Carrying  Accumulated Amortization

(Amounts in millions) Value Amortization Penod (in vears)
Amortizable intangible assets:

Dealer-relationship cORtracts..........coevvvevnienreeicieennen $18.3 $ 34 20.0

Vendor CONIACE ......covieeicieneces et iee e 7.0 3.7 5.6

L0 £ 1<) OSSOSO PPR 0.3 0.0 10.0
TOtal o e $25.6 $ 72 15.9

At February 28, 2007
Gross Weighted Average
Carrf(mg Accumulated Amortization
Value

(Amounts in millions) Amortization Period {in vears)

Amortizable intangible assets:

Dealer-relationship contracts..........c.ccoceeeeeeeeeieeencnn. $154 $ 2.1 20.0
Vendor CONTaCt.......ovvvienininineieseieeieneinnenecnns 11.9 7.6 4.1
Employment and non-compete agreements............... 5.9 4.5 34
OMRET ..o 0.3 0.0 10.0
TOLAL ..o e $33.5 $14.2 11.3

Estimated amortization expense for the next five fiscal years is $2.7 million in 2009, $2.4 million in 2010,
$0.9 million in 2011, $0.9 million in 2012 and $0.9 million in 2013. These amortization expense estimates are
subject to fluctuations in foreign currency exchange rates.

8. DEBT

The company has a revolving credit facility secured by inventory and credit card receivables. This facility
is used to support letters of credit and to meet borrowing needs. Loans primarily bear interest at a spread over
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cither LIBOR or prime. The facility was amended in January 2008 to increase the available borrowings and to

extend its expiration date from June 2009 to January 2013.

The facility has a stated commitment of $1.3 billion, which includes a $1.25 billion commitment for the
domestic segment and a $50 million commitment for the international segment. In general, the maximum amount
of borrowings, including loans and outstanding letters of credit, ouistanding on any date may not exceed the lesser
of a borrowing base calculated as a percentage of the company’s eligible inventory and credit card receivables or 90
percent of $1.3 billion. The company is required to maintain a minimum level of available borrowings under the
facility. Dividend payments would be limited to an aggregate of $15 million in any fiscal year if available
borrowings under the facility are, or at any time during the next twelve months are projected to be, less than 25% of
the lesser of $1.3 billion and the borrowing base. The lenders may require that proceeds from the sale of inventory
be applied on a daily basis to payment of amounts owed under the facility if available borrowings are less than 15%
of the lesser of $1.3 billion and the borrowing base for five consecutive days.

The facility contains representations and warranties, conditions, covenants and events of default that are
customary for this type of credit facility; however, it contains no financial covenants.

At February 29, 2008, the company had outstanding letters of credit of $50.1 million and no borrowings,
leaving $967.6 million available for borrowing under the credit facility. At February 28, 2007, the company had
outstanding letters of credit of $60.1 million and no borrowings, leaving $439.9 million available for borrowing
under the previous revolving credit facility. The company was in compliance with all covenants at February 29,

2008.
Long-term debt is summarized as follows:
At February 29 or 28

(Amounts in millions) 2008 2007
Obligations under capital leases, payable in varying

installments through January 2023 .........ocoouinninnnenenn. $52.4 $37.7
Financing lease obligations, payable in varying

installments through January 2022........ccoeiiiiieine, 14.0 14.8
OHRET. vttt e . 5.2
Total tong-term debt......ccoocevccioieiiee e 68.6 57.7
Less current installments ... 11.6 7.2
Long-term debt, excluding current installments................ $57.0 $50.5

Other debt of $2.2 million represents a financing obligation for services purchased at an interest rate of 5.95
percent. The financing obligation had an original term of 36 months, with monthly payments of principal and
interest, and is scheduled to mature in December 2008. The financing obligation contains customary

representations, warranties and covenants as well as events of default.

The maturities of long-term debt for the next five years are as follows:

Financing

(Amounts in millions) Capital Lease
Fiscal Year Leases Oblipgations  Other
2009 et e $8.4 $1.0 $22
2010 0t $6.5 $0.8 $ -
201 T $5.9 $0.7 $ -
20012t $5.0 $0.6 $ -

$ -

2003 $4.2 $0.9
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9. INCOME TAXES
The (loss) earnings from continuing operations before income taxes were as follows:

Years Ended February 28 or 29

(Amounts in millions) 2008 2007 2006
U.S. (10SS) @AIMINES -..ovooeeooeeeeeeeee oo $(375.8) § 36.09  $237.7
Foreign earnings (1085} ... oo 22.2 (15.7) (4.3
(Loss) earnings from continuing operations

befOre INCOME LAXES ..ovevvvveeeeeeceieeee e e eer e e e e $(353.6) $ 20.3 $233.4

@ Included in U.S. (loss) earnings are the goodwill impairment charges of $26.0 miltion for fiscal 2008 and $92.0 million for fiscal
2007 recorded by InterTAN, Inc. For segment reporting under SFAS No. 131, “Disclosures about Segments of an Enterprise and
Related Information,” the operations of InterTAN, Inc. are included in the international segment,

® Includes earnings (loss) from Canadian, Puerto Rican and Hong Kong operations.

Total income tax (benefit) expense on (loss) earnings was allocated as follows:

Years Ended February 28 or 29

(Amounts in millions) 2008 2007 2006
CONtiNUING OPETALIONS ....evervevreraeesiaeersareersereereeseerecreaseenaaseens $(32.2) $30.5 $86.0
Discontinued Operations .......cccccveeeviercereeeeeeeeeereereen e e 0.8 0.4 3.D
Change in accounting prinCiples .....vvviverreevrnrirerreninrenennnis — 1.0 (1.3)
Total income tax (benefit) EXPense . c.vveervireoniivreiecrrirnonorns $31.4) $31.9 $81.6

The components of income tax (benefit) expense on (loss) earnings from continuing operations were as
foliows:

Years Ended February 28 or 29

(Amounts in millions) 2008 2007 2006
Current;
FRABTAL .ottt ettt e e v e r et raaseines $(74.0) $(36.5) $94.0
FOT@IZN ..o e 7.0 4.9) (2.1)
SHALE ..ottt s err e s nn e saen e 7.2 (0.8) 8.4
(59.8) (42.2) 100.3
Deferred:
| SLeTe =] | R 229 71.8 (13.9)
FOUBIZN 1o e nies e e st seese e erne e erees 2.4 (0.7 (0.3)
SR e 2.3 1.6 {0.1)
, 27.6 72.7 (14.3)
Income tax (benefit) EXPENSE .....ovvveeerrrererieererie e $(32.2) $305 $ 86.0
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The effective income tax rate applicable to results from continuing operations differed from the federal
statutory income tax rate as follows:

Years Ended February 28 or 29

2008 2007®_ 2006®

Federal statutory inCome tax rate ........coveveerieveenirenvnernesensnnes 35.0% 35.0% 35.0%
State and local income taxes, net of federal benefit................ (2.5) (6.4) 1.8
Non-deductible meals and entertainment...........c.ccccoevvveennrnne. 0.1 2.1 0.1
Return-to-provision adjustment.........covieeiciniiienricsisesinnnns - (5.5 -
Taxes on foreign income that differ from the federal

SLALULOTY TALE c.eivvviicriirieiirrerir e e e eenresiaesresseras s raessneerrasnes (0.1 5.0 (0.1)
Federal tax Credits ....ooooveeiiiece e evereccireeerieeeiee v e e ssee e snes 03 (3.5) (0.2)
Non-deductible goodwill impairment .......c.ccocveveeeriernennercnen. (2.6) 158.4 -
Tax-exempt interest iNCOME ......coccvieiinmiiinienionieieit s 0.9 (35.3) (1.1)
Non-deductible compensation.........ccocecveevencnirinnnicnesnen e (0.2) 4.8 0.2
Change in unrecognized tax benefits and related interest ....... (0.4) (8.2) (0.4)
Change in valuation allowance ..........cccoceecicecvccnrcnienr e (32.2) 4.5 -
Change in assumption regarding repatriation of the

undistributed earnings of Canadian subsidiaries................ 10.3 - -
(0711 T-) OO 0.7 (0.8) 1.5
Effective inCOmMe tax Tate........cccvcvveeeeiereiirecrrerareereessareessenes 9.1% 150.1% 36.8%

® The fiscal 2007 and fiscal 2006 amounts above have been revised to reflect the state income tax effects of significant components of
the reconciliation in the “state and local income taxes, net of federal benefit” component. Previously, the state income tax effects of
significant components of the reconciliation were included with their respective component.

The tax effects of temporary differences that give rise to a significant portion of the deferred tax assets and

liabilities from operations were as follows:

At February 28 or 29
(Amounts in millions) 2008 2007
Deferred tax assets:
Accrued Habilities .......ccccvcveevieceeeieeceeer e $ 874 $ 789
Stock-based compensation .........c.cooeeieininin e 333 318
Accrued straight-line rent and deferred rent credits. 101.0 104.3
Depreciation and amortization ... - 03
Deferred revenue .. ... 4.7 4.2
Tax credit and net operating loss carryforwards ...... 47.6 1.5
Future repatriation of foreign earnings and credits .. 43.1 1.5
Pension plans..............n - 6.8
Merchandise INVentory ..o 4.9 -
Federal benefit of state taxes and interest................. 8.5 -
OhET ..ot r e res s e ara s rareans 9.1 4.6
Gross deferred 1ax assets ......coevvervieviceneecccrcreree 349.6 243.9
Valuation allowance.......c..oveecveciciniriconeen e (129.8) (2.4)
Total deferred tax assets ........cccceevereenircireneenens 219.8 241.5
Deferred tax liabilities:
Depreciation and amortization ............ccccoceeveeeeene. 133.9 133.6
Merchandise INVeNtOry ..o - 0.5
Prepaid eXPenses ..o 8.8 8.0
Foreign currency translation adjustment.................. 41.0 2i4
Pension plans.......covviinni i 33.0 83
OUher ..o e - 2.9
Total deferred tax liabilities .......cc.cccoveneieniicenene 216.7 174.7
Net deferred tax assets......oovvererervrrensveercvneecraeseeiesecreenne $ 3.1 $66.8

Page 60 of 84




Deferred tax assets and liabilities were included in the consolidated balance sheets as follows:

At February 28 or 29
{Amounts in millions) 2008 2007
Current deferred tax assets in excess of liabilities ............... $38.7 $34.9
Non-current deferred tax assets in excess of liabtlities ........ - 31.9
Non-current deferred tax liabilities in excess of assets ........ (35.6) -
Net deferred ax ASSEl. ..o eeee s s e e e $ 3.1 $66.8

Quarterly, the company evaluates its deferred income taxes to determine if valuation allowances are
required. During fiscal 2008, the company’s U.S. operations generated a cumulative three-year loss. Based on the
cumulative three-year loss and other available objective evidence, management concluded that a full valuation
allowance should be recorded against the net deferred tax assets of the U.S. operations. The total valuation
allowance was $129.8 million at February 29, 2008. Based on the historical and future taxable earnings of the
foreign operations, management believes that it is more likely than not that the company will realize the benefit of
the deferred tax assets of its foreign operations at February 29, 2008.

During fiscal 2008, the company recognized a deferred tax asset of $23.7 million related to federal net
operating losses. As of February 29, 2008, the company had approximately $70.3 million of federal net operating
loss carryforward, of which $2.5 million represents federal tax deductions for stock-based compensation. The tax
benefit of these deductions will be recorded as an adjustment to additional paid-in capital in the fiscal year in which
the benefit is realized. The federal net operating loss carryforward expires in fiscal 2028. As of February 29, 2008,
the company had $7.7 million of alternative minimum tax credits, $2.6 million of general business credit
carryforward, and $0.1 million of foreign tax credit carryforward. The alternative minimum tax credits do not
expire. The general business credit carryforwards expire from fiscal 2026 to 2028. The foreign tax credit
carryforward expires in fiscal 2016. At February 29, 2008, there is a full valuation allowance recorded against the
net deferred tax assets of the U.S. operations.

As of February 29, 2008, deferred tax assets include $13.7 million related to state net operating losses and
credits. As of February 29, 2008, the company had approximately $235.5 million of state net operating loss
carryforwards. The net operating loss carryforwards expire from fiscal 2009 to fiscal 2028. Additionally, the
company has $4.2 million of state tax credits that do not expire. At February 29, 2008, there is a full valuation
allowance recorded against the net deferred tax assets of the U.S. operations.

As of February 28, 2007, the valuation allowance was $2.4 million and related to the deferred tax asset for
foreign tax credits and the deferred tax asset for capital loss carryforwards.

During fiscal 2008, the company changed its position under Accounting Principles Board Opinion No. 23,
“Accounting for Income Taxes — Special Areas,” to reflect its current intention that pre-acquisition earnings of its
Canadian subsidiaries will not be permanently reinvested. As a result of this decision, the company recorded a
benefit of $36.1 million.

As of February 28, 2007, the company had not provided for U.S. deferred income taxes or foreign
withholding taxes on pre-acquisition earnings of its Canadian subsidiary because the company deemed these
earnings to be permanently reinvested. If these pre-acquisition earnings were not considered permanently
reinvested, an additional deferred income tax liability of $6.9 million would have been provided.

On March 1, 2007, the company adopted the provisions of FIN 48 and FSP FIN 48-1. As a result, the
company decreased retained earnings by $8.4 million. At March 1, 2007, the company had unrecognized tax
benefits of $38.4 million, of which $17.6 millior would reduce the effective tax rate and $2.3 million would reduce
goodwill if recognized in future periods. At February 29, 2008, the company had unrecognized tax benefits of
$49.8 million, of which $11.9 million would reduce the effective income tax rate and $1.6 million would reduce
goodwill if recognized in future periods. At February 29, 2008, the company anticipated that it is reasonably
possible that total unrecognized tax benefits would decrease by up to approximately $16 million by February 28,
2009, as a result of agreed upon settlements with tax authorities, the expiration of statutes of limitations and other
resolutions of uncertainties.
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Changes in unrecognized tax benefits during the year were as follows:

Year Ended February 29
{(Amounts in millions) 2008
Unrecognized tax benefits at beginning of year.................. $38.4
Increases related to tax positions taken in prior years.......... 11.4
Decreases related to tax positions taken in prior years......... (3.9
Increases related to tax positions taken in the current year.. 7.5
Increases related to foreign currency fluctuations................ 03
Settlements with tax authorities ........cocvveeeeeccienirrce e, (2.6)
Lapse of statute of [imitations ........ccoocvevvenerrnneniccvncennnen (1.3}
Unrecognized tax benefits at end of year............................. $49.8

In conjunction with the adoption of FIN 48, the company has classified unrecognized tax benefits not
expected to be settled in one year as other liabilities on the consolidated balance sheet.

The Internal Revenue Service (“IRS8”) has completed its examination of the company’s federal income tax
returns for fiscal years 2001, 2002 and 2003. The IRS is currently examining the company’s fiscal 2004, 2005 and
2006 income tax returns. With limited exceptions, the company is no longer subject to federal, state, or local
income tax examinations for fiscal years before 2004, The statute of limitations for the Canadian tax returns is open
for fiscal 2003 to the present.

It is the company’s policy to account for interest and penalties as a component of income tax (benefit)
expense. At February 29, 2008, accrued interest was $12.3 million, and there were no accrued penalties. The total
amount of accrued interest at February 28, 2007, was $15.3 million, and there were no accrued penalties. The
decrease in accrued interest was primarily the result of a payment of $8.2 million to the IRS related to the
examination of fiscal years 2001, 2002 and 2003. The amount of interest expense recorded in the statements of '
operations was $3.9 million in fiscal 2008, $2.1 million in fiscal 2007 and $2.5 million in fiscal 2006. No penalties
were recorded in fiscal 2008, fiscal 2007 or fiscal 2006.

10. LEASE COMMITMENTS

The company conducts substantially all of its business in leased premises. The initial terms of these leases
generally range up to 20 years with varying renewal options. In addition to base rent, these iease agreements
provide that the company pay real estate taxes, common area maintenance, insurance, operating expenses, and in
some instances, rent based on sales volumes in excess of defined amounts.

For leases that include scheduled and specified escalations of the minimum rent, the company recognizes
the related rent expense on a straight-line basis over the base term of the lease. Any difference between the straight- !
line rent amount and the amount payable under the lease is included in accrued straight-line rent on the
consolidated balance sheets. Accrued straight-line rent was $146.0 million at February 29, 2008, and $133.8
million at February 28, 2007.

Rent expense for operating leases on active locations, offices and equipment that is included in selling,
general and administrative expense is summarized below:

Years Ended February 29 or 28

{Amounts in millions) 2008 2007 2006
Minimum rentals .....oooveieenienniie e $366.8 $346.5 $321.6
Rental expense based on sales volume..............cocooiine e 0.4 0.5 1.2
Total rENL EXPENSE ..eevveeeeirierereieeei et e e s eareerre e etbesaesaereeas $367.2 $347.0 $322.8

In addition, the company incurs rental costs related to its repair and distribution operations that are included
in cost of sales, buying and warehousing. These costs were $22.0 million in fiscal 2008, $22.5 million in fiscal
2007 and $20.8 million in fiscal 2006.

The company constructs stores on both owned and leased land and may receive reimbursement from a
landlord for the cost of the structure. These transactions are evaluated under sale-leaseback accounting, and in
cases where substantial funding is received, the transaction qualifies as a sale. Any gain or loss from the transaction
is deferred and amortized as rent expense on a straight-line basis over the base term of the lease. The deferred gain
is included in deferred rent credits, and the deferred loss is included in other assets on the consolidated balance
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sheets. The deferred loss included in other assets was $9.2 million at February 29, 2008 and $10.2 million at
February 28, 2007. The deferred gain included in deferred rent credits was $107.4 million at February 29, 2008 and
$94.5 million at February 28, 2007.

In instances where the company leases an existing structure, reimbursement from a landlord for tenant
improvements is classified as an incentive and included in deferred rent credits on the consolidated balance sheets.
The deferred rent credit is amortized as rent expense on a straight-line basis over the base term of the lease. The
incentives included in deferred rent credits were $56.3 million at February 29, 2008 and $49.4 million at February
28, 2007. '

The future minimum lease commitments, excluding taxes, insurance and common area maintenance, and
contractual sublease income related to active locations and equipment as of February 29, 2008, are as follows:

Capital Operating Operating CarMax

(Amounts in millions) Lease Lease Sublease Operating
Fiscal Year Commitments Commitments Income Leases
2009 e e $13.5 $ 3925 $ 53 $28.9
2010, e 1.4 3909 4.8 28.9
2000 104 378.5 39 289
2002 e 9.2 373.1 3.7 28.9
2013 e 8.0 3679 27 289
After 2013 i 40.3 2,074.0 4.4 196.6
Total minimum lease payments........ 92.8 $3.976.9 $24.8 $341.1
Less amounts representing interest .. 404
Present value of net minimum

lease payments.........ocevveeiivieiinne 524
Less current installments of

obligations under capital leases... _84
Obligations under capital leases

excluding current installments..... $44.0

CarMax, Inc., a former subsidiary, currently operates 23 of its sales locations pursuant to leases under
which the company is the primary obligor. In conjunction with the separation of CarMax, the company assigned
each of these operating leases to CarMax. CarMax paid a special dividend of $28.4 million to the company in fiscal
2003 in recognition of the company’s continuing contingent liability on the leases related to these CarMax
locations. Amounts presented in the above table in the column “CarMax Operating Leases” reflect the company’s
operating lease commitments on these leases. The amounts are fully funded by sublease income from CarMax.

The company acts as a lessor for several properties that it has never occupied or used in its operations.
These properties are located adjacent to active properties of the company. The initial terms of these leases are
generally five years with varying renewal options. Most leases provide that the lessee pay taxes, maintenance,
insurance and operating expenses applicable to the premises. The contractual sublease income related to these
properties is presented as operating sublease income in the above table.
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11. EXIT AND OTHER ACTIVITIES

The accrual for lease termination costs for the domestic segment includes the following activity:

Years Ended February 29 or 28

{Amounts in millions) 2008 2007 2006
Accrued lease termination costs at beginning of year................ $105.6 $110.0 $128.2
Provisions for closed 1oCations.........cocooceiceerecenivrernrc e 24.6 26.7 1.9
Changes in assumptions about future sublease income ............. 13.9 16.2 18.3
Reversals of accruals for locations returned to operation .......... - (12.9) (5.4)
INEIest ACCTEHOMN ....veiieiice e 8.4 14 9.5
Cash payments, net of cash received on subleased

LOCALIONS ...ttt e e sn e e (37.0) (41.8) (48.5)
Accrued lease termination costs at end of year..........cccee e 115.5 105.6 110.0
Less current portion of accrued lease termination costs............. 326 29.3 30.9
Non-current portion of accrued lease termination costs............. §32.9 $76.3 $ 79.1

At February 29, 2008, accrued lease termination costs of $115.5 million consisted of 95 locations, of which
40 were subleased. The provision for closed locations included in the table above represents the initial estimate of
lease termination costs for locations at the cease-use date. The current portion of accrued lease termination costs is
included in accrued expenses and other current liabilities, and the non-current portion is presented separately on the
consolidated balance sheets.

During the fourth quarter of fiscal 2007, the company recorded an $11.9 million charge associated with
asset impairments, costs to terminate leases for the closure of international segment retail stores and inventory
write-offs. Of this amount, $8.6 million was included in selling, general and administrative expenses and $3.3
million was included in cost of sales, buying and warehousing. No such charges were recorded in fiscal 2008.

During fiscal 2008, the company recorded $12.9 million in charges in selling, general and administrative
expenses related to severance costs for involuntary terminations. The severance costs were primarily the result of
the company’s continuing selling, general and administrative expense initiatives. During fiscal 2008, the company
made cash payments under these severance agreements of $5.2 million.

During the fourth quarter of fiscal 2007, the company recorded $20.4 million in charges in selling, general
and administrative expenses related to severance for involuntary terminations. The severance costs primarily were
the result of separation of employees affected by a wage management initiative, the realignment of the company’s
retail operating structures, the company’s agreement with IBM to outsource its information technology
infrastructure operations and the store closures discussed above. During fiscal 2008, the company recorded
additional charges related to these severance agreements of $2.2 million and made cash payments under these
severance agreements of $20.3 million. No cash payments related to these severance costs were made in fiscal
2007.

At February 29, 2008, and February 28, 2007, accrued severance totaled $10.0 million and $20.4 million,
respectively, and is included in accrued compensation on the consolidated balance sheets.

12. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

In the normal course of business, the company is involved in various legal proceedings. Based upon the
company’s evaluation of the information presently available, management believes that the ultimate resolution of
any such proceedings will not have a material adverse effect on the company’s financial condition, liquidity or
results of operations.

13. CAPITAL STOCK

(A) Shareholder Rights Plan: In conjunction with the company’s shareholder rights plan as amended and
restated, preferred share purchase rights were distributed as a dividend at the rate of one right for each share of
common stock. The rights were exercisable only upon the attainment of, or the commencement of a tender offer to
attain, a specified ownership interest in the company by a person or group. In April 2005, the company’s board of
directors ordered the redemption of all outstanding preferred share purchase rights under the shareholder rights
plan. On May 15, 2005, the company paid a redemption price equal to one cent per share of the company’s
common stock to shareholders of record at the close of business on May 1, 2005. The preferred share purchase
rights terminated on May 1, 2005.
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(B) Preferred Stock: The company has 2.0 million shares of undesignated preferred stock authorized, of
which no shares were outstanding at February 29, 2008.

(C) Common Stock Repurchased: The company’s board of directors has authorized the repurchase of up
to $1.2 billion of common stock, of which $233.7 million remained available at February 29, 2008. Through
February 29, 2008, the company had repurchased 60.4 million shares of common stock at a cost of $966.3 million,
excluding commission fees, cumulatively since inception of the stock repurchase program.

Common stock repurchase activity is shown in the following table.
Years Ended February 29 or 28

{(Amaounts in millions) 2008 2007 2006
Total number of shares repurchased........coccocviiiniiiiiiiiiinns 2.5 10.0 19.4
Cost, excluding commission fees.........ovvivvmivrrereercrencnccnens $46.7 $236.9 $338.5

14. STOCK-BASED COMPENSATION

As discussed in Note 2, the company adopted SFAS No. 123(R), “Share-Based Payment,” as of March 1,
2006. As a result of the adoption, the company recorded an after-tax benefit of $1.8 million, $2.8 million pre-tax, as
a cumulative effect of a change in accounting principle to adjust for awards granted prior to March 1, 2006, that
were not expected to vest.

Under the company’s stock-based incentive plans, stock options, nonvested stock, nonvested stock units
and other equity-based awards may be granted to employees and non-employee directors. At February 29, 2008, 1.3
million shares of common stock were available for future grants. Common shares are issued from authorized and
unissued shares upon the exercise of stock options, the grant of nonvested stock, or the vesting of or lapse of
deferral restrictions on nonvested stock units.

Compensation expense for stock-based incentive plans included in (loss) earnings from continuing
operations is summarized in the table below.

Years Ended February 29 or 28

{Amounts in millions) 2008 2007 2006 ‘
Compensation expense recognized: ]
Nonvested stock and nonvested stock units ................ $12.8 $16.1 $11.2
Stock OPONS ...c.ovvecieiriiieiriicie s 8.8 10.5 13.1
Phantom StocK UNILS .......ccocceeerieevirr e e vveessnecesracesanes 0.0 1.1 1.7
Employee stock purchase plan..........coccooceiririiiice, 0.5 0.8 0.9
OHHET oo s et 0.3 0.2 0.0
Total compensation expense recognized.......c..ccocoveervenenne - $22.4 $28.7 $26.9
Tax benefit recognized, before valuation allowance......... $ 82 $10.0 $ 96 *

Stock-based compensation expense is recorded in cost of sales, buying and warehousing or selling, general
and administrative expenses depending on the classification of the related employee’s payroll cost. Of the $22.4
million of stock-based compensation expense recorded in fiscal 2008, $3.5 million was recorded in cost of sales,
buying and warehousing and $18.9 million was recorded in selling, general and administrative expenses. Of the
$28.7 million of stock-based compensation expense recorded in fiscal 2007, $4.5 million was recorded in cost of
sales, buying and warehousing and $24.2 million was recorded in selling, general and administrative expenses.

The company has elected to recognize compensation expense for graded-vesting stock-based awards with
only service condilions on a straight-line basis over the requisite service period for the entire award.

(A) Nonvested Stock and Nonvested Stock Units: Under the company’s stock-based incentive plans,
shares of nonvested stock are granted in the name of an employee, who has all the rights of a shareholder, including
the right to receive dividends, subject to certain restrictions and possible forfeiture. The fair value of nonvested
stock is the market value on the grant date and is expensed over the requisite service period. Restrictions on
nonvested stock generally expire two years to four years from the grant date, when the stock typically becomes
fully vested. Beginning in June 2005, awards made to employees who are named executive officers in the proxy |
statement for the fiscal year end prior to the completion of the service condition or who are subject to certain ‘
Internal Revenue Code restrictions also are subject to a market condition. The market condition, which applies to an
estimated 0.4 million shares, could extend the vesting period up to an additional three years and could result in the
awards being cancelled if the market condition is not satisfied.

Page 65 of 84



During fiscal 2006 and fiscal 2007, the company issued service-based nonvested stock awards with a
vesting date of July 1, 2009, as part of a long-term incentive program. In February 2007, the company’s board of
directors approved the acceleration of vesting of 1.0 million outstanding shares, or one-half of the 2.0 million
shares originally granted, to approximately 300 employees. According to the modified terms, the accelerated
nonvested shares will vest on July 1, 2008, and the remainder will vest on July 1, 2009. Vesting was not accelerated
on nonvested stock held by executive officers of the company. The primary purpose of the accelerated vesting was
to encourage retention. The change to the vesting terms did not alter the fair value of the awards, but it resulted in
an adjustment to the estimated forfeiture rate for those awards. The revision to the estimated forfeiture rate resuited
in an increase in stock-based compensation expense of approximately $0.8 million in the fourth quarter of fiscal
2007.

The company also issues nonvested stock units to non-employee directors. Once granted, nonvested stock
units are eligible for dividends but have no voting rights. The nonvested stock units are redeemed for company
stock once the vesting period and any applicable deferral restrictions have been satisfied. The fair value of
nonvested stock units is the market value on the grant date. Compensation cost is recognized over the requisite
service period, which is generally one year to three vears.

Years Ended February 29 or 28

2008 2007 2006
Weighted average fair value of nonvested stock
granted (per SHATE) ....coouvvecvireceisieiee i, $ 879 $25.28 $17.20
Weighted average fair value of nonvested stock
units granted (per Share) .........occoeiioeieinceininieiennn, $14.93 $26.88 $16.62
Fair value of nonvested stock and nonvested stock
units vested (i MHONS) c.ooovvveeeeseeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeaeeerens $ 33 $ 1.1 $ 28

The company’s nonvested stock and nonvested stock unit activity during fiscal 2008 is summarized in the
table below.

Weighted Average  Aggregate

Shares Grant Date Intrinsic Value
{in thousands) Fair Value (in millions)
Nonvested at February 28, 2007............ 3,975 $19.63
GIanmted .......cooeueeeee e, 1,474 $ 9.09
VESIEd ..o (172) $19.11
Forfeited ... v, (958) $19.25
Nonvested at February 29, 2008............ 4,319 $16.15 $19.1

Total unrecognized compensation cost related to nonvested stock and nonvested stock units expected to
vest was $25.4 million at February 29, 2008, and is expected to be recognized over a weighted average period of
1.6 years.

(B) Stock Options: Under the terms of the company’s stock-based incentive plans, the company issues
nonqualified stock options with an exercise price equal to the market price on the date of grant. Options granted
generally vest over one year {o four years and expire no more than ten years after the date of grant.

The fair value of each option granted is estimated on the grant date using the Black-Scholes option
valuation model with the following weighted average assumptions:

Years Ended February 29 or 28

2008 2007 2006
Expected dividend yield..........c.ccocooviiiennincee 3.6% 0.3% 0.4%
Expected stock volatility ......ccoceviivrrieinenencniicniecene 46% 60% 61%
Risk-free interest rate ........oeieiiiicininccccce e 4% 5% 4%
Expected term (in years) ... 5 7 5

Using these assumptions in the Black-Scholes model, the weighted average grant date fair value of options
awarded was $1.59 per share in fiscal 2008, $14.81 per share in fiscal 2007 and $8.77 per share in fiscal 2006.

The expected dividend yield is based on the current annual dividend rate and the market value of the
company’s stock. The expected stock volatility assumption is based on the daily historical volatility of the
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company’s stock over a period of time equal to the expected term. The risk-free interest rate is based on the U.S.
Treasury Strip rate posted at the grant date for the expected term of the option. The expected term represents the
period of time that options granted are expected to be outstanding and is primarily based on the historical exercise
experience and post-vesting employment termination behavior of the company’s employees. The company
evaluates historical exercise behavior for two separate groups based on the employee’s position in the company.

During fiscal 2007, a stock option grant with a vesting period of five years and a contractual term of ten
years was made to Philip J. Schoonover, chairman, president and-chief executive officer. Due to the lack of
historical exercise behavior for an option with similar vesting provisions, the company used a simplified method to
estimate the expected term of the grant. An average of the award’s weighted average vesting period and its
contractual term was calculated and resulted in an expected term of seven years.

The company’s stock option activity during fiscal 2008 is summarized below.

Weighted Average

Weighted Remaining Aggregate
Shares Average Contractual Term  Intrinsic Value
{in thousands) Exercise Price (in vears) (in millions)
Outstanding at beginning of year............. 8,749 $18.16
Granted...........cccooveiennee e 3,523 $ 473
EXETICISEA ..vviviiiiieireireieeriree s e vens (461) $10.49
Forfeited ....oooveeirnirieririeceeerie e (361) $ 9.23
EXPITEd ..cvvieercecei e (1,349 $23.88
Outstanding at end of year .........c.ccoeeeenne. 10,101 $13.38 6.0 $0.7
Vested and expected to vest .......occeevcrennee 9,313 $13.86 5.7 $0.6
Options exercisable at end of year ............ 5,097 $16.08 3.0 $ -

The total intrinsic value of options exercised was $2.8 million in fiscal 2008, $65.3 million in fiscal 2007
and $33.1 million in fiscal 2006. As of February 29, 2008, the total remaining unrecognized compensation cost
related to stock options expected to vest was $17.7 million and is expected to be recognized over a weighted
average period of 2.6 years.

During fiscal 2007, Brian E. Levy, former president and chief executive officer of InterTAN Canada Ltd.,
announced his intent to resign and retire. The company accelerated the vesting of 87,500 options originally granted
to Mr. Levy in fiscal 2005. The modification to the terms of these awards resulted in incremental compensation
expense of $0.7 million,

The following table summarizes information regarding stock options outstanding at February 29, 2008.

Options Quistanding Options Exercisable
Weighted Average
Remaining Weighted Weighted
{Shares in thousands) Shares  Contractual Term Average Shares Average
Range of Exercise Prices Qutstanding (in years) Exercise Price Exercisable  Exercise Price
$3.76t0 4.20.....ccenunnn.. 2,875 9.9 $ 4.17 - $ -
502t0 750 e 711 54 $ 6.11 507 $ 646
830t 1195 782 1.2 $ 8.47 782 $ 8.47
12170 12.84 ..o, 788 7.1 $12.34 588 $12.32
14.05t0 1542, 398 2.2 $14.49 398 $14.49
15.63t017.93 ..o 1,616 6.7 $16.53 1,054 $16.39
18.261023.48.....cccovveee 1,716 0.5 - §23.41 1,694 $23.45
2385102923 1,215 8.1 $24.53 74 $27.73
Total e 10,101 6.0 $13.38 5,097 $16.08

(C) Phantom Stock Program: For phantom stock units issued by the company, the fair value of one unit
is based on the market value of one share of common stock on the vesting date. The units will be settled in cash at
the end of the vesting period. The recipient does not receive rights of a shareholder as a result of holding these
units, nor is any stock transferred. The fair value of each unit is remeasured at each reporting period and the cost of
the units, net of estimated forfeitures, is recognized over the requisite service period. The related liability is
included in accrued compensation on the consolidated balance sheets. During fiscal 2008, the company granted 2.9
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million units which vest over one year to three years. Based on the market value of the company’s common stock as
of February 29, 2008, the total remaining unrecognized compensation cost for the 2.0 million units expected to vest
was $8.1 million and is expected to be recognized over a weighted average period of 2.8 years. During fiscal 2008,
the company paid $1.8 million in cash to settle vested phantom stock units that were granted in fiscal 2006.

(D) Employee Stock Purchase Plan: The company has an employee stock purchase ptan for all domestic
segment employees meeting eligibility criteria. Under the plan, eligible employees may, subject to limitations,
purchase shares of common stock. The company matches $0.15 for each $1.00 contributed by employees.
Purchases are limited to 10 percent of an employee’s eligible compensation, up to a maximum of $13,000 per year.
The company has authorized 18.5 million shares of common stock for purchase under the plan. At February 29,
2008, a total of 1.0 million shares remained available under the plan. The obligation for the company match is
included in accrued expenses and other current liabilities on the consolidated balance sheets.

Years Ended February 29 or 28

2008 2007 2006
Number of shares purchased on the open market
on behalf of employees (in Mllions)..........cooceeeeeevenvennn, 0.4 0.2 04
Average price per share of common stock
PUICRASE. ..ttt $9.88 $25.50 $18.34

15. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT PLANS

(A) Pension Plans: The company’s domestic segment has a noncontributory defined benefit pension plan
that was frozen effective February 28, 2005, except for plan participants who had either attained their early or
normal retirement date or were within three years of attaining their early or normal retirement date as of the freeze
date, or who were permanently disabled on or prior to that date. As a result, all participants affected by the plan
freeze retained any benefits accumulated to the effective date, but were no longer eligible to increase their benefit.
During fiscal 2008, the pension plan was amended to provide an additional year of benefit accruals for participants,
excluding grandfathered participants, who were within six years of their early or normal retirement date as of the
beginning of fiscal 2008 and were credited with at least 1,000 hours of service for such year. The impact of this
amendment was an increase in the projected benefit obligation of $1.0 million recorded as a charge to other
comprehensive income. During fiscal 2008, the pension plan was further amended to freeze benefit accruals for the
grandfathered participants, effective February 29, 2008. As a result, the grandfathered participants are no longer
eligible to increase their benefits under the pension plan after February 29, 2008, but will retain any benefits
accrued through that date. The impact of freezing this plan was a reduction to the projected benefit obligation of
$4.5 million recorded as a benefit to other comprehensive income.

The company also has an unfunded nonqualified benefit restoration plan that restored retirement benefits
for domestic segment senior executives who were affected by Internal Revenue Code limitations on benefits
provided under the company’s pension plan. The benefit restoration plan was frozen effective February 28, 2005,
except for participants who, as of that date, were within 10 years of attaining their early or normal retirement date.
As aresult, all participants affected by the restoration plan freeze retained any benefits accumulated to the effective
date, but were no longer eligible to increase their benefit. During fiscal 2008, the restoration plan was further
amended to freeze benefit accruals for the grandfathered participants effective February 29, 2008, As a result, the
grandfathered participants are no longer eligible to increase their benefits under the restoration plan after February
28, 2008, but will retain any benefits accrued through that date. The impact of freezing this plan was a reduction to
the projected benefit obligation of $1.3 million recorded as a benefit to other comprehensive income.

On December 22, 2005, the benefit restoration plan was amended to allow W. Alan McCollough to elect to
receive a lump-sum payment following his retirement. Mr. McCollough received additional age and service credit
under the benefit restoration plan, which resulted in Mr. McCollough receiving the maximum benefit payable under
the plan, an incremental benefit on a lump-sum payment basis of $1.8 million. This $1.8 million was expensed in
fiscal 2006 and is included in selling, general and administrative expenses on the consolidated statement of
operations. In fiscal 2007, Mr. McCollough received a lurap-sum payment of $4.4 million.

On February 28, 2007, the company adopted the recognition and disclosure provisions of SFAS No. 158,
“Employers’ Accounting for Defined Benefit Pension and Other Postretirement Plans — an amendment of FASB
Statements No 87, 88, 106, and 132(R).” SFAS No. 158 requires the company to recognize the funded status of its
pension plans in its balance sheets and recognize the changes in a plan’s funded status in accumulated other
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comprehensive income in the year in which the changes occur. The company uses the last day of its fiscal year as a
measurement date for determining pension plan assets and obligations.

The change in projected benefit obligation, change in plan assets and reconciliation of funded status for the
plans were as follows:

At February 29 or 28
{Amounts in millions} 2008 2007
Change in projected benefit obligation:
Projected benefit obligation at beginning of year ......... $282.6 $2733
SEIVICE COSL ittt 1.6 2.7
INTEIESE COST ..vern e e e e 16.1 15.3
Actuarial (gain) LOSS™ oot en e (45.6) 2.8
Benefits paid.........cooooieii e (7.2 (10.6)
Plan amendment ..o e 1.0 -
Reduction due to plan freeze®™ .........ooovrevrieerririeeiran (5.8) (0.9)
Projected benefit obligation at end of year.................... $242.8 $2826
Change in plan assets:
Fair value of plan assets at beginning of vear............... $276.6  $252.6
Actual return on plan assets .........coeericcreniie et ieennenne 49.9 29.5
Employer contributions ...........coeeevevemicvenrirenrercnrcreene 0.7 5.1
Benefits paid........cccveveeenerinneccne e (1.2 (10.6)
Fair value of plan assets at end of year ...............c.....c... $320.0 $276.6
Funded status at end of year.........cccccoevvevveivvveicnecnennns $ 772 % (6.0

® Actuarial gain for fiscal 2008 results primarily from the change in the discount rate from 5.75 percent to 6.75 percent.
™ Plan freezes resulted in a reduction of $5.8 million in fiscal 2008. Restructuring activities resulted in a reduction of $0.9 millien for
the qualified plan in fiscal 2007,

The net amounts recognized on the consolidated balance sheets were as follows:

At February 29 or 28
(Amounts in millions) 2008 2007
Other assets (funded status of defined benefit plan) ....... $909 $ 106
Other liabilities (funded status of benefit restoration plan) (13.7)  (16.6)

Net amounts recogrized .......coviivieeeirneveiereeereeirenaens §772 § (6.0)
Amounts in accumulated other comprehensive income consist of the following:
At February 29 or 28
{(Amounts in millions, pre-tax) 2008 2007
Net actuarial gain (10S8).......ccveeververrecrerienecriier e $63.9  $(18.D)
NEt Prior SEIVICE COSLou.uriiriinniriiarirenrriieeartcresesieraveenanene - (0.6)
TOUAL c.evrerrerereircereecsrres e eescrcrsereeescrersnesensenssens $639 $(18.7)

Estimated net gains of $0.2 million in accumulated other comprehensive income at February 29, 2008, are
expected to be recognized as a component of net pension expense in fiscal 2009.
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Net pension expense is included in cost of sales, buying and warehousing and selling, general and
admintstrative expenses on the consolidated statements of operations. The components of net pension expense for
the plans were as follows:

Years Ended February 29 or 28

{(Amounts in millions) 2008 2007 2006
SEIVICE COBL 1ovimiiivirinieeeeeceeeee et rems v eensrens e $ 16 $ 27 $ 2.8
INLEFESE COSE ..ovvvereiiieeieiietieetiet et ee e e eeeereee e eeeresre e 16.1 15.3 13.8
Expected return on plan assets ..........ccccocveieieneinennnns 207 (19.1) (18.0)
Recognized prior SErvice cost ..o ccrecreencnenen 1.6 0.2 0.2
Recognized actuarial 108S......ccccovvviviv i 1.5 2.5 1.1
Special termination benefit™ ............co.coooveieireiinrenn.n. - - 1.8
Loss due to settlement™ ............coocoveeeeerircernnieeennen. - 0.8 -~
Net pension EXPeNSe........coovereereresneieseceneseeeeienines $ 0.1 $ 24 $ 1.7

®n fiscal 2006, Mr. McCollough received an additional age and service credit under the benefit restoration plan resulting in an
incremental expense of $1.8 million,
® In fiscal 2007, Mr. McCollough received a $4.4 million lump-sum payment, which resulted in a loss due to settlement of $0.8 million.

Changes in plan assets and benefit obligations recognized in other comprehensive income (loss) consist of
the following:

Year Ended February 29
{Amounts in millions, pre-tax} 2008
Net gain arising during the period............ccccovevecrecnrnnnnn. $805
PriOr SEEVICE COSE oovnviieiieeieeieecte et eeer e ee e snaeas (1.0)
AMOTGZAON OF 10SS 1..vvveveeviieeseeres s eiessesiesbesessesaeees 1.5@
Amortization of prior Service Cost ........c..coevcrericrerrarennas 1.6™

Total recognized in other comprehensive income (loss). $ 82.6
@The tax benefit related to fiscal 2008 reclassification adjustments was $1.2 million.

The weighted average discount rate is an estimate of the interest rate at which the pension liabilities could
be effectively settled at the end of the year. At February 29, 2008, the company performed an analysis in which the
projected cash flows from its plans were matched with a yield curve based on an appropriate population of readily
available high-quality corporate bonds. The results of the yield curve were used to select the weighted average
discount rate. In fiscal 2007 and 2006, when estimating the discount rate, the company reviewed yields available on
high-quality, fixed income debt instruments. The company reviewed high-quality corporate bond indices in addition
to a hypothetical portfolio of corporate bonds constructed with maturities that approximated the expected timing of
anticipated benefit payments.

The company uses a calculated market-related value of pension plan assets to determine the expected return
on pension plan assets. The calculated market-related value of the plan assets is different from the actual or fair
market value of the assets. The fair market value is the value of the assets at a point in time that is available to
make payments to pension plan participants and to cover transaction costs. The calculated market-related value
recognizes changes in fair value on a straight-line basis over a five-year period. This recognition method spreads
the effects of year-over-year volatility in the financial markets over that period of years.

Benefit obligations are determined using assumptions at the end of each fiscal year and are not impacted by
the expected rate of return on plan assets. The weighted average assumptions used in computing the benefit
obligations for the plans were as follows:

At February 29 or 28

2008 2007
Weighted average discount rate ..............cccocoeoveenricccninnns 6.75% 5.75%
Rate of increase in compensation levels..............c........... N/A 5.00%
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Net pension expense is determined using assumptions at the beginning of each fiscal year. The weighted
average assumptions used in computing net pension expense for the plans were as follows:

Years Ended February 29 or 28

2008 2007 2006
Weighted average discount rate ...............cccccoceiiiniininiinn 5.75% 5.65% 5.75%
Rate of increase in compensation levels........coovviinns 5.00% 5.00% 5.00%
Expected rate of return on plan assets.........cccovvvmrvcnennnne 8.25% 3.25% 8.25%

The percentage composition of assets held by the pension plan was as follows:
At February 29 or 28
2008 2007

Domestic eqUItY SECUNLIES .vvivvvirerrnriereeriasrrierrer e eereeneens 17% 74%
International equity SECURtes ..., 18 21
Fixed income debt securities .........cccovecrevicnninnniencncnne 53 -
Cash and cash equivalents............coecv i 5 |
OIBET. .t 7 4
Total ... 100% 100%

The plan’s overal! investment objective is to provide a long-term return that, along with company
contributions, is expected to meet future benefit payment requirements. The company engages a third party to
advise the company on both asset allocations and individual fund managers. On January 30, 2007, the company
revised its plan’s target asset allocation to 60 percent fixed income and 40 percent equity. The plan’s target
allocation is determined by taking into consideration the amounts and timing of projected liabilities, the company’s
funding policies and expected returns on various asset classes. Plan assets did not include any shares of the company’s
common stock at February 29, 2008, or February 28, 2007.

The company did not make a contribution to the defined benefit pension plan during fiscal 2008, 2007, or
2006. No contributions are required during fiscal 2009 under applicable law for this pension plan. The company
intends to make any contributions necessary to meet ERISA minimum funding standards and intends to make
additional contributions as needed to ensure that the fair value of plan assets at February 28, 2009, is equal to or
exceeds the accumulated benefit obligation. The company does not expect to make a contribution in fiscal 2009.
The accumulated benefit obligation for the defined benefit pension plan was $229.1 million at February 29, 2008,
and $258.7 million at February 28, 2007.

During fiscal 2007, Congress passed the Pension Protection Act of 2006. The Act introduced new funding
requirements for defined benefit pension plans, introduced benefit limitations for underfunded plans and raised tax
deduction limits for contributions. Required funding under the Act is dependent upon many factors, including,
among other things, the pension plan’s future funded status and plan asset returns. The Act’s primary effect was to
change the minimum funding requirements for plan years beginning in fiscal 2008. Until final regulations are
issued by the Department of Treasury, the financial effect is uncertain. However, the changes in the timing and
amount of required contributions are not expected to be materially different from current projections.

The expecied benefit payments of the defined benefit pension plan for the next 10 fiscal years are as
follows:

{Amounts in

Fiscal Year millions)
2000 ..t $ 57
20010 $ 6.1
2001 e $ 67
20012 e $ 74
2013 e $ 85
2014 through 2018 ........coccoeeveenn $59.0

The accumulated benefit obligation under the benefit restoration plan was $13.7 million at February 29,
2008, and $14.3 million at February 28, 2007. Company contributions to the benefit restoration plan were $0.7
million in fiscal 2008, $5.1 million in fiscal 2007, and $0.5 million in fiscal 2006. The benefit payments for fiscal
2007 include a lump-sum payment to Mr. McCollough of $4.4 million. A contribution of $0.8 million, which is
equal to the expected benefit payments, is expected to be made to this plan during fiscal 2009.
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The expected benefit payments of the benefit restoration plan for the next 10 years are as follows:
(Amounts in

Fiscal Year millions)
2000 e $0.8
2010 e $0.8
2001 e $0.8
20012 e $0.8
2013 e $0.9
2014 through 2018 ... $4.7

(B) 401(k) Plan and Registered Retirement Savings Plan: The company sponsors a 401(k) plan for
domestic segment employees meeting eligibility criteria. Under the plan, eligible employees can contribute up to 40
percent of their eligible compensation up to the annual limit designated by the Internal Revenue Service. The
company matches $1.00 for each $1.00 contributed by an employee on the first 3 percent of an employee’s eligible
compensation, and $0.50 for each $1.00 on the next 2 percent of an employee’s eligible compensation. Effective
August 1, 2006, the company amended the plan to allow employee deferrals after 3 months of service with the
company match starting after | year of service. The company’s expense for this plan was $9.6 million in fiscal
2008, $10.2 million in fiscal 2007 and $9.4 million in fiscal 2006 and is included in cost of sales, buying and
warehousing and selling, general and administrative expenses on the consolidated statements of operations.

The company sponsors a group registered retirement savings plan for all international segment employees,
under which full-time and qualifying part-time employees with at least 12 months of service may join the plan and
contribute up to 3 percent of their salaries. Employee contributions are matched dollar for dollar by the company.
Both employee and employer contributions are invested in a broad range of investment options. After membership
in the plan for 12 months, an employee may elect to contribute up to an additional 2 percent of an employee’s
salary to the plan, which is also matched dollar for dollar by the company. These additional contributions are also
invested in a broad range of investment options. The company’s expense for this plan was $0.8 million in fiscal
2008, $0.7 million in fiscal 2007 and $0.8 million in fiscal 2006 and is included in selling, general and
administrative expenses on the consolidated statements of operations.

16. DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS

(A) Rogers Plus® Stores: Effective January 28, 2007, the company returned the management of 92 Rogers
Plus® stores to Rogers Wireless Inc. For fiscal year 2008, earnings from discontinued operations for these stores
totaled $0.9 million, which is net of income taxes of $0.5 milltion. For fiscal year 2007, earnings from discontinued
operations for these stores totaled $5.4 million, which is net of income taxes of $2.8 million. For fiscal 2006,
earnings from discontinued operations for these stores totaled $3.7 million, which is net of income taxes of $2.0
million.

(B) Domestic Segment Operation: The company closed a domestic segment operation in fiscal 2007 that
previously had been held for sale. For fiscal 2008, earnings from discontinued operations for this operation totaled
$0.6 million, which is net of income taxes of $0.3 million. For fiscal 2007, the loss totaled $4.8 million, which is
net of income taxes of $2.9 million. The net loss includes the loss from operations, asset write-offs and impairment
charges. For fiscal 2006, the loss from discontinued operations totaled $5.3 million, which is net of income taxes of
$3.0 miilion. The net loss from discontinued operations for fiscal 2006 inctudes the write-down to estimated fair
value less cost to sell the operation.

(C) MusicNow LLC: The company sold a domestic segment subsidiary, MusicNow, LLC, in fiscal 2006.
For fiscal 2006, the loss from discontinued operations totaled $3.7 million, which is net of income taxes of $2.1
million, The net loss from discontinued operations for fiscal 2006 includes an after-tax charge of $4.9 million for
the loss on the disposal.

(D) Bankcard Operation: On November 18, 2003, the company completed the sale of its bankcard finance
operation to FleetBoston Financial. Results from discontinued operations for fiscal 2007 include income tax
expense resulting from a revision of management’s estimate regarding certain tax uncertainties.

17. SEGMENT INFORMATION

The company has two reportable segments: its domestic segment and its international segment. The
company identified these segments based on its management reporting structure and the nature of the products and
services offered by each segment. The domestic segment is primarily engaged in the business of selling brand-name
and private-label consumer electronics, personal computers, entertainment software, and related services in the
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United States. The international segment is primarily engaged in the business of selling private-label and brand-
name consumer electronics in Canada.

Net sales by reportable segment were as follows:

Years Ended February 29 or 28

{Amounts in millions) 2008 2007 2006

DOMESHC SEEMENT .cvovvvviriirererreaeesesee e eesaerebeerens $11,142.8 $11,859.6 $10,974.0
International SEEMENL ........cccoviicrieriniiiniveiiiiiesiraennens 600.9 570.2 540.2
INELSALES c.vvie e st stressres st aesir e eateas $11,743.7 $12.429.8 $11.514.2

Prior to fiscal 2008, the measure of segment profit or loss reviewed by the chief operating decision maker
was net (loss) earnings from continuing operations. During fiscal 2008, the measure of segment profit or loss
reviewed by the chief operating decision maker is (loss) earnings from continuing operations before income taxes.

Accordingly, the (loss) earnings from continuing operations before income taxes by reportable segment were as
follows: '

Years Ended February 29 or 28

{Amounts in millions) 2008 2007 2006
DOMESHC SEZMENL ..evvreivirerereererinrsereanseeererssessseanrsses $(351.0) $ 1337 $244.4
International segment™ ... (2.6) (113.4) (10.9)
(Loss) earnings from continuing operations ‘

before income taXes -......coverveeenverreeeeeeeeeerreeeeens $(353.6) $ 203 $2334

® In fiscal 2008 and fiscal 2007, the company recorded impairment charges of $26.0 million and $92.0 million, respectively, associated
with its international segment’s goodwill.

Total assets by reportable segment were as follows:

At February 29 or 28
{Amounts in millions) 2008 2007 2006
DOMESHC SEZMENT ....vveeerrerreererraarereareeseenssnessesnssesns $3,335.7  $3,657.5  $3,594.4
International SEZMENE........cccvviriiniviiienieniieceaineannon 410.3 349.8 474.6
TOtAl ASSELS ..coeiicceiee e $3.7459  $4.007.3 _ $4.069.0

Goodwill and other intangible assets, net of accumulated amortization, by reportable segment were as
follows:

At February 29 or 28
{(Amounts in millions} 2008 2007 2006
DOmESHC SEZMENL ..cvvviveerieereereeicre it eve e $ 02 $ 03 $§ 53
International SEEMENt .......cc.cocveeriererieeneiiercieiereerecnens 136.2 140.8 249.1
Goodwill and other intangible assets, net............co..... $136.4 $141.1 $2544

Depreciation and amortization by reportable segment were as follows:

Years Ended February 29 or 28

{Amounts in millions) 2008 2007 2006
DOMmEStic SEZMENL ...o.ovoovieiiiecee e $170.8 $165.9 $1493
International segment ..............cooocriiincnen e, 16.8 15.6 13.9
Total depreciation and amortization........ccccovevreernen. $187.6 S181.5 $163.2

Purchases of property and equipment by reportable segment were as follows:

Years Ended February 29 or 28

{(Amounts in millions) 2008 2007 2006
DOMESHC SEZMENT ..o..ocvivieeee e e e e $317.9 $274.8 $231.9
[nternational SEEMENT .........coiirnineririinereree e 1.5 10.9 22.6
Total purchases of property and equipment ................. $3254 $285.7 $254.5

Page 73 of 84




Interest income by reportable segment was as follows:

Years Ended February 29 or 28

(Amounts in millions) 2008 2007 2006
DOmeStic SEZMENL ........ccvrreviriiervereareiinserersiensessneesesens $17.4 $26.5 $21.3
International SEgMENt .........c..oceivrinireer e 0.8 0.7 0.5
Total interest INCOMIE ......coeeriirrrieceniirteieiste e $18.2 $27.2 $21.8

Domestic segment net sales by category were as follows:

Years Ended February 29 or 28

2008 2007 2006

% of % of % of
Doliar amounts in millions) $ Sales $ Sales $ Sales
VIO e $ 4,561.3 409% S 49808 42.0% § 45813 41.7%
Information technology .......c..ecenene 2,875.6 25.8 2,8594 241 27315 249
PN T T o SRR 1,508.3 13.6 1,779.0 15.0 1,685.4 154
Entertainment ............cccoovveeeeeeeeenen.. 1,372.9 12.3 1,321.4 11.1 1,200.4 10.9
Warranty, services and other™ ......... 824.7 7.4 919.1 7.8 775.4 7.1
NEt 8AlES .o.vvieeieieie et $11,142.8  100.0% $11,859.6 100.0% $10.974.0 100.0%

“ Warranty, services and other includes extended warranty net sales; revenues from PC services, mobile installations, home theater
installations and product repairs; net financing: and revenues received from third parties for services subscriptions.

International segment net sales by category were as follows:

Years Ended February 29 or 28

2008 2007 2006

% of % of % of
Dollar amounts in millions) $ Sales $ Sales $ Sales
VIACO o $110.1 18.3% $106.5 18.7% $102.4 19.0%
Information technology .................... 202.7 337 216.5 38.0 201.6 37.3
AUAIO. ..o 2113 35.2 190.3 334 171.7 31.8
Entertainment ...eeeeesceveeeenscnees e, 44 .4 7.4 254 4.5 25.5 4.7
Warranty, services and other™ ......... 32.5 5.4 31.3 5.4 39.1 7.2
NELSAlES ... ese e $600.9 100.0% $570.2 100.0% _$540.2 100.0%

@ Warranty, services and other includes extended warranty sales and product repair revenue.

18. SUPPLEMENTAL CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS INFORMATION

The following table summarizes supplemental cash flow information.

Years Ended February 29 or 28

fAmounts in millions) 2008 2007 2006
Cash paid during the year for:
INEEIESE ..viveieetict et ev et et b et en s r s ben s $ 1.2 $ 15 $ 6.8
INCOME TAXES 1vvveirireesierere s ieres et et eree e re b eae et s s b b eaea s sbebetenssb s st betens $ 60 $74.2 $94.2
Supplemental schedule of non-cash investing and financing activities:
Capital lease 0bHZATIONS .. c.covivirvirerrieiriceeiee e s e san s $303 $ 29 $26.2
Non-cash capital expenditures™ .........cocovoeveeieiiererieneeersiesre s eseeseseenens $ 23.1 $33.9 $23.9
Sale-leaseback receivables™ . ... ..o s $204 $154 $ 05
Other acquisitions:
Fair value of assets acqUired ......ocecvvveereceiieee e e § - $ - $13.6
Less: Habilities aSSUMEd........cocoviuieiiieeeeeeece e et - - 0.3
Other ACQUISITIONS .....ccveveieericiicseee e sie et e re s s sve s b eresrearans $§ - $ - $13.3

@ Amounts disclosed in prior years reflected the change in the accrual and receivable balances rather than the ending balances. Prior
year amounts have been corrected to reflect the ending balances representing the non-cash transactions for the fiscal year. The
correction did not impact the statements of cash flows in any period.
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19. QUARTERLY FINANCIAL DATA (UNAUDITED)

{Amounts in millions First Quarter Second Quarter Third Quarter Fourth Quarter
except per share data) 2008 2007 2008 2007 2008 2007 2008 2007
Netsales......cooooevieremencnen. 324855 325966 $2.0440 $2.8185 $20963.7 $3.0600 $3.650.5 $3.954.7
Gross profit .....co.eccveeveeevenee. $ 5602 3% 6358 3§ 5460 3 670.1 $ 5657 % 6758 § 7536 § 946.6
Net {loss) earnings from:
Continuing operations........ $ (548 % 53 0% 3. $ 11,7 5 (208.0) %$ (199 % 45 § (7.2
Discontinued operations ... 0.2 0.7 0.2 (1.6) 0.7 (0.5 03 2.9

Cumulative effect of change

in accounting principles .. - 1.8 - - - - - -
Net (loss} earnings ... $ (54.6) $ 64 $ (628) § (00 $ (2073) $ (204) $ 49 § (4.3
(Loss) earnings per share:
Basic:
Continuing operations........ $ (033 % 003 § (038 §$ 007 $ (2608 (0.12) § 003 § (0.0
Discontinued operations ..., $ 000 $ 000 § 000 $ (O $ 000 $ 000 $§ 000 % 002
Cumulative effect of change
in accounting principles.. $ - $ o0 - 3 - % - 3 - 3 - 8 -
(Loss) earnings.......cceveeanae $ (033 § 004 % (038) S 006 5 (1260 % (0I2) $ 003 3 (009
Diluted:
Continuing operations........ $ (033) § 003 3% (038 3§ 007 3% (12600 % (0.12) $ 003 § (0.0
Discontinued operations.... $ 000 $ 000 $ 000 $§ OO $ 000 $ 000 $ 000 $ 0.02
Cumulative effect of change
in accounting principles.. $ - § 001 % - 3 - 3 - 3 - 3 - 8 -
(Loss) earnings.......c.ceeevene $ (033) § 004 $ (038) 3 006 $ (1.2600% (012 § 003 % (0.03)

Year-to-date earnings per share are calculated by dividing year-to-date earnings by the weighted average
shares outstanding for the full year. Therefore, year-to-date earnings per share may not equal the sum of the
quarterly earnings per share.

During the third quarter of fiscal 2008, the company recorded a valuation allowance against its net deferred
tax assets of $141.6 million, which was partially offset by a benefit of $38.8 million to record previously
unrecognized foreign tax credits.

The results for the fourth quarter of fiscal 2008 include the following: an impairment charge of $26.0
million related to the goodwill associated with the international segment; a benefit of $12.5 million for the
estimated non-redemption of rewards points from the inception of the company’s rewards program; and a reduction
of the valuation allowance against deferred tax assets of $13.9 million.

During the third quarter of fiscal 2007, the company recorded tax adjustments related to the fiscal 2006 tax
provision. The adjustments totaled $1.9 million and resulted in a reduction to tax expense. The adjustments were
identified during the preparation of the fiscal 2006 tax return.

The results for the fourth quarter of fiscal 2007 include the following: an impairment charge of $92.0
million related to the goodwill associated with the international segment; expenses of $52.6 million associated with
store and facility closures and other restructuring activities, which primarily related to leases and severance; and a
reduction to tax expense of $2.6 million related to the revision of management estimates regarding tax
contingencies.
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

The Board of Directors and Stockholders
Circuit City Stores, Inc.:

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Circuit City Stores, Inc. and subsidiartes (the
Company) as of February 29, 2008 and February 28, 2007, and the related consolidated statements of operations,
stockholders’ equity and comprehensive income (loss), and cash flows for each of the years in the three-year period
ended February 29, 2008. These consolidated financial statements are the responsibility of the Company’s
management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our
audits,

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board
(United States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis,
evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the
accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of Circuit City Stores, Inc. and subsidiaries as of February 29, 2008 and February 28, 2007, and
the results of their operations and their cash flows for each of the years in the three-year period ended February 29,
2008, in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles.

As discussed in note 2 to the consolidated financial statements, the Company adopted the provisions of Statement
of Financial Accounting Standard No. 48, Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes — an interpretation of FASB
Statement No. 109, in fiscal 2008. In addition, as discussed in note 2 to the consolidated financial statements, the
Company adopted the provisions of Statement of Financial Accounting Standard No. 123R (Revised 2004), Share
Based Payment, and as discussed in note 15 to the consolidated financial statements, the Company adopted the
provisions of Statement of Financial Accounting Standard No. 158, Employers’ Accounting for Defined Benefit
Pension and Other Postretirement Plans - an amendment of FASB Statements No. 87, 88, 106, and 132(R), in fiscal
2007.

We also have audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board
(United States), Circuit City Stores, Inc.’s internal control over financial reporting as of February 29, 2008, based
on criteria established in fnternal Control — Integrated Framework, issued by the Committee of Sponsoring
Organizations of the Treadway Commission (COSOY}, and our report dated April 28, 2008 expressed an unqualified
opinion on the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control over financial reporting.

/st KPMG LLP

Richmond, Virginia
April 28, 2008
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

The Board of Directors and Stockholders
Circuit City Stores, Inc.:

We have audited Circuit City Stores, Inc.’s internal control over financial reporting as of February 29, 2008, based
on criteria established in Internal Control — Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring
Organizations of the Treadway Commission (COSO). Circuit City Stores, Inc.’s management is responsible for
maintaining effective internal control over financial reporting and for its assessment of the effectiveness of internal
control over financial reporting, included in the accompanying Management’s Report on Internal Control over
Financial Reporting. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company’s internal control over financial
reporting based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board
(United States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether effective internal control over financial reporting was maintained in all material respects. Our audit
included obtaining an understanding of internal control over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material
weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the
assessed risk. Our audit also included performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the
circumstances. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

A company’s internal control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance
regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company’s internal control over financial reporting
includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail,
accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable
assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance
with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made
only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable
assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the
company’s assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect
misstaternents. Also, projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that
controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the
policies or procedures may deteriorate.

In our opinion, Circuit City Stores, Inc. maintained, in all material respects, effective internal control over financial
reporting as of February 29, 2008, based on criteria established in Internal Control — Integrated Framework issued
by COSO. We also have audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight
Board (United States), the consolidated balance sheets of Circuit City Stores, Inc. as of February 29, 2008 and
February 28, 2007, and the related consolidated statements of operations, stockholders’ equity and comprehensive
income (loss), and cash flows for each of the years in the three-year period ended February 29, 2008, and our report
dated April 28, 2008 expressed an unqualified opinion on those consolidated financial statements.

/st KPMG LLP

Richmond, Virginia
April 28, 2008
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Item 9. Changes in and Disagreements with Accountants on Accounting and Financial Disclosure.
None.

Item 9A. Controls and Procedures.

Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures

Under the supervision and with the participation of its management, including the chief executive officer
and chief financial officer, the company has evaluated the effectiveness of its “disclosure controls and procedures,”
as that term is defined in Rule 13a-15(e) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, as of the end of the
period covered by this annual report on Form 10-K. Based upon their evaluation, the chief executive officer and
chief financial officer concluded that the company’s disclosure controls and procedures are effective as of February

29, 2008.
Management's Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting

The company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal control over
financial reporting, as such term is defined in Exchange Act Rule 13a-15(f) under the Securities Exchange Act of
1934, as amended. Under the supervision and with the participation of management, including its principal
executive officer and principal financial officer, the company has conducted an evaluation of the effectiveness of
internal control over financial reporting based on the framework in Internal Control - Integrated Framework issued
by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (COSO).

Based on its evaluation under the framework in /nternal Control - Integrated Framework, management
concluded that internal control over financial reporting was effective as of February 29, 2008.

Management’s assessment of the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting as of February
29, 2008, has been audited by KPMG LLP, an independent registered public accounting firm, as stated in their
report, which is included in this annual report on Form {0-K.

Changes in Control over Financial Reporting

A material weakness is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal contro} over financial
reporting, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the annual or interim financial
statements will not be prevented or detected on a timely basis. As previously disclosed in the company’s Form 10-
Q for the quarter ended November 30, 2007, management identified a material weakness.

Management identified errors in the application of certain complex provisions of SFAS No. 109 during the
third quarter ended November 30, 2007, including the calculation of the company’s valuation allowance on
deferred tax assets. These misapplications of the provisions of SFAS No. 109 did not have a material impact on the
financial statements related to the third quarter, but had the potential to do so. As a result, management concluded
that this internal control deficiency constituted a material weakness in internal control over financial reporting
because there was a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the interim or annual financial statements
would not have been prevented or detected on a timely basis. The material weakness did not result in the
restatement of the company’s financial statements for any period.

Management has implemented changes 1o its processes to improve its internal control over financial
reporting. The following steps have been taken to remediate the conditions leading to the above stated material
weakness. Management has:

e Examined and modified existing policies and procedures in areas where more explicit guidance was
required to more clearly define roles and responsibilities for personnel with respect to the
identification, escalation and review by appropriate finance and accounting personnel of complex, non-
routine applications of SFAS No. 109 in a timely manner,;

» Assessed existing processes and identified areas where related policies were clarified with respect to
the degree and extent of procedures and communications performed by key finance and accounting
personnel in their review of accounting for complex, non-routine applications of SFAS No. 109;

¢ Enhanced the annual review processes for significant and complex matters related to the tax provision
and the application of SFAS No. 109, including the calculation of the company’s valuation allowance
on deferred tax assets; and
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¢ Increased staffing levels by adding additional resources and consultants, with an emphasis on SFAS
No. 109 expertise and skills, qualified to prepare and review complex, non-routine applications of
SFAS No. 109.

Finally, as part of its ongoing monitoring efforts of the company’s internal control environment,
management has reported on the results of the above remediation actions to the Audit Committee of the board of
directors.

Based on its testing of these enhanced procedures and increased resources, management determined that, as
of February 29, 2008, the company has remediated the material weakness in internal control over financial
reporting.

Other than described above, there have been no changes in the company’s internal control over financial
reporting that occurred during the quarter ended February 29, 2008, that have materially affected, or are reasonably
likely to materially affect, the company’s internal control over financial reporting.

Item 9B. Other Information.

None.
PART 111

Item 10. Directors, Executive Officers and Corporate Governance.

Except for certain information regarding executive officers included below, the information required by
this item is incorporated into this item by reference to the company’s definitive Proxy Statement for the 2008
annual meeting of shareholders, to be filed within 120 days after the end of the fiscal year that this Form 10-K
covers.

The following table identifies the executive officers of the company at March 31, 2008.

Name Age Position
Philip J. Schoonover 48 Chairman, President and Chief Executive Officer
Bruce H. Besanko 49 Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer
John T. Harlow 50 Executive Vice President and Chief Operating Officer
Jeffrey S. Stone 51 Executive Vice President — New Business Development
Brian S. Bradley 37 Senior Vice President — Multi-Channel
Kelly E. Breitenbecher 43 Senior Vice President - Supply Chain and Space Planning
Philip J. Dunn 55 Senior Vice President, Treasurer and Chief Accounting Officer
Reginald D. Hedgebeth 40 Senior Vice President, General Counsel and Secretary
Eric A. Jonas, Ir. 53 Senior Vice President — Human Resources
John J. Kelly 50 Senior Vice President — Merchandising
[rynne V. MacKay 39 Senior Vice President,and General Merchandise Manager
William E. McCorey, Jr. 50 Senior Vice President and Chief Information Officer
Marc J. Sieger 39 Senior Vice President and General Manager — Services
Marshall J. Whaling 53 Senior Vice President — Retail Operations
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Mr. Schoonover joined the company in 2004 as Executive Vice President and Chief Merchandising Officer.
He was elected President in 2005, Chief Executive Officer in 2006 and Chairman in 2006. Before joining the
company, he served in various positions with Best Buy Co., Inc., a retailer of consumer electronics, home office
products, entertainment software, appliances and related services, from 1995 to 2004, including Executive Vice
President — Customer Segments in 2004, Executive Vice President — New Business Development from 2002 to
2004, Executive Vice President — Digital Technology Solutions from 2001 to 2002, and Senior Vice President -
Merchandising for five years. Before joining Best Buy, Mr. Schoonover was an Executive Vice President at TOPS
Appliance City, a retailer of home appliances and consumer electronics, and held sales and executive marketing
positions with Sony Corporation of America, a global entertainment company.

Mr. Besanko joined the company in July 2007 as Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer.
Before joining the company, he was Senior Vice President — Finance and Chief Financial Officer for The Yankee
Candle Company, Inc., a leading designer, manufacturer, wholesaler and retailer of premium scented candles, from
2005 until July 2007. Before joining Yankee Candle, Mr. Besanko was Vice President — Finance for Best Buy
from 2002 to 2005. From 1996 to 2002, he heid several financial leadership positions of increasing responsibility
in the hardlines business at Sears, Roebuck & Co., a retailer of home merchandise, apparel and automotive products
and related services. Prior to joining Sears, he held various finance, accounting and treasury positions with Atlantic
Richfield Company, a global oil and gas enterprise.

Mr. Harlow joined the company in January 2008 as Executive Vice President and Chief Operating Officer.
Before joining the company, he was a retail director with Deloitte Consulting LLP, which included work with
Circuit City, from February 2007 to January 2008, and he had been a consultant in private practice from 2006 to
2007. From 2003 to 2006, Mr. Harlow was Senior Vice President — Operations for the A&P U.S. division of The
Great Atlantic & Pacific Tea Company, Inc., a U.S. retailer that primarily operates conventional supermarkets, food
and drug combination stores and discount food stores. From 2001 to 2003, he was Corporate Vice President —
Administration for Toys “R” Us, Inc., a worldwide retailer of toys, baby products and children’s apparel. Mr.
Harlow’s career also includes more than 10 years in senior positions with Genovese Drug Stores, Inc. and
Jamesway Corporation, a department store company, and more than seven years of consulting experience with
Andersen Consulting.

Mr. Stone joined the company in January 2008 as Executive Vice President — New Business Development,
overseeing the growth and development of the city™ concept stores, firedog™ services and ongoing innovation
work. Before joining the company, he was President and Chief Operating Officer of Tivoli Audio, LLC, a
manufacturer of high-end audio devices, from 2005 to December 2007. Prior to joining Tivoli, Mr. Stone served 15
years at Tweeter Home Entertainment Group, Inc., a national specialty consumer electronics retailer. He joined
Tweeter as President and Chief Operating Officer in 1990 and added the responsibility of Chief Executive Officer
in 1999. Prior to joining Tweeter, Mr. Stone was Executive Vice President for Bread & Circus, an organic/natural
food retailer, where he oversaw store operations, human resources, marketing and purchasing for three years. His
career also includes roles in human resources at Scandinavian Designs/Scandinavian Gallery and store operations at
Levitz Furniture.

Mr. Bradley joined the company in 2005 as Steward of Innovation. In 2006, he was promoted to Vice
President — Strategy and Innovation. In January 2008, Mr. Bradley was promoted to Senior Vice President — Mulii-
Channel, with responsibility for the company’s direct channel, including the Web site and call center operations.
Prior to joining the company, Mr. Bradley was Director — Strategy and Implementation at Capital One Financial
Corporation, a financial holding company with subsidiaries that offer a broad spectrum of financial products and
services to consumers, small businesses and commercial clients, from 2002 to 2005. Previously, he served for more
than five years in various roles at McKinsey & Company, a global management consulting firm, with a focus on
building and growing multi-channel businesses. He began his career by serving in various operating roles in the
personal computer division of IBM, a globally integrated innovation company, for five years.

Ms. Breitenbecher joined the company in 2005 as Vice President — Supply Chain and acted as the business
lead for the merchandising systems transformation. In 2006, she assumed responsibility for floor and space

planning. In 2006, she was appointed Vice President — Inventory, Floor and Space Planning, Inventory Operations.
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In August 2007, Ms. Breitenbecher was promoted to Senior Vice President — Supply Chain, overseeing inventory,
space planning and merchandising operations, distribution and logistics. Prior to joining the company, she served in
several inventory and supply chain management positions at Best Buy from 2000 to 2005. Before joining Best Buy,
Ms. Breitenbecher served in merchandising positions at Payless ShoeSource for seven years and Burdines
Department Stores for five years.

Mr. Dunn joined the company in 1984 as an Assistant Controller of Inventory Audit and Control. He was
named Treasurer in 1990, was promoted to Vice President in 1992 and served as Controller from 1996 to 2007. In
1999, he was elected Senior Vice President. He currently serves as Chief Accounting Officer and has served as the
company’s principal accounting officer since 1996. Mr. Dunn was employed by Arthur Young & Co., an
accounting firm and a predecessor of Emst and Young LLP, from 1980 to 1984.

Mr. Hedgebeth joined the company in 2005 as Senior Vice President, General Counsel and Secretary. Prior
1o joining the company, he was employed by The Home Depot, Inc., a home improvement retailer, from 1999 to
2005, serving most recently as Vice President of Legal. Previously, he was a corporate and securities associate at
the law firm of King and Spalding, LLP and held various finance and real estate positions at GE Capital
Corporation.

Mr. Jonas jeined the company in 1998 as Director of Associate Relations. He was promoted to assistant
Vice President of Corporate Human Resources Services in 2000, was elected Vice President in 2003 and was
elected Senior Vice President in 2004. Prior to joining the company, he was employed by Toys “R” Us from 1985
until 1998, including serving in the position of Director of Human Resources for the Babies “R” Us division from
1996 to 1998.

Mr. Kelly joined the company in 2005 as Senior Vice President and General Merchandise Manager for
Technology and currently serves as Senior Vice President — Merchandising. Before joining the company, he was
Vice President of Home Merchandising and Vice President of QVC.com for QVC, Inc., a televised retailer of
electronics, jewelry and consumer products, from 2001 to 2005. From 1996 to 2001, he was Vice President of
Appliances and Senior Vice President of the Consumer Electronics Division for Sharp Electronics Corporation, a
manufacturer of consumer electronics. Before joining Sharp Electronics, Mr. Kelly was employed by Macy’s
Department Stores, Inc. for more than 15 years in various positions, including Divisional Merchandise Manager
and Vice President of Electronics.

Ms. MacKay joined the company in 2006 as Senior Vice President and General Merchandise Manager for
Entertainment. Before joining the company, she served as Managing Director of Infinitive, Inc., a management
consulting firm based in the Washington, D.C. area, from 2004 to 2006. During that time, Ms. MacKay led the
team assisting Circuit City with its merchandising transformation. Prior to joining Infinitive, she was a Senior
Director at Best Buy, working on new business development and customer centricity, from 2002 to 2004. Before
joining Best Buy, Ms. MacKay worked for nine years at Accenture, a global management consulting, technology
services and outsourcing company, on large scale retail transformation projects.

Mr. McCorey joined the company initially in 1991 as Supervisor - Computer Operations. He was named
Manager — Computer Operations in 1992 and Manager — Computer Services in 1993. He was promoted to Director
— Computer Services in 1996, Assistant Vice President in 1998 and Vice President — Computer Services in 2000.
From 2003 to 2005, he served as Vice President — Business Applications. He served as the Chief Information
Officer at 2nd Swing, Inc., a retailer of golf clubs and related accessories, for four months in 2005, Mr. McCorey
rejoined the company in 2005 as Vice President — Business Applications. He was promoted to Senior Vice
President and Chief Information Officer in 2006.

Mr. Sieger joined the company in 2003 as Vice President of Warranty Administration, with additional
responsibility for the service division, including field and depot repair, installations, personal computer services and
call centers. In 2005, he was promoted to Senior Vice President and General Manager — Services, overseeing
service provider relationships and networking hardware. In 2006, he added the role of leading our firedog™
business. Prior to joining the company, he spent 13 years at General Electric Company, a diversified technology,
media and financial services company, working in roles in finance, marketing, e-commerce, sales and business
development.
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Mr. Whaling joined the company in 2006 as Senior Vice President — Retail Operations. Prior 10 joining the
company, he was Senior Vice President of Sales and Operations for the business-to-business division at Best Buy
from 2003 to 2006. He joined Best Buy in 1997 and served also as Vice President of Retail Operations and as
regional Vice President and District Manager. Before joining Best Buy, he worked for American of Madison, Inc.,
a retailer of furniture, appliances and consumer electronics that operates stores under the American TV and
Appliance name, for more than twenty years, last serving as Senior Vice President of Stores, and for two years as a
General Manager in training.

Item 11. Executive Compensation,

The information required by this item is incorporated into this item by reference to the company’s
definitive Proxy Statement for the 2008 annual meeting of shareholders, to be filed within 120 days after the end of
the fiscal year that this Form 10-K covers.

Item 12. Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management and Related Stockholder
Matters.

The information required by this item is incorporated into this item by reference to the company’s
definitive Proxy Statement for the 2008 annual meeting of shareholders, to be filed within 120 days after the end of
the fiscal year that this Form 10-K covers.

item 13. Certain Relationships and Related Transactions, and Director Independence.

The information required by this item is incorporated into this item by reference to the company’s
definitive Proxy Statement for the 2008 annual meeting of shareholders, to be filed within 120 days after the end of
the fiscal year that this Form 10-K covers.

Item 14. Principal Accounting Fees and Services.

The information required by this item is incorporated into this item by reference to the company’s
definitive Proxy Statement for the 2008 annual meeting of shareholders, to be filed within 120 days after the end of
the fiscal year that this Form 10-K covers.

PART IV
Item 15. Exhibits, Financial Statement Schedules.
(a) The following are filed as a part of this report.

I. Financial Statements. All financial statements as set forth under Item 8 of this report.

2. Financial Statement Schedules. The following financial statement schedules of Circuit City Stores,
Inc. for the fiscal years ended February 29, 2008, February 28, 2007, and February 28, 2006, are
filed in as part of this report and should be read in conjunction with the consolidated financial
statements of Circuit City Stores, Inc. and the notes thereto, described in Item 15(a)l.

Schedule IT Valuation and Qualifying Accounts and Reserves S-1
Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm on Financial Statement Schedule  §-2

Schedules not listed above have been omiited because they are not applicable or are not required or
the information required to be set forth therein is included in the consolidated financial statements or
notes thereto.

3. Exhibits. The exhibits listed on the accompanying Exhibit Index immediately following the
financial schedules are filed as part of, or are incorporated by reference into, this report.

{b) See Item 15(a)3.
{c) See Item 15{(a)2.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended,
the registrant has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized.

CIRCUIT CITY STORES, INC.

Date: Aprii 28, 2008 By: /s/Philip J. Schoonover
Philip J. Schoonover
Chairmasn, President and
Chief Executive Officer

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, this report has been
signed below by the following persons on behalf of the registrant and in the capacities and on the dates indicated.

Signature Title Date
/s/Philip J. Schoonover Chairman, President and April 28, 2008
Philip J. Schoonover Chief Executive Officer and Director

(principal executive officer)

/sfBruce H. Besanko Executive Vice President April 28, 2008
Bruce H. Besanko and Chief Financial Officer
(principal financial officer)

/s/Philip J. Dunn Senior Vice President, Treasurer April 28, 2008
Philip J. Dunn and Chief Accounting Officer

(principal accounting officer)
{sfRonald M. Brill Director April 28, 2008
Ronald M. Brill .
{s/Carolyn H. Byrd Director April 28, 2008
Carolyn H. Byrd
/sfUrsula O. Fairbairn Director April 28, 2008
Ursula O. Fairbairn
{s/Barbara S. Feigin Director April 28, 2008
Barbara S. Feigin
{s/James F. Hardymon Director April 28, 2008
James F. Hardymon ‘
[sfAlan Kane Director April 28, 2008
Alan Kane
/s/Allen B. King Director April 28, 2008
Allen B. King
/s/Mikael Salovaara Director April 28, 2008

Mikael Salovaara
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Signature Title Date

{s/]. Patrick Spainhour Director April 28, 2008
J. Patrick Spainhour

/s/Ronald L. Turner Director April 28, 2008
Ronald L. Turner

{s/Carolyn Y. Woo Director April 28, 2008
Carolyn Y. Woo
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Schedule 11

Circuit City Stores, Inc.

Valuation and Qualifving Accounts and Reserves

Description

Year ended February 28, 2006:
Allowance for doubtful accounts
Sales returns and allowances
Inventory loss reserve

Year ended February 28, 2007:
Allowance for doubtful accounts
Sales returns and allowances
Inventory loss reserve

Year ended February 29, 2008:
Allowance for doubtful accounts
Sales returns and allowances
Inventory loss reserve

(Amounts in thousands)

Balance at
Beginning
of Year

$1,254
$5,739
$5,350

$2,207
$5,872
$5,122

$4,961
$5,751
$4,938

Charged to
Costs and

Expenses

$ 7,294
$  133@®
$45,581

$ 9.693
$ (12D)®
$49219

$19,965
$(2,612)%
$97,326

Charged Charge-offs

to Other less

Accounts Recoveries
$ - $ (6,341)
$ - $ -
$ - $(45,809)
$ - $ (6,939)
$ - $ -
$ - $(49,403)
$ - $(18,319)
§ - $ -
$ - $(94,109)

@ Represents increase (decrease) in the required reserve based on the company's evaluation of estimated sales returns.

™ The company has revised Schedule 11 for the fiscal years ending February 28, 2006, and February 28, 2007, to include immaterial amounts
that were not previously disclosed in the allowance for doubtful accounts balances. These corrections did not impact the statements of

operations or the consolidated balance sheets in any period.

5-1

Balance at
End of
Year

$2,207®
$5,872
$5,122

$4,961®
$5,751
$4.938

$6,607
$3,139
$8,155




Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

The Board of Directors and Stockholders
Circuit City Stores, Inc.:

Under date of April 28, 2008, we reported on the consolidated balance sheets of Circuit City Stores, Inc. and
subsidiaries (the Company) as of February 29, 2008 and February 28, 2007, and the related consolidated statements
of operations, stockholders’ equity and comprehensive income (loss), and cash flows for each of the years in the
three-year period ended February 29, 2008, as contained in the 2008 annual report to shareholders. In connection
with our audits of the aforementioned consclidated financial statements, we also audited the related consolidated
financial statement schedule as listed in Item 15(a)2 of Form 10 K. This financial statement schedule is the
responsibility of the Company’s management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on this financial statement
schedule based on our audits.

In our opinion, such financial statement schedule, when considered in relation to the basic consolidated financial
statements taken as a whole, presents fairly, in all material respects, the information set forth therein.

As discussed in note 2 to the consolidated financial statements, the Company adopted the provisions of Statement
of Financial Accounting Standard No. 48, Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes — an interpretation of FASB
Statement No. 109, in fiscal 2008. In addition, as discussed in note 2 to the consolidated financial statements, the
Company adopted the provisions of Statement of Financial Accounting Standard No. 123R (Revised 2004), Share
Based Payment, and as discussed in note 15 to the consolidated financial statements, the Company adopted the
provisions of Statement of Financial Accounting Standard No. 158, Employers’ Accounting for Defined Benefit
Pension and Other Postretirement Plans — an amendment of FASB Statements No. 87, 88, 106, and 132(R), in fiscal
2007.

/sf KPMG LLP

Richmond, Virginia
April 28, 2008
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3.1

3.2

10.1

10.2

10.3

10.4

10.5

10.6

10.7

10.8

10.9

10.10

10.11

EXHIBIT INDEX

Circuit City Stores, Inc. Amended and Restated Articles of Incorporation, effective February 3, 1997, as
amended through August 16, 2005, filed as Exhibit 3.1 to the company’s Form 8-A/A filed September 13,
2005 (File No. 1-5767), are expressly incorporated herein by this reference.

Circuit City Stores, Inc. Bylaws, as amended and restated August 21, 2007, filed as Exhibit 3.1 to the
company’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed August 23, 2007 (File No. 1-5767), are expressly
incorporated herein by this reference.

Circuit City Stores, Inc. 2000 Non-Employee Directors Stock Incentive Plan, as Amended and Restated,
Effective December 14, 2006, filed as Exhibit 10.2 to the company’s quarterly report on Form 10-Q for the
quarter ended November 30, 2006 (File No. 1-5767), is expressly incorporated herein by this reference.*

Circuit City Stores, Inc. 2003 Stock Incentive Plan, as Amended and Restated, Effective December 14,
2006, filed as Exhibit 10.1 to the company’s quarterly report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended
November 30, 2006 (File No. 1-5767), is expressly incorporated herein by this reference.*

Circuit City Stores, Inc. 1994 Stock Incentive Plan, as amended as of January 24, 1997, filed as Annex 111
to the company’s definitive Proxy Statement dated December 24, 1996, for a Special Meeting of
Shareholders held on January 24, 1997 (File No. 1-5767), is expressly incorporated herein by this
reference. *

Amendments effective June 13, 2000, to the Circuit City Stores, Inc. 1994 Stock Incentive Plan as
amended, filed as Exhibit 10 to the company’s quarterly report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended May
31, 2000 (File No. 1-5767), are expressly incorporated herein by this reference.*

Amendment effective June 15, 1999, to the Circuit City Stores, Inc. 1994 Stock Incentive Plan as amended,
filed as Exhibit 10 to the company’s quarterly report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended May 31, 1999
(File No. 1-5767), is expressly incorporated herein by this reference.*

InterTAN, Inc. Amended and Restated 1996 Stock Option Plan, filed as Exhibit 10.3 to the company’s
quarterly report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended August 31, 2004 (File No. 1-5767), is expressly
incorporated herein by this reference.*

Form of Non-Qualified Stock Option Grant Letter, filed as Exhibit 10.3 to the company’s quarterly report
on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended May 31, 2005 (File No. 1-5767), is expressly incorporated herein by
this reference.*

Form of Time-based Restricted Stock Award Letter, filed as Exhibit 10.5 to the company’s Current Report
on Form 8-K filed June 29, 2006 (File No. 1-5767), is expressly incorporated herein by this reference.*

Form of Performance Accelerated Restricted Stock Award Letter, filed as Exhibit 10.4 to the company’s
Current Report on Form 8-K filed June 29, 2006 (File No. 1-5767), is expressly incorporated herein by this
reference.*

Form of Restricted Stock Unit Award Agreement for Non-Employee Directors, filed as Exhibit 10.2to the
company’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed June 29, 2006 (File No. 1-5767), is expressly incorporated
herein by this reference.*

Employment agreement between the company and Philip J. Schoonover effective as of October 4, 2004,

filed as Exhibit 10.1 to the company’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed October 4, 2004 (File No. 1-
5767), is expressly incorporated herein by this reference.*
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10.12

10.13

10.14

10.15

10.16

10.17

10.18

10.19

10.20

10.21

10.22

10.23

10.24

Employment agreement between the company and Bruce H. Besanko effective as of July 30, 2007, filed as
Exhibit 10.2 to the company’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed July 11, 2007 (File No. 1-5767), is
expressly incorporated herein by this reference.®

Employment agreement between the company and Reginald D. Hedgebeth effective as of July 11, 2005,
filed as Exhibit 10.15 to the company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended February 28,
2007 (File No. 1-5767), is expressly incorporated herein by this reference.*

Employment agreement between the company and Eric A. Jonas, Ir. effective as of July 26, 2004, filed as
Exhibit 10.16 to the company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended February 28, 2007
(File No. 1-5767), is expressly incorporated herein by this reference.*

Employment agreement between the company and John T. Harlow effective as of January 21, 2008, filed as
Exhibit 10.2 to the company’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed January 22, 2008 (File No. 1-5767), is
expressly incorporated herein by this reference. *

Letter agreement between the company and Michael E. Foss effective April 17, 2007, filed as Exhibit 10.13
to the company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended February 28. 2007 (File No. 1-
5767), is expressly incorporated herein by this reference.®

Offer letter from the company to Bruce H. Besanko dated June 25, 2007, filed as Exhibit 10.1 to the
company’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed July 11, 2007 (File No. 1-5767), is expressly incorporated
herein by this reference.*

Offer letter from the company to John Harlow dated January 3, 2008, filed as Exhibit 10.1 to the
company’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed January 22, 2008 (File No. 1-5767), is expressly incorporated
herein by this reference.*

Form of Letter Agreement for Retention Award between the company and named executive officers (Bruce
H. Besanko, Reginald D. Hedgebeth and Eric A. Jonas, Jr.), filed as Exhibit 10.1 to the company’s Current
Report on Form 8-K filed December 19, 2007 (File No. 1-5767), is expressly incorporated herein by this
reference.*

Circuit City Stores, Inc. 2003 Annual Performance-Based Bonus Plan, filed as Appendix C to the
company’s definitive Proxy Statement dated May 9, 2003, for the Annual Meeting of Shareholders held on
June 17, 2003 (File No. 1-5767), is expressly incorporated hercin by this reference.*

Circuit City Stores, Inc. Restricted Stock Unit Deferral Program under the Circuit City Stores, Inc. 2000

Non-Employee Directors Stock Incentive Plan, filed as Exhibit 10.6 to the company’s quarterly report on
Form 10-Q for the quarter ended August 31, 2004 (File No. 1-5767), is expressly incorporated herein by

this reference.*

Circuit City Stores, Inc. Non-Employee Directors Deferred Compensation Pian, filed as Exhibit 10 to the
company’s quarterly report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended August 31, 2000 (File No. 1-5767), is
expressly incorporated herein by this reference.*

Program for deferral of director compensation implemented October 1995 filed as Exhibit 10(i) to the
company’s quarterly report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended November 30, 1995 (File No. 1-5767), is
expressly incorporated herein by this reference. *

Circuit City Stores, Inc. Benefit Restoration Plan, As Amended and Restated Effective February 28, 2005
and amended through December 2005, filed as Exhibit 10.1 to the company’s quarterly report on Form 10-
Q for the quarter ended November 30, 2005 (File No. 1-5767), is expressly incorporated herein by this
reference.*
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10.25

10.26

10.27

10.28

10:29

10.30

10.31

10.32

10.33

10.34

21.1
23.1
31.1
31.2
32.1
322

Amendment effective February 29, 2008, to the Circuit City Stores, Inc. Benefit Restoration Plan as
amended, filed herewith.*

Circuit City Stores, Inc. Supplementat 401(k) Plan Effective March 1, 2005, filed as Exhibit 10.2 to the
company’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed Cctober 29, 2004 (File No. 1-5767), is expressly
incorporated herein by this reference.®

The 1984 Circuit City Stores, Inc. Employee Stock Purchase Plan, as Amended and Restated Effective
August 17, 2004, filed as Exhibit 10.4 to the company’s quarterly report on Form 10-Q for the quarter
ended August 31, 2004 (File No. 1-5767), is expressly incorporated herein by this reference *

InterTAN Canada, Ltd. Stock Purchase Program, filed as Appendix B to the company’s definitive Proxy
Statement dated May 13, 2005, for the Annual Meeting of Shareholders held on June 21, 2005 (File No. 1-
5767), is expressly incorporated herein by this reference.*

Second Amended and Restated Credit Agreement dated as of January 31, 2008, by and among Circuit City
Stores, Inc. and certain of its subsidiaries, the banks named in the Credit Agreement as Lenders, Bank of
America, N.A., Banc of America Securities, LL.C, Bank of America, N.A., Wells Fargo Retail Finance,
LLC, General Electric Capital Corporation, JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A., and Wachovia Capital Finance
Corporation, filed herewith (portions of this exhibit have been omitted pursuant to a request for confidential
treatment).

The Consumer Credit Card Program Agreement dated as of January 16, 2004, between Circuit City Stores,
Inc. and Bank One, Delaware, N.A., filed as Exhibit 10(r) to the company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K
for the fiscal year ended February 29, 2004 (File No. 1-5767), is expressly incorporated herein by this
reference.

Amendment to Program Agreement, dated as of May 25, 2004, between Circuit City Stores, Inc. and Bank
One, Delaware, N.A., filed as Exhibit 10.7 to the company’s quarterly report on Form 10-Q for the quarter
ended August 31, 2004 (File No. 1-5767), is expressly incorporated herein by this reference.

Amendment #2 to Program Agreement, effective as of May 25, 2004, between Circuit City Stores, Inc. and
Bank One, Delaware, N.A, filed as Exhibit 10.8 to the company’s quarterly report on Form 10-Q for the
quarter ended August 31, 2004 (File No. 1-5767), is expressly incorporated herein by this reference.

Third Amendment to the Consumer Credit Card Program Agreement, dated as of October 24, 2007,
between Bank One Delaware, N A. n/k/a Chase Bank USA, N.A. and Circuit City Stores, Inc., filed as
Exhibit 10.1 to the company’s quarterly report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended November 30, 2007
(File No. 1-5767), is expressly incorporated herein by this reference.

Schedule of Non-Employee Director Compensation, filed as Exhibit 10.1 to the company’s Current Report
on Form 8-K filed June 29, 2006 (File No. 1-5767), is expressly incorporated herein by this reference.*
Subsidiaries of the Company.

Consent of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm.

Certification of CEO under Rule 13a-14(a) of the Securities and Exchange Act of 1934,

Certification of CFO under Rule 13a-14(a) of the Securities and Exchange Act of 1934.

Certification of CEO under Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.

Certification of CFO under Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002,

*  Indicates management contracts, compensatory plans or arrangements of the company required to be filed as an
exhibit.
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Philip J. Schocnover
Chairman, President and
Chief Executive Officer

Mikael Salovaara 12.3)
Lead Director; Private Investor;
Retired, Partner, Greycliff Partners

Ronald M. Brill (1}

Retired, Executive Vice President and
Chief Administrative Officer,

The Home Depot, Inc.

Carolyn H. Byrd {¥
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer,
GlobalTech Financial, LLC

Ursula O. Fairbairn (2.3
President and Chief Executive Officer,
Fairbairn Group LLC

Philip J. Schoonover
Chairman, President and
Chief Executive Officer

Bruce H. Besanko
Executive Vice President and
Chief Financial Officer

John T. Harlow
Executive Vice President and
Chief Operating Officer

Jeffrey S. Stone
Executive Vice President—New Business
Development

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Barbara S. Feigin 2.3)

Consultant; Retired, Executive Vice
President, Worldwide Director of Strategic
Services, Grey Global Group, Inc,

James F. Hardymon 2.3
Retired, Chairman and Chief
Executive Officer, Textron Inc.

Alan Kane (2.3}

Dean, School of Business and Technology,
Fashion Institute of Technology

Allen B. King 23

Chairman,

Universal Corporation

EXECUTIVE OFFICERS

Brian S. Bradley
Senior Vice President—Multi-Channel

Kelly E. Breitenbecher
Senior Vice President—Supply Chain and
Space Planning

Philip J. Dunn
Senior Vice President, Treasurer and
Chief Accounting Officer

Reginald D. Hedgebeth
Senior Vice President, General Counsel
and Secretary

Eric A. Jonas, Jr.
Senior Vice President—Human Resources

CERTIFICATIONS

J. Patrick Spainhour {1}
Chief Executive Officer,
The ServiceMaster Company

Ronald L. Turner (V
Retired, Chairman, President and Chief
Executive Officer, Ceridian Corporation

Carolyn Y. Woo (1
Dean, Mendoza College of Business,
University of Notre Dame

) Audit Committee Member

{2) Compensation and Personnel
Committee Member

3 Nominating and Governance
Committee Member

John J. Kelly
Senior Vice President—Merchandising

Irynne V. MacKay
Senior Vice President and
General Merchandise Manager

William E. McCorey, Jr.
Senior Vice President and
Chief Information Officer

Marc J. Sieger
Senior Vice President and
General Manager—Services

Marshall J. Whaling
Seniar Vice President—Retail Operations

Circuit City annually submits to the New York Stock Exchange (NYSE) a certification by its chief executive officer that he is not aware of
any violation by the company of NYSE corporate governance listing standards. Circuit City has filed with the Securities and Exchange
Commission as exhibits to its annual report on Form 10-K for the year ended February 29, 2008, the certifications of its chief executive

officer and chief financial officer required by Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002,

Corporate Offices

Circuit City Stores, Inc.

9950 Mayland Drive
Richmond, Virginia 23233-1464
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SHAREHOLDER INFORMATION

Transfer Agent and Registrar
Wells Fargo Shareowner Services
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(800) 401-1957
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Director of Corporate Communications
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Web Site
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